Humboldt Bay Municipal Water
District 828 7" Street, Eureka
Agenda for Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors

July 13, 2023
Meeting Start Time: 9:00 AM

District Mission

Reliobly deliver high-guality drinking water to the communities and customers we serve in the
greater Humboldt Bay Aren at a reasonable cost, Refiably deliver untreated water to our wholesale
industrial customer(s) ot a reasonable cost. Protect the fong-term water supply and water quality

interests of the District in the Mad River watershed.
ek eoRokskok ok ckokok ksk kb ok e sk ok ok ke sk ok ok ok kck eckskok ook ksl Rk sk k h ok skl sk ok Rk Rk sk kR Rk Rk Aok sk ko Rk ok ok kol Rk ok ko sk kR Rk R R ko

Members of the public may join the meeting online at:
https://us02web.zoom.us/(/86710296323?pwd=MiZldGxRa08wZOFWOHIJrUINhZnFLQT09

Or participate by phone: 1-669-900-9128 Enter meeting ID: 867 1029 6323 Enter password: 434138
If you are participating via phone and would like to comment, please press *9 to raise your hand.

How to Submit Public Comment: Members of the public may provide public comments via emai!
until 5 pm the day before the Board Meeting by sending comments to office@hbmwd.com. Email
comments must identify the agenda item in the email’s subject line. Written comments may also
be mailed to 828 7th Street, Eureka, CA 95501. Written comments should identify the agenda item
number. Comments may also be made in person at the meeting,

Time Set Items:

8.2 Continuing Business McNamara & Peepe 9:15 AM
8.1 Continuing Business Blue Lake Rancheria 10:00 AM
7 d Correspondence RLCSD Policy 6800 10:45 AM
10.2 Engineering Engineering 11:00 AM
9 a New Business Closed Session 2:00 PM

The Board will take a scheduled iunch break from 12:00 pm to 1:30 pm.

1. ROLL CALL
2. FLAG SALUTE

3. ACCEPT AGENDA

4. PUBLIC COMMENT

Members of the public are invited to address the Board on items not listed on the agenda that are within
the scope and jurisdiction of the District. At the discretion of the President, comments may be limited to
three minutes per person. The public will be allowed to address items on the agenda when the Board takes

up that item. Under the Brown Act, the Board may not take action on any itermn that does not appear on
the agenda.

5. MINUTES
June 8, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes* - discuss and possibly approve

6. CONSENT AGENDA *-These matters are routine in nature and are usually approved by a combined single vote unless
an item Is pulled for discussion

Media articles of local/water interest (Articles a-g)* -discuss and possibly approve

1




Humboldt Bay Municipal Water
District 828 7" Street, Eureka

Agenda for Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
July 13, 2023
Meeting Start Time: 9:00 AM

7. CORRESPCNDENCE
a. Letter from Southern Trinity Area Rescue (STAR) re: donation® -discuss and possibly approve
[6. Teiter to Fieldbrook-Glendale CSD re: Water System inspection™ -discuss |
[c. TLetter to Governor Newsom re: PG&E Transmission of Hydro Electricity* -discuss|
o tetter fromm RECSDTE Polity 6800, Lease Fees & Payment, update™ = distuss and
possibly approve (Time Set 10:45 am)
€. Lewerirom Te Lease Lot 42 variance™ - discuss and possibly approve

8. CONTINUING BUSINESS
8.1 Water Resource Planning* — status report on water use options under consideration
a. Local Sales
i. Nordic Aquafarms
ii. Trinidad Rancheria Mainline Extension

iii. Blue Lake Rancheria Mainline Extension Memorandum of Understanding*-discuss
and possibly approve (Time Set 10:00 am)

[b.  Transport |
¢.  Instream Flow

8.2 McNamara & Peepe (Time Set 9:15 am)
a. Site Investigation Work Plan* -discuss
onthly Summary Report, June™ - discuss
|c. Site maps & historical sampling results {stormwater and well water)* - reference |

[9. NEW BUSINESS |
a. Appoint Real Property Negotiator to negotiate with Ross Eskra and Pamela Beagle concerning the
real property designated at APN 020-320-002 — discuss and possibly approve
b. CLOSED SESSION (Time Set 2:00 pm)- CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS
Property: (APN 020-320-002)
Agency negotiator: John Friedenbach, General Manager
Negotiating parties: (Ross Eskra and Pamela Beagle)

Under negotiation: Price and terms of payment
c. Ruth Lake Boat Leases-Sanitary Waste Disposal* - discuss

10. REPORTS

10.1 Engineering — (Time set 11:00 am)
a.  Collector Mainline Redundancy Project: Scope of Work change® — discuss and possibly
approve

b.  Essex Onsite Sodium Hypochlorite Generation — status report
¢.  TRF Generator- status report

|d.  Collector 2 Rehabilitation Project*- status report |
e.  Status report re: other engineering work in progress

2




Humboldt Bay Municipal Water
District 828 7*" Street, Eureka
Agenda for Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors

July 13,2023
Meeting Start Time: 9:00 AM

10.2 Financial

June 2023 Financial Statement & Vendor Detail Report® - discuss and possibly approve

a
.
E.
.

FY2022-23 Project Budget Reallocation® -discuss and possibly approve]
FY2023-24 Budget Presentation¥ - discuss and possibly approve |

LalClass Investment and Investment Policy Changes™- discuss and possibly approve

10.3  Operations
a.

June Operations Report®- discuss

b.

Request to Surplus: Westinghouse, 7200 AMP circuit breaker™ - discuss and possibly approve

0.4 Management

National Public Lands Day, Cleanup at Ruth Lake¥- discuss]

a. Active Grants Update*-discuss

b.” CSDA GM Leadership Summit* -report out|
¢. Board Meeting Dates*- discuss |

GR

e.

Executive Assistant/Board Secretary Position- discuss

11. PIRECTOR REPORTS & DISCUSSION

11.1 General — comments or reports from Directors

11.2 ACWA
a.  ACWA Foundation Thank you note*-discuss
b. ACWA Update on Priority Issues® -discuss
. ACWA Regulatory Roundup® -discuss
. ACWA News, June 2023, Legislative Committee summary™ -discuss |

[$*]

ACWA Committee Appointment Considerations for 2024-25 Term® -discuss and possibly
approve

[11.3 ACWA-—JPIA |

4.

Director Report, if any

|b.

Wellness Grant 2023 Application*- discuss

d.

11.4 Organizations on which HBMWD Serves

RCEA* — report out

P.

RREDC™ —report out




HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Board of Directors Meeting
~ July 13, 2023

Fun at Ruth Lake



~ MINUTES




=

SECTION D ___ PAGENO._|____

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water
District 828 7' Street, Eureka

Minutes for Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
June 8, 2023

. ROLL CALL
President Latt called the meeting to order at 9:00 am. Director Lindberg conducted the roll call. Directors
Fuller, Latt, Lindberg and Woo were present. Director Rupp was absent. General Manager lohn
Friedenbach, Superintendent Dale Davidsen, Business Manager Chris Harris and Accounting Tech Ii Dee
Dee Simpson-Glenn were also present. District Engineer Nathan Stevens was present for a portion of the
meeting.

. FLAG SALUTE
President Latt led the flag salute.

. ACCEPT AGENDA
On motion by Director Woo, seconded by Director Lindberg, the Board voted 4-0 to accept the agenda.

. PUBLIC COMMENT
No public cormment was received.

. MINUTES
5.1 April 13, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
Director Fuller requested some technical corrections to the McNamara & Peepe section. On motion by

Director Woo, seconded by Director Lindberg, the Board voted 4-0 to approve the minutes of April 13,
2023 as amended.

5.2 May 16, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
Director Fuller noted a correction needed in the McNamara & Peepe section. Baykeeper is one word, not

two. On motion by Director Fuller, seconded by Director Woo, the Board voted 4-0 to approve the minutes
of May 16, 2023 as amended.

5.3 May 24, 2023 Special Board Meeting Minutes

On motion by Director Woo, seconded by Director Fuller, the Board voted 4-0 to approve the minutes for
the Special Meeting on May 24, 2023,

CONSENT AGENDA
Media articles of local/water interest (Articles a-d)

On motion by Director Lindberg, seconded by Director Fuller, the Board voted 4-0 to accept the Consent
Agenda.

. CORRESPONDENCE

Letter from Blue Lake Rancheria re: mainline extension requast

Mr. Friedenbach shared the letter from Blue Lake Rancheria requesting a mainline extension to their
Rancheria. Mr. Jason Ramos, Tribal Administrator, addressed the Board. He stated the Rancheria is taking
measures to be in control of their own future and not dependent on a city or other entity. He shared other
steps taken already to gain independent control such as having their own power grid, and internet, They
are committed to being an island of hope, as they were after the December 2022 earthquake. They were
able to provide power, fue! and a place for people to stay and use life- saving medical devices during this
time when most were without power. The Board was positive and supportive of their request and directed

1




Humboldt Bay Municipal Water ~ >-C 0=

District 828 7" Street, Eureka

Minutes for Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
June 8, 2023

staff to prepare a Memorandum of Understanding {MOU) for consideration at a future meeting. Mr.
Friedenbach noted the District’s legal counsel has a conflict of interest as the firm also represents the City
of Blue Lake. He recommended the District retain the services of Meredith Nikkel of Downey Brand, as
she is also a water rights attorney, to advise the District on this matter.

. CONTINUING BUSINESS

8.1

8.2

Water Resource Planning

a,  Llocal Sales

i. Nordic Aquafarms
Mr. Friedenbach stated a meeting with the Nordic Aquafarm executives is
scheduled for June 14™. An update report will be provided at the July board
meeting. Nordic continues to work through their permit challenge at the California
Coastal Commission.

il. Trinidad Rancheria Mainline Extension
The Trinidad Rancheria published an RFQ for engineering services for the mainline
extension. They received a response from Stetson Engineering and are currently in
negctiations with them.

b.  Transport
No updates were available.

¢.  Instream Flow
The draft Narrative graphs have been updated by GHD and will be reviewed by counsel.
Nething additional to report at this time.

iMicNamara & Peepe

Report from Prima Environmental re: Final Report of Findings “Bench-scale Evaluation of

Remediation Options for Destruction of Pentachlorophenol in Scil and Groundwater”

Director Woo recused herself due to a conflict of interest and left the room. Mr. Matt Hagemann

- of SWAPE, discussed the final report from Prima Environmental regarding the McNamara & Peepe

site. He provided an overview of the report (the report is 544 pages), answered Director's
questions, and recommended the Board ask specific questions at their next meeting with the
Department of Toxic Substances Control {DTSC) such as what they plan do with the findings in the
report.

Mr. Friedenbach shared that DTSC is working on an access agreement to install an additional
monitoring well on a private residence south of the Site.

9. NEW BUSINESS

9.1

Restore power to Old Ruth Project, CEQA-Notice of Exempition

Mr. Friedenbach explained that the District applied for a California Department of Boating and
Waterways Quagga Prevention grant to restore power to the Old Ruth boat launch site. The August
Complex fire burnt out the electrical components and the gate arm and card reader are currently
not functional. Prior to the grant being awarded, proof of CEQA completion must be presented.
After consultation with the District Engineer, it was determined that the project qualifies for a

2




SECTION
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water

District 828 7" Street, Eureka

Minutes for Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
lune 8§, 2023

Categorical Exemption: 15302(d). On motion by Director Lindberg, seconded by Director Woo, the
Board voted 4-0 to find that the project qualifies for the Categorical Exemption and directed staff
to filed the necessary CEQA paperwork for the Old Ruth Power Restoration Project.

9.2  Director Compensation for Assistant Secretary/Treasurer

Mr. Friedenbach introduced the topic of director compensation for the Assistant
Secretary/Treasurer. He noted this topic has been discussed in the past. He reviewed Ordinance
17 which authorizes Directors’ compensation and the section of the Board Governance Manual that
pertains to the Secretary/Treasurer position. He stated it seems reasonable that the Assistant
Secretary/Treasurer should be compensated when asked to fulfill the required duties when the
Secretary/Treasurer is absent. The associated issue is whether or not to reduce the
Secretary/Treasurer’s compensation by a corresponding amount. The Board discussed the topic
and agreed that compensation should be provided when the Assistant is actively fulfilling the role
in the absence of the Secretary/Treasurer. They did not feel it necessary to reduce the
Secretary/Treasurer's compensation by the same amount. On motion by Director Woo, seconded
by Director Fuller, the Board voted 4-0 to direct staff to make necessary updates to the Board

Governance manual as required to include compensation for the Assistant Secretary/Treasurer at
the rate of $65.62 per week.

9.3  August Regular Board Meeting (8/10/23): consider date change
Mr. Friedenbach stated he will not be available for the August 10" meeting and inquired if the
Board would consider changing the meeting date. On motion by Director Woo, seconded by
Director Lindberg, the Board agreed to reschedule the August Board Meeting to August 171,

10. REPORTS
10.1 Legal

CLOSED SESSION — Conference with Legal Counsel — Bxisting Litigation: Initiation of
litigation pursuant to paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of § 54956.9 (Van Duzen) Case # CV2201489
President Latt recused himself and left the room due to a conflict of interest, The Board then entered
into Closed Session at 1:36 pm and came back to open session at 1:44 pm. Director Fuller reported
out in open session that there was nothing to report.

10.2 Engineering
Mr. Stevens provided status reports on the following projects:

a. Collector 2 Rehabilitation Project

The dewatering pond has been constructed and the crane arrived on site. The project is
going well so far.

b. Essex Onsite Sodium Hypochlorite Generation

GHD received the design submittal and had no significant comments. The project is moving
forward.

C. Reservoirs Seismic Retrofit Project

The District received grant funding for Phase Il and it included approximately $1.5 million in
additional grant funds.




SECTION_D___ PAGE NO. tl

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water
District 828 7'" Street, Eureka

Minutes for Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
Jlune 8, 2023

d.  TRF Generator
Geotech work has been completed.

e.  Collector Mainline Redundancy Project
There were some initial concerns with the original alignment of the project. The District
provided historical geotechnical reports of the area to GEl and they are now moving forward
on the project.

f, Status report re: other engineering work in progress
Nothing to report,

10.3 Financial

a.  May 2023 Financial Statement & Vendor Detail Report
Ms. Harris discussed the May financial report. The General Account balance is at $2 million,
and she noted that $3 million has been moved to investments. The Various Investments are
now at 511 million and Advance Charges {funds allocated to specific projects) are at $5.6
million. Under the Revenue section, she noted that the County has not closed FY22 and the
District is still waiting for information on Property Tax revenue. Director Fuller reviewed the
bills and had no questions. On motion by Director Fuller, seconded by Director Lindberg, the
Board voted 4-0 to approve the May financial statement and the vendor detai! in the amount
of $342,559.53.

b.  Budget Presentation

Ms, Harris provided a review of the FY23/24 Draft Budget. She noted that the Project Budget
reallocation will be presented next month. There are no changes in the Service & Supply
Budget. Inregards to the Salaries & Wages Budget, she stated that PEPRA (Public Employees’
Pension Reform Act) employees, those hired after January 1, 2013 (15 of the 28 staff at the
District are PEPRA) will be required to pay an additional 1.0% for the employee portion of
their CalPERS retirement from their paychecks. She noted this does not impact the budget
since it is the employee that must pay the increase.

A few days prior to the Board meeting, additional CP| charts were provided to Ms, Harris for
consideration in calculating the 2023 COLA.  She included the updated information,
however, she cautioned that these numbers are from a different classification and cannot
be compared to the CPl index that the District has been using. She recommended that if the
Directors want to use the different CPI classification, that they be consistent and use it going
forward and not change course each year. The Board appreciated all of the information
provided and concurred that maintaining consistency is important, They agreed to keep the
current CPl index (Western Region - Class B/C) being used and not to change course.

The overall budget remains the same as last month with FY23/24 estimated Municipal
Customer charges of $8,039,196 which is an increase of 3.40%.

4




Humboldt Bay Municipal Water
District 828 7" Street, Eureka

Minutes for Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
June §, 2023

¢.  Compensation & Benefit Study RFP/RFQ Results

Ms. Harris stated that staff was in communication with four firms who expressed interest in
responding to the RFP/RFQ, however only one submittal was received from JER HR Group.
She expressed concerns that JER HR does not have municipal employer experience in
California. The references were good, however, the lack of experience related to California
Labor Law is a concern. The Board discussed options, and suggested staff review results of
the McKinleyville CSD and Humboldt Transit Authority compensation and benefit studies;
and refine our RFP/RFQ based on these results. On motion by Director Woo, seconded by
Director Lindberg, the Board vote 4-0 to reject all bids, and directed staff to republish the
RFP/RFQ at a future date.

d.  Resolution 2023-09 — Limit for Appropriations from Taxes
Director Lindberg read Resolution 2023-09. On motion by Director Woo, seconded by
Director Fuller, the Board voted 4-0 by roll call vote to approve Resolution 2023-09,

10.4 Operations
May Operations Report
Mr. Davidsen provided the May Operations report. The maintenance crew went to Ruth the first
week of May to conduct the annual maintenance and all went well. However, the hydro plant was
not restarted after the maintenance and remains offline due to PG&E. In addition to working on

ongoing projects, staff attended a safety meeting on Chlorine Safety Training as well as other
training topics.

11. DIRECTOR REPORTS & DISCUSSION

11.1 General — comments or reports from Directors
President Latt discussed the concept of a Board / Tribal liaison, in particular one that could
potentially be instrumental in progress on the McNamara & Peepe site. Other Directors suggested

that perhaps the Community Advisory Committee could be reinitiated if the District decided to do
something of this nature.

11.2 Water Policy
Articles re: Water Rights Bills AB 460, AB 1337 and SB 389
Previously the Board requested the topic “Water Policy” be listed a stand-alone item. After
consideration, the Board concurred the articles should be listed under Consent as it was previously.
Mr. Friedenbach noted that ACWA, of which HBMWD is a member, has a legislative committee that
works on behalf of water districts throughout the state. The Board agreed it is important to keep

our concerns on their agenda as well, and this could be done through ACWA Region 1
representation.

11.3 ACWA
a. 2023 Authorized Voting Representative Form
The Board agreed that Director Rupp should be the ACWA Authorized Voting Representative.
On motion by Director Woo, seconded by Director Lindberg, the Board voted 4-0 to appoint
Director Rupp as the 2023 ACWA Voting Representative.

5




Humboldt Bay Municipal Water
District 828 7*" Street, Eureka

Minutes for Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
June 8, 2023

b.  ACWA Foundation Contribution Form
Mr. Friedenbach stated last month the Board approved the contribution. He shared the
contribution form showing that the contribution was made for informational purposes only.
11.4 ACWA -JPIA
No reports were made.
11.5 Organizations on which HBMWD Serves
a. RCEA
Director Woo reported out on the RCEA meeting. She discussed the RCEA report titled
Humboldt’s Electric Future, dated April 2023. She stated community engagement is taking
place to collect input and to the extent possible, incorporate it into the next integrated
resource plan update. She stated Humboldt's electric future is looking good.
b. RREDC
President Latt stated there is nothing to report since the May 22" meeting was cancelled.
ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 2:00 pm.

Attest:

Neal Latt, President David Lindberg, Assistant Secretary/Treasurer



CONSENT



BRANDING

Use consistent branding anywhere you are
communicating with potential candidates,
including your website employment page,
recruitment brochures, and on social media.

Identify what makes your organization unique.

The policies and programs that demonstrate your
organization’s commitment to employee growth,
development, recognition, community service, etc.

Target your ad branding to specific groups, such as
veterans. Connect the values of the position or your
organization with the values of the individual.

include photos of actual employees working both
in the field and in the office.

Use testimonials.

ADVERTISING

Utilize job boards and organizations that can
increase the visibility of your jobs, especially
when considering diversity, equity, and inclusion
recruitment efforts.

Use social media to share your job opportunities.
This could include LinkedIn, Facebook, and Twitter.

Share what workplace flexibility your organization
offers. More and more job seekers are looking for
flex time, non-traditional schedules, and remote
work options.

Utilize your email sighature block to share and
promote job opportunities at your organization.

SECTION tﬂ (e

e e et e e

REDUCE B1AS IN HIRING

Remove adjectives in job postings asscciated with
a particular gender.

Review your minimum qualifications. Eliminate
certain requirements (e.g., educational degrees,
certifications) in order to attract more of the
candidates you need.

Create a diverse interview panel.
Train interviewers on how to reduce bias in hiring.

Consider giving candidates a work skills test
to get a non-biased indicator of future job
performance.

Have a structured interview process - each
candidate should have the same set of defined
questions.

Define the ideal candidate profile ahead of
time and evaluate all candidates against those
standards.

Rank/rate candidates based on objective criteria /
standards.

Keep your organization’s diversity goals top of
mind throughout the entire recruitment and
hiring process.

Scan the code to watch and download E ]
career in water testimonial videos
or visit bit.ly/3MPacZA =




SECTION\sk> _ PAGE NO, |

Los Angeles Times

BY HAYLEY SMITH,
SEAN GREENE

JUNE 12,2023 5 AM PT

Californians were asked to cut water use 15% during the drought.
How close did they get?

The results are in: As California endured its three driest years on record, urban water users made a
significant effort to conserve, but fell far short of Gov. Gavin Newsom’s request to reduce water use by
15%.

Between July 2021, when Newsom first called on water users to voluntarily cut back, and March of this
year, when he rescinded that request amid a very wet winter, statewide savings were 7%, or about half of
what was requested. That amounts to about 9 fewer gallons per person per day, a Los Angeles Times
analysis has found.

The findings varied considerably by region and by water district, with the North Coast and San Francisco
Bay areas saving the most water — 14% and 12%, respectively — against the base-line year of 2020. The
inland Tulare Lake and Colorado River regions saved the least, 4% and 2%, respectively. (The analysis
did not include agricultural water use.)

State officials say the numbers belie the long-term conservation efforts Californians have made in recent

decades, including significant savings during the 2012-16 drought, which ended only a few years before
Newsom’s request.

But they also acknowledged that there is considerable room for improvement. Residential statewide use

was, on average, about 85 gallons per person per day. For comparison, Californians would have used 79
gallons per day if they had cut their use by 15%.

“Absolutely we can do better than that,” said Charlotte Ely, conservation supervisor with the State Water
Resources Control Board.

In July 2021, California was about two years into what was quickly becoming one of its most devastating
droughts. Fifty counties were under a drought state of emergency when Newsom stood in front of a

dwindling Lopez Lake in San Luis Obispo County and called on residents to reduce their water use by
15%.

Newsom rescinded the call on March 24 of this year after back-to-back atmospheric rivers refilled

reservoirs and dropped record and near-record snowpack in the Sierra, significantly easing drought
conditions statewide.




SECTION (gh __, PAGE NO. O~

But many experts were critical of Newsom’s voluntary stance throughout the drought, arguing that he
should have made cuts mandatory, like his predecessor, Jerry Brown, who ordered a 25% reduction
during the 2012-16 drought. Residents reached just shy of that goal, reducing water use by 24.5%.

The Newsom administration said it was more focused on targeted drought responses based on local
conditions, rather than a “one size fits all” approach that cannot account for past investments in
conservation or major water use drivers such as climate,

“Seven percent is still an impressive number given that it happened in less than two years, and that it’s on ;
top of the water savings that the state has maintained since the last drought,” Ely said. “And so I think : !
what we see over the last decade is really a conservation success story,”

But some experts say the results are evidence that more could have been done,

“The numbers are disappointing, given they’re just under half of what was asked for,” said Heather ;
Cooley, director of research at the Pacific Institute, a water think tank. !

A 2022 report from the institute found that Californians could reduce their water use by 30% to 48% by
adopting a host of technologies, efficiency standards and low-water use landscaping. Indoor use could be
as low as 25 to 35 gallons per person per day, Cooley said.

She attributed the state’s overall lackluster response to the governor’s voluntary call, and said the
messaging was inconsistent and often opaque about the severity of the situation.

“I think that it was potentially a recipe for disaster,” Cooley said. “If it had been another dry winter, we
would have really wished we had gone to mandatory [restrictions] last year, because it would help vs
conserve the limited water that we had, and would make it stretch that much further.”

Still, the effort appeared to work better in some areas than others. The South Coast region, which includes

Los Angeles and half the state’s population, cut water use by 6%, or about 7 fewer gallons per person per
day, the analysis found.

In June 2022, as the drought deepened, the region’s massive water wholesaler, the Metropolitan Water
District of Southern California, ordered unprecedented restrictions for areas dependent on the State Water

Project, a vast network of canals and pipelines that delivers water from Notthern California to farmlands :
and cities to the south.

The order was largely a response to glashed allocations from the state, and included a 35% reduction in
water use for nearly 7 million people in parts of Los Angeles, Ventura and San Bernardino counties,

The communitics were able to “cut their water use enough to stretch the available water supplies for nine
months, until restrictions were lifted in March,” said Brad Coffey, manager of MWD’s Water Resource
Management group.




SECTION\gh _PAGENO.-D __

But while the region succeeded in stretching scarce supplies, Coffey noted that operating under
emergency restrictions is considered a last resort and “not a sign of success.”

“We have been working for years to prepare for a changed climate, but these changes are coming even
soonet than predicted, and we must move fast to adapt,” he said.

The agency is working toward more sustained reductions in water use through investments in new
infrastrycture and local supplies, and is encouraging more water-efficient landscapes, irrigation systems
and indoor plumbing and appliances, he said.

In response to the MWD’s ordet, one of its largest customers, the Los Angeles Department of Water and
Power, opted to place its entire service area of about 4 million people under two-day-a-week watering
limits in an effort to stay at or below a volumetric allocation during the drought.

The effort was successful, according to the DWP.

“LADWRP, through the tireless efforts of our customers and staff, was able to stay below the MWD

volumetric allocation every month it was in place from June 2022 through March 2023,” spokesperson
Mia Rose-Wong said in an email.

However, the DWP did not come close to the 15% reduction requested by Newsom, with cumulative
savings of 5%, or 5 gallons per person per day, the analysis found.

Rose-Wong said customers have made aggressive efforts toward efficiency over the last three decades, so
“it is getting progressively harder for our customers to reduce” daily gallons per person.

“Yet, we're proud of our customers’ response in diligently maintaining their water-efficient habits, as
water use has dropped by over 30% in the past 15 years,” Rose-Wong said.

She added that the DWP uses a 12-month rolling average to track its savings in order to account for
changes in population and weather throughout the year. L.A.’s 12-month rolling average for residential,
commercial and industrial users went from 113 gallons per person per day in July 2021 to “below 105~
gallons in March. For comparison, the same 12-month rolling average was 126 gallons statewide, she
said.

Not all of the Los Angeles area was as successful, however,

El Segundo used 25% more water between July 2021 and March, more than any other district in the state.
City officials said the high consumption was largely due to a massive sewage spill at the Hyperion
sewage treatment plant in 2021, The spill resulted in the Joss of production of recyeled water, which had
to be replaced with potable water for several months.




SECTION1gh_ PacE No._Y

The Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District in far Northern California was technically the top
performing district in the state, reducing its water use by 41%. However, general manager John *
Friedenbach said the numbers were somewhat skewed because its largest water user, an electricity plant,

went off line in 2022. The rest of the district’s savings was “pretty average,” he said.

The next biggest saver in the state, the city of Healdsburg, in Sonoma County, saw a 35% reduction.
Healdsburg has long been touted as an example of efficient water savings, achieving significant
reductions through household water use caps, a recycled water hauling program, a near-total ban on
outdoor irrigation and other conservation efforts.

But while the wet winter offered California a much needed reprieve, experts and officials said now is not
the time for residents to ease up. While bouts of extreme precipitation are becoming more frequent, the
region will continue to grow hotter and drier overall because of climate change.

“People might be wondering why we should be worrying about saving when Tulare Lake has re-formed,
and I think it’s really just being aware that we are facing these long-term challenges,” said Ely, of the
state water board. She noted that hotter and drier conditions could diminish 10% of existing water
supplies by 2040.

“And so all of the water-saving habits that we have cultivated over the last decade are going to continue
to serve us in the face of long-term aridification,” she said.

The state is working to roll out its new “Making Conservation a California Way of Life” framework, Ely
said, which will establish unique goals for its more than 400 urban water retail suppliers and help drive
long-term savings across the state, among other efforts.

The state Legislature is also weighing two bills that could lead to more savings, including one prohibiting
the use of potable water on some decorative grasses, and another that would require nonresidential
projects to transition to low-water and local native plants.

But California is also facing significant cuts from one of its water lifelines, the shrinking Colorado River,
in the years ahead.

Cooley, of the Pacific Institute, said those cuts, along with projections for more arid conditions, mean
maintaining efficiency and an ethos of conservation are critically important for California and the West.

“We need to still be pushing toward efficiency so that we make the best use of the resources that we now
have,” she said, “and to start preparing for the next drought, which could be just around the corner.”



SECTION (¢ (,_PAGENO._| ___

LoCO STAFF / ToODAY 6/13/23 @ 11:40 A.M. / CANNABIS, CRIME

‘Multiple Individuals’ Fled Into the Woods During Marjiuana

Enforcement Team’s Search of Tllegal Grow Near McClellan Mountain,
HSCO Says

Press release from the Humboldt County Sheriff's Office:

On June 7-8, 2023, deputies with the Humboldt County Sheriff's Office Marijuana Enforcement
Team (MET) served a search warrant resulting from a month-long investigation into an illegal
commercial cannabis cultivation operation in the McClellan Mountain area. Representatives with
the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, Humboldt County DHHS Environmental Health —
HazMat Unit and Humboldt County Code Enforcement assisted in the service of the warrant.

One parcel, located above Little Larabee Creek, was investigated during the service of the
warrant. The parcel did not possess the required county permit and state license to cultivate

cannabis commercially. Upon deputies’ arrival to the property, multtiple individuals fled into the
surrounding wooded area.

During the search of the parcel, deputies located 13 large, multi-story grow houses being
powered by 14 commercial-size generators. Over 200,000 gallons of diesel, used to power the
generators, was found being improperly stored on the parcel in aboveground storage tanks.
Nearby these tanks and generators, HazMat investigators documented evidence of fuel spills.
Additionally, deputies observed numerous discarded burnt generators and evidence of small
wildland fires, including torched trees, in close proximity to these grow houses.

Environmental scientists on scene located four man-made dams which had been placed in the
Little Larabee Creek to supply the operation with water.

During the service of the warrant, deputies eradicated approximately 18,511 growing cannabis
plants, destroyed over 1,370 pounds of processed cannabis and seized four firearms.
Assisting agencies found the following violations:

» Nine water diversion/stream alteration violations (up to $8,000 fine per day, per
violation);

+ Two water pollution violations (up to $20,000 fine per day, per violation);

» Three depositing trash in or near a waterway violations (up to $20,000 fine per day, per
violation);

+ Failure to establish a Hazardous Materials Business Plan (HMBP) {(up to $5,000 per day,
per violation);

» Failure to report a release or threatened release of a hazardous material (up to $5,000
per day, per violation);

« Failure to acquire an EPA ID number (up to $70,000 per day, per violation);

« Failure to prevent a hazardous waste release (up to $70,000 per day, per violation);

» Failure to properly dispose of universal waste batteries (up to $70,000 per day, per
violation);

+ Failure to make a hazardous waste determination {up to $70,000 per day, per violation);

« Failure to properly label hazardous waste (up to $70,000 per day, per violation);




SECTION_[C, ,PAGENO.__ 3. _

» Hazardous waste accumulation storage time exceeded (up to $70,000 per day, per
violation);

» Failure to close hazardous waste containers (up to $70,000 per day, per violation);

» Disposal of or causing the disposal of hazardous waste at an unauthorized point (up to
$70,000 per day, per violation):

+ Disposal of used oil by discharge to sewers, drainage systems, surface water or
groundwater, watercourses, or marine waters; by incineration or burning as fuel; or by
deposit on land {up to $70,000 per day, per violation);

+ Failure to prepare a SPCC plan (up to $5,000 per day, per violation);

« Failure to provide secondary containment for aboveground tanks (up to $5,000 per day,
per violation);

» Failure to obtain authorization for the storage of more than 1,320 gallons of petroleum.

Additional violations with civil fines are expected to be filed by the assisting agencies.

This case is still under investigation. No arrests were made during the service of the warrant.
Upon completion of this investigation, the case will be forwarded to the Humboldt County District
Attorney's Office for review and charging decision.

Anyone with information about this case or related criminal activity is encouraged to call the
Humboldt County Sheriff's Office at (707) 445-7251 or the Sheriff's Office Crime Tip line at (707)
268-2539.




secnowm_, PAGENO, |

NEWSWEEK TECH & SCIENCE

California's Greatest Water Gain for Decades Seen in Satellite Images
BY JESS THOMSON ON 6/12/23 AT 5:50 AM EDT

California has seen a huge amount of water returned to its drought-hit soils because of intense

storms and huge snowmelt since the beginning of 2023.

Data from the Gravity Recovery and Climate Experiment Follow-On (GRACE-FO) satellite

mission, a partnership between NASA and the German Research Centre for Geosciences
(GFZ), shows that California has just seen its greatest year-over-year water gains for two

decades.

GRACE-FO found that the water contained in lakes, rivers, soil, snowpack and underground
aquifers in California's Central Valley rose by around 20 inches between October 2022 and

March 2023. The average increase during the same period is normally only around half that

amount.

October 2022 S b March 2023

GRACE-FO data shows huge gains in the amount of water in California's San Joaquin,

Sacramento and Tulare river basins (outlined in yellow) from October 2022 to March 2023. Blue



SECTION MLL PAGENO._ 3

colors show areas wetter than average relative to 2004—-2010, while red colors represent an

area being drier than average.

NASA maps show the results of this deluge of water, revealing how in October 2022, much of
the Central Valley was parched in October. As of March, it had above average amounts of
water—with blue colors on the maps showing areas wetter than average relative to 2004-2010,

and red colors representing an area being drier than average.
This water has served to pull the state out of its intense drought conditions.

U.S. Drought Monitor data showed that on September 27 2022, the entire state was in some

form of drought condition, with 0.24 percent in "abnormally dry" conditions, 5.75 percent in
"moderate drought," 53.11 percent in "severe drought," 24.34 percent in "extreme drought," and

16.57 percent in "exceptional drought."

By March 3, this had shifted significantly, with 26.84 percent of the state being drought-free,
30.10 percent "abnormally dry," 24.06 percent in "moderate drought," and 19.00 percent in

"severe drought,” with no areas in the more intense categories.

As of June 6, 70.88 percent of the state was drought-free, with only 4.63 percent in "moderate

drought,” and none in more severe conditions.

The water influx from rains and snowmelt has helped to refill some of the dwindling reservoirs

and lakes across California. Lake Shasta reached nearly full capacity in May for the first time in

four years, while Lake Oroville is now 97 percent full.

It has also caused maijor flooding in some areas, with Yosemite National Park being inundated

with meltwater. Previously dried lakes have rapidly burst their banks, with Tulare Lake growing

to nearly the size of Lake Tahoe.

Despite the positive impact of this water on California's drought-ridden environment, it won't be

enough to fully pull the state out of drought.



SECTION Le( \ _ PAGE NO.3 -

"This will definitely help drought conditions in the short run. In the long run we still face risks
associated with higher temperatures due to climate change," Tom Corringham, a research

economist at the Scripps Institution of Oceanography in San Diego, previously told Newsweek.

"Some areas will get wetter and some will get drier. In all areas we expect more precipitation to
fall as rain than as snow, which makes capturing and storing the water more challenging," he
said. "Similarly, we expect precipitation to be maore concentrated in the winter months, with less

rain in spring and fall, and more rain falling in intense atmospheric river storms. This makes

water management more challenging."

Atmospheric rivers are storms akin to rivers in the sky that dump massive amounts of rain and
can cause flooding, trigger mudslides and result in loss of life and enormous property damage,

according to Reuters.

The effects of climate change are likely fo make it harder for California to recover all of its lost

water, and make it more difficult to predict future weather patterns.

"In an ideal world we'd have consistent year-to-year precipitation and consistently ample
snowpack in the Sierra and the Rockies, but climate change is making the system more volatile

and increasingly difficult to manage," Corringham said.



SECTION p6__PAGENO, |

Press Releases
VALADAOQO, COSTA INTRODUCE LEGISLATION TO IMPROVE
DRINKING WATER QUALITY, FOREST HEALTH

Washington, June 13,2023 | Faith Mabry *~

Congressman David G. Valadao (CA-
22) and Congressman Jim Costa (CA-
21} introduced the Headwaters
| Protection Act. This bipartisan,
bicameral legislation increases
investment to improve the health of
watersheds and ensure private

WASHINGTON ~ Today, Congressman David G. Valadao (CA-22) and Congressman Jim Costa (CA-
21} introduced the Headwaters Protection Act. This bipartisan, bicameral legislation increases investment
to improve the health of watersheds and ensure private investments benefit downstream communities.

L

“Water is the lifeblood of the Central Valley,” said Congressman Valadao. “Ensuring our rural
communities have access to safe, clean, and reliable water is my top priority. Valley communities who are
often forced to rely on surface and groundwater will benefit from increased investments to improve our
watersheds and prevent pollution.”

“The health of California's watersheds, waterways, and wetlands are inter-connected to the San Joaquin
Valley’s agricultural economy. Investing in watershed health leads to improving access to clean drinking
water and greater water availability downstream,” said Congressman Costa. “These pieces of legislation
will boost funding for critical conservation programs to improve the resiliency and quality of our natural
resources.”

Background:

The Water Source Protection Program (WSPP) was authorized in the 2018 Farm Bill to foster public and
private partnerships between agricultural producers, businesses, cities, and the U.S. Forest Service to
improve watershed and forest health, Unfortunately, the program had flaws that resulted in little private
sector buy-in, and the program was never fully funded. The Headwaters Protection Act reforms the Water
Source Protection Program (WSPP) to boost private sector participation and increase investment. The
Headwaters Protection Act:

¢ Reauthorizes the WSPP at $30 million annually from 2024-2028,

»  Expands the list of eligible lands and entities to now include small ditch companies, acequias,
wastewater treatment providets, and community land grants.

¢ Lowers the threshold for smaller private sector companies to engage in public/private
partnerships by reducing the non-federal match requirement from 50% to 20%.

» Cuts down on duplicative application materials and red tape for existing Watershed Restoration
Action Plans.

» Establishes clear priorities that program funding should be aquatic-focused efforts,




G:AM\I8\COSTA\COSTA_022. XML, SECTION [pc, _PAGENO. X

.....................................................................

118t CONGRESS
18T SESSION H. R.

To amend the Healthy Forests Restoration Act of 2003 to reauthorize and
mprove the Water Source Protection Program, and for other purposes.

(Original Signature of Membsr)

IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. CosTa introduced. the following bill; which was referred to the Committee
on

A BILL

To amend the Healthy IForests Restoration Act of 2003
to reauthorize and improve the Water Source Protection
Program, and for other purposes.

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representa-
tives of the Uniled States of America in Congress assembled,
SECTION 1. SHORT TITLE,

This Act may be cited as the “Headwaters Protection
Act of 2023”7,

th B W N -

gA\WVHLD\O52623\D052623,024.xmi (882072(1}
May 26, 2023 (10:55 a.m.)




GAM\VIB\COSTA\COSTA_022 XML SECTION [ € PAGE NO. )
2
1 SEC. 2. WATER SOURCE PROTECTION PROGRAM REAU-

2 THORIZATION AND IMPROVEMENTS.
3 Section 303 of the Healthy Forests Restoration Act
4 of 2003 (16 U.8.C. 65642) is amended—
5 (1} in subsection (a)—
6 (A) in paragraph (1)—
7 (1) by redesignating subparagraphs
8 (@) and (H) as subparagraphs (K) and
9 (L), respectively; and
10 (ii) by inserting after subparagraph
11 (I} the following:
12 “((3) an acequia association;
13 ~ “(H) a local, regional, or other publi¢ enti-
14 ty that manages stormwater or wastewater re-
15 sources or other related water infrastructure;
16 “(I) a land-grant mercedes;
17 “(J) a local, regional, or other private enti-
18 ty that has water delivery authority;”;
19 (B) by redesignating paragraphs (1)
20 through (7) as paragraphs (2) through (8), re-
21 spectively; and
22 (C) by inserting before paragraph (2) (as
23 s0 redesignated) the following:
24 “(1) ADJACENT LAND—The term ‘adjacent
25 land’ means non-Federal land, including State, local,
26 and private land, that is adjacent to, and within the
g\VHLD\052623\D062623.024xml  {88207211)

May 26, 2023 (10:55 a.m.)




G\MALEA\COSTAVCOSTA_022. XML

O 60 1 A W A W N e

T T e T e T e
R38R B OS » 3 a3 & 2 ©® 0 = ©

gWHLID\052623\D052623.024. xml
May 28, 2023 (10:55 a.m.)

3

same watershed as, National Forest System land on
which a watershed protection and restoration project

is carried out under this section.”;

(2) in subsection (b)—
(A) by inserting “and adjacent land” be-
fore the period at the end;
(B) by striking “The Secretary shall” and
ingerting the following:
“(1) IN GENERAL—The Secretary shall’”; and
(C) by adding at the end the following:

“(2) REQUIREMENTS.—A watershed protection

and restoration project under the Program shall—

“(A) protect and restore watershed health,
water supply and quality, a municipal or agri-
eultural water supply system, and water-related
infrastructure;

“(B) protect and restore forest health from
insect infestation and disease or wildfire; or

“(C) advance any eombination of the pur-
poses deseribed in subparagraphs (A) and (B).

“(3) PrIORITIES.—In selecting watershed pro-

tection and restoration projects under the Program,

the Secretary shall give priority to projects that

would—

(882072[1)

SECTION_{e€. _PaGENO.Y_




GAMM B\COSTAVCOSTA_022. XML

SECTION (56, PAGENO._D

4
1 “(A) provide risk management benefits as-
2 sociated with drought, wildfire, post-wildfire
3 conditions, extreme weather, or flooding, includ-
4 ing minimizing risks to watershed health, water
5 supply and quality, and water-related infra-
6 structure, including municipal and agricultural
7 water supply systems;
8 “(B) be designed to support aquatic res-
9 toration and conservation efforts that com-
10 plement existing or planned forest restoration
11 or wildfire risk reduction efforts;
12 “(0) include—
13 “(i) partners with demonstrated ea-
14 pacity and success in designing and imple-
15 menting ecological restoration projects,
16 wildfire risk reduction efforts, or post-wild-
17 fire restoration projects; or
18 “(ii) in the case of disadvantaged
19 communities that have historically lacked
20 access to adequate resources, partners with
21 a strong likelihood of success in designing
22 and implementing a watershed protection
23 and restoration project; and
24 “(D)(1) inelude a contribution of funds or
25 in-kind support from non-Federal partners in
gA\WHLDW052623\D052623,024.xml (8820721}

May 26, 2023 {10:55 a.m.)




SECTION (g€ _, PAGE NO.
G:AMMB\COSTA\COSTA_022 XML g -!-—

5

1 an amount greater than the amount required
2 under subsection (g){(2);

3 “(ii) provide quantifiable benefits to water
4 supply or guality and include the wse of nature-
5 based solutions, such as restoring wetland and
6 riparian ecosystems;

7 “(iit) be designed to improve—

8 “(I) resilience to climate change; or

9 “(II) watershed and fire resilience; or
10 “(iv) include such other eharacteristics as
11 the Secretary determines to be appropriate.

12 “"(4) CONDITIONS FOR PROJECTS ON ADJACENT
13 LAND.—

14 “(A) IN GENERAL.—No project or activity
15 may be carried out under this section on adja-
16 cent land unless the owner of the adjacent land
17 provides express support for, and is a willing
18 and engaged partner in, carrying out that
19 project or activity.
20 “(B) ErrFrCcT.—Nothing in this section
21 authorizes any change in-—
22 “(1) the.ownership of adjacent land on
23 which a project or activity is carried out
24  under this section; or

g\VHLD\052628\D052623.024ml  (88207211)

May 26, 2023 (10:55 am.)




GAVMNACOSTAVCOSTA,_022. XML SECTION “ ' PAGE Nb /|

v o0 -1 o8 U B W N

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

g\WHLD\052623\D052623.024,xm!
May 26, 2023 (10:55 a.m.}

6

“(i1) the management of adjacent land
on which a project or activity is carried out
under this section, ecxcept during the car-
rying out of that project or activity.”;

(3) in subsection (¢)— |

(A) in paragraph (1)—

(i) by inserting “and adjacent land”
after “watersheds’;

(ii) by striking the period at the end
and inserting ‘‘; or’’;

(iii) by striking “with end water
users”’ and inserting the following: “with—
“(A) end water users’; and

(iv) by adding at the end the fol-
lowing:

“(B) end waters users to protect and re-
store the condition of National Forest water-
sheds and adjacent land that providé water for
the benefit of another end water user.”;

(B) in paragraph (2)—

(i) in subparagraph (C), by striking
“or” after the semicolon;

(ii) by redesignating subparagraph
(D) as subparagraph (E); and

(8820721)




GAMMS\COSTA\COSTA_022.XML SECTION _(.O_GL_, PAGE NO, %
7
1 (1) by inserting after subparagraph
2 (C) the following:
3 “(D) a good neighbor agreement entered
4 into under section 8206 of the Agricultural Act
5 of 2014 (16 U.S.C. 2113a); or”’; and
6 (C) by adding at the end the following:
7 “(3) LIEADERSHIP BY NON-FEDERAL PART-
8 NERS.—The Secretary shall facilitate a leadership
9 role for non-Federal partners in carrying out assess-
10 ments, planning, project design, and projeet imple-
11 mentation under this section.”;
12 (4) in subsection (d)—
13 (A) in paragraph (2), by striking “shall be
14 conducted” and ingerting the following: “‘shall
15 be~—-
16 “(A) designed to protect and restore eco-
17 logical integrity (as defined in section 219.19 of
18 title 36, Code of Federal Regulations (as in ef-
19 fect on the date of enactment of this subpara-
20 graph));
21 “B) based on the best available scientific
22 information; and
23 “(C) eonducted”’; and
24 (B) by adding at the end the following:
gAVHLD\052623\0052623.024.xmil (88207211}

May 26, 2023 (10:55 a.m.)




GAMM S\COSTANCOSTA_022 XML

8
1 “4) REDUCING REDUNDANCY.—An existing
2 watershed plan, such as a watershed protection and
3 restoration action plan developed wunder section
4 304(a)(3), or other applicable watershed planning
5 documents may be used as the basis for a water
6 source management plan under this subsection.”;
7 (5) in subsection (e)}(1), by striking “purpose
8 of—"" in the matter preceding subparagraph (A) and
9 all that follows through the period at the end of sub-
10 paragraph (C) and inserting ‘“purpose of advancing
i1 any of the purposes described in subsection (b)(2).”;
12 and
13 (6) in subsection (g)—
14 (A) in paragraph (2)—
15 (i) by striking “at least equal to” and
16 inserting ‘“not less than 20 pereent of”’;
17 (i1) by striking “The Seeretary” and
18 . ingerting the following:
19 “(A) IN GENERAL.---Subject to subpara-
20 graph (1), the Secretary’’; and
21 (1ii) by adding at the end the fol-
22 lowing:
23 “(B) WAIVER.—The Secretary may waive
24 the requirement under subparagraph (A) in the
25 discretion of the Secretary.”; and
gA\WVHLD\052623\D052623.024.xml (88207211}

May 26, 2023 {10:55 &.m.}

SECTION (g, PAGENO.{




GAMIB\COSTANCOSTA_022. XML SECTION_LQE;_, PAGE NO. |0

9
1 (B) in paragraph (4)—
2 (1) in subparagraph (B), by striking
3 “$10,000,000 for each of fiscal years 2019
4 through 2023” and inserting ‘‘$30,000,000
5 for each of fiscal years 2024 through
6 2033"; and
7 (i) by adding at the end the fol-
8 lowing:
9 “(D) SET-ASIDE FOR PARTNER PARTICIPA-
10 TION IN PLANNING AND CAPACITY.—Of the
11 amounts made available under subparagraph
12 (B) to carry out this section for each fiscal
13 vear, the Secretary shall use not less than 10
14 percent for non-Federal partner technical as-
15 sistance participation and capacity-building ef-
16 forts in developing or implementing a water
17 source management plan under gsubsection
18 (d).”.

19 SEC. 3. WATERSHED CONDITION FRAMEWORK IMPROVE-

20 MENTS.
21 Section 304 of the Healthy Forests Restoration Aect
22 of 2003 (16 U.S.C. 6543) is amended—
23 (1) in subsection (a)—
24 (A) in paragraph (b), by striking “and’ at
25 the end;

gAVHLD\052628\D052623.024xml  (88207211)

May 26, 2023 (10:55 am.)




G:\MMB\COSTAVCOSTA_022. XML SECTION I‘ZQ, _, PAGE NO. \

]

10

1 (B) in paragraph (6), by striking the pe-
2 riod at the end and inserting ““; and”; and

3 (C) by adding at the end the following:

4 “(7) that ensures that management activities
5 and authorizations do not result in long-term deg-
6 radation of watershed health or lower the classifica-
7 tion under paragraph (1) of any watershed in a Na-
8 tional Forest.”; and

9 (2) by adding at the end the following:
10 “(d) AUTHORIZATION OF APPROPRIATIONS.—There

11 is authorized to be appropriated to carry out this section
12 $30,000,000 for each of fiscal years 2024 through 2028.”.
13 SEC. 4. EFFECT,

14 Nothing in this Act or an amendment made by this
15 Act shall be construed—

16 (1) to supersede or in any manner affeet or
17 conflict with State water law, MFederal water law,
18 interstate compacts, or treaty obligations; or

19 (2} to authorize any acquisition of land by the
20 TFederal Government or any exertion of Federal con-
21 trol over non-Kederal land.

|
g\WVHLDA05E2623\D052623.024.xml (882072i1)

May 26, 2023 (10:55 am.)




secion(e £ _pace no, |

o . v A e eV P

From Christine Souza, Ag Alert
06/23/2023

As California experiences wild swings in climate from drought to floods, critics of the
state’s water rights system seek to overhaul rules that date back to California’s founding
in 1850.

Three water rights bills are pending in the California Legislature that would expand the
authority of the California State Water Resources Control Board. The bills are opposed
by a large coalition that includes dozens of farm groups, water agencies and business
groups.

Kristopher Anderson, legislative advocate for the Association of California Water
Agencies, said the bills “collectively and individually present a foundational change in
the way California’s water rights system is implemented, managed and enforced.”

ACWA, which represents more than 460 public water agencies that deliver 90% of
water throughout the state, is joined by the California Farm Bureau and others in
opposing the three measures:

» Assembly Bill 460, by Assembly Member Rebecca Bauer-Kahan, D-Orinda, would give
the state water board authority to issue interim relief orders to curtail water diversions.
The measure also would increase civil fines for violations of the orders.

* AB 1337, by Assembly Member Buffy Wicks, D-Qakland, would give the water board
legal authority to override claims of water rights for the purpose of ordering curtailments.

* Senate Bill 389, by State Sen. Ben Allen, D-Santa Monica, would authorize the state
board to adopt regulations that enable it to investigate the diversion and use of water
from a stream system to determine basis of right.

“The bills would authorize the state water board to impose punitive penalties on even
law-abiding water right holders, curtail water rights in any year and strip entities of their
water rights,” Anderson said. “This legislation would create a significant amount of
uncertainty and lead to unintended consequences, not just for water right holders, but
communities and businesses across the state that depend on a reliable water supply.”

The bills, including two passed in the Assembly and one that has cleared the state
Senate, follow actions identified in an April report on managing water scarcity
underwritten by the state and conducted by the University of California, Berkeley,
Center for Law, Energy & the Environment.

The report recommended the Legislature and the state water board establish routine
curtailments. “To effectively manage California’s surface water resources, the state
needs to implement curtailments on a regular basis, not only in times of extreme crisis,”
it said.




secTion Lp - PaceNo,_ 9

e e}

The report also called for stronger penalties for violation of curtailments and improved
data that require more frequent reporting.

California Farm Bureau senior policy advocate Alexandra Biering said the bills are an
attempt fo tighten enforcement and are a response to past instances of water rights
holders ignoring curtailment orders and only paying small fines after diverting water.

“The penalties in place for illegally diverting water have not been a deterrent,” Biering
said.

The coalition opposing the measures understands that the state must be agile and
responsive to California’s changing hydrology, Biering said, adding, “We want the state
water board to be effective, but these are bills that would really upend the water rights
system in the state.”

She said the bills go too far in a legislative overreach that could have severe
consequences.

“When you're dealing with something that is one of the bedrock resource inputs for the
fourth-largest economy in the world, it is worth being thoughtful, taking your time and
doing it right,” Biering said. “With these bills, the state water board would no longer have
increased powers during periads of scarcity, but all of the time.”

The coalition emphasized the state’s water-priority system plays an essential role in the
California economy, affecting water management, agriculture, housing construction,
jobs and water affordability and property values.

“Billions of dollars have been invested over decades to ensure that we can capture and
store water to serve Californians in all types of water years,” Anderson said. “The water
system has served as the foundation of those types of investments, so this idea of

wholesale change to the water right system does create a significant amount of
uncertainty for water rights holders.”

According to ACWA, credit-rating agencies have begun to ask how pending water rights
bills could affect land values, finance and investments in new water projects.

Accredited rural appraiser Janie Gatzman, owner of Gatzman Appraisal in Oakdale,
said data trends show water policy decisions, such as California’s 2014 Sustainable
Groundwater Management Act, affect land values. She cited figures published in a

March study by the California Chapter of the American Society of Farm Managers and
Rural Appraisers.

Tracking land values by water source in Fresno and Madera counties, excluding
federally supplied water, buyers paid 48% more for land planted with almonds in a water
district compared to other almond properties that operated outside a water district, she

said. In 2022, buyers paid 105% more for properties planted to almonds with a more
certain water supply.




secTion_Lgt pace N0, B

“It is clear by the data that as the threat of SGMA pumping restrictions increased in this
region, values for both irrigated cropland and almond orchards that relied only on well
water for irrigation decreased, while values for both irrigated cropland and almond
orchards that were in-district increased,” said Gatzman, who farms almonds in
Stanislaus County. “The unintended effects of these regulations are guite widespread in
the Central Valley, more so than most legislators realize.”

Buyers and landowners fled areas that are now seen as water insecure, Gatzman said,
adding that this trend will increase where water rights are less secure and water is less
abundant.

“It's very expensive to farm in California,” she said. “Most farmers have to have a loan
on their property to farm, so now, loan-to-value ratios are getting into dangerous
territory, especially with a drop in nut prices.”

“There are a lot of people farming in the red and have been farming in the red for the
past several years,” she added. “Go and decrease their land value, and their banker’s
going to come and call the loan due.”

Increased regulations, Gatzman said, ultimately impact farmworkers and associated

businesses, such as irrigation supply companies, nurseries, crop consultants and
equipment dealers.

“Ali of the communities rely on a healthy ag economy. What are they going fo do if
values decline this much?” Gatzman said. “We've already seen that happen in
Westlands (Water District) with so much land going unplanted due to no water.”

This article first appeared on Ag Alert. Christine Souza is an assistant editor of Ag Alert.
She may be contacted at csouza@cfbf.com.




secTion {29 _ page NO. |

it S gy

GRACE GEDYE, CALMATTERS / TODAY @ 7 AM./ SACRAMENTO
LOST COAST OUTPOST

Will California’s Largest Pensions,
CalPERS and CalSTRS, Divest
From Fossil Fuels?

Climate activists and retirecs have pushed retirement funds in Maine and New York to sell their
stocks in fossil fuel companies. The push is called “divestment”, and it’s a move that
the University of California has embraced as well,

Now, divestment may be coming to more pensions near you.

The California Legislature is considering a bill that would require the pension funds for state
wotkers and teachers to sell holdings in the 200 largest publicly traded fossil fuel companies by
July 2031. The bill would also stop the funds from making new investments in those companies
starting in 2024.

These pension funds aren’t simple bank accounts, they’re big-time institutional investors.

The California Public Employees’ Retirement System has about $459 billion in assets, making it
the largest public pension fund in the nation and one of the largest private equity investors in the
world according to the agency’s website. When it changes tack, the world of finance takes note.

The California State Teachers” Retirement System is the second largest public pension fund in
the U.S. Together, the two pension funds cover more than 3 million Californians and their
families.

Proponents of the bill say it’s important that California put its money where its mouth is, so to
speak, on climate policy. Foes of the move say anything that might hurt investment returns
should be off the table.

“We’re not saying the intentions around this are not good,” said Marcie Frost, CEO of CalPERS,
in an interview with CalMatters. “But they’re not coming through an investor lens. It feels like

they’re coming through a morality lens. And we can’t use our own personal values, or our
personal morals, to be able to decide how we invest the assets of this portfolio.”

Both pensions are underfunded; if either had to immediately pay out all the benefits
they owe, they wouldn’t have enough money.

If CalPERS and CalSTRS shed their investments in the largest oil and gas companies, what
would it mean Tor the teachers and state workers counting on their retirement checks?




~meTioN (o 5_n PAGENO._&-

Why climate activists are pushing for divestment

For some, it would be a relief.

“When I was younger, I was told by the adults around me that I should work toward obtaining a
career with the state of California,” said Francis Macias, a state parks employee who called into a
pension fund board meeting in March. A member of the advocacy group Fossil Free California,
she said those same adults had told her such a job would come with perks like stable hours —
and a nice pension.

But now, Macias said, “I feel like I’'m living in a nightmare. Every day, | experience great
anxiety knowing my hard-earned pension is funding climate collapse.”

The state worlker pension fund has an estimated $9.4 billion in energy company investments it
would have to divest under the proposed bill, about 2% of the fund. On the list are companies
you’ve probably heard of, including Exxon Mobil and Shell, and ones you probably haven’t,
such as Ovintiv Inc. and Cenovus Energy. The teachers’ pension fund would have to divest an
estimated $5.4 billion, or about 1.7% of its assets.

The bill’s backers include many environmental and climate groups, as well as some unions
representing workers who receive pensions, such as the California Faculty Association and the
California Nurses Association. But there are other unions, like the California Professional
Firefighters and the State Building and Construction Trades Council, that oppose the effort,

along with California State Retirees, an organization for retired state workers, and the leadership
of the pension funds themselves.

The goal of divestment pushes, climate advocates say, isn’t to directly reduce emissions.

“It’s about calling (fossil fuel companies) out on their immoral activities, and the political
consequences of that, which is weakening them politically, so that politicians stop taking their
money and politicians stop doing their bidding,” said Carlos Davidson, a retired faculty member
of San Francisco State University who receives a pension. He worked on a divestment campaign
at the university, and has been involved in the push to divest the state workers’ pension for
nearly a decade.

“Tt is true that divestment does not have direct financial impacts on companies,” Davidson said.
“It’s the political effects that really matter. And that is a harder, longer-term, more fuzzy
process.”

Davidson lives in Pacifica, off of a combination of his pension and social security benefits.

“I could not have retired and I could not pay my bills right now if I didn’t have my [state]
pension,” he said.




SEGTIQN_LQ%_ PAGENO,_ >

What are the costs of divestment?

There’s also a camp that thinks divestment would be a bad move financially. That camp includes
the leadership of both pension funds.

At the state worker pension fund, the investment and actuarial teams estimated that if the fund
sold off its fossil fuel holdings it would get lower returns on its investments, translating to an
extra $327.6 million in costs per year for 20 years for employers, like schools, and state and local
governments, to meet obligations to retirees.

The state worker pension fund has divested before — from Iran, Sudan, thermal coal, and more.
In 2001, the fund divested its tobacco company holdings, worth about $525 million according to
news reports at the time. In the more than 20 years since, that move has translated to about $4.3
billion in lost investment profits, according to a 2022 report from Wilshire Advisors. But some
divestments, like those from thermal coal, and Iran, have translated to small gains.

When economists from the University of Groningen in the Netherlands and the University of St.
Andrews in Scotland compared the financial performance of investment portfolios with and
without fossil fuel company stocks from 1927-2016, they found that divested portfolios “would
not have significantly underperformed” during that period.

“It’s not just the oil and gas industry,” said pension fund CEO Frost. “What’s next? Divestment
from the airline industry, who uses a lot of oil and gas?” she said. “Pretty soon you get to the
point that (the pension) has nothing to invest in” and there’s no way to hit the high investment
returns the pension fund is tasked with hitting, she said.

“It’s the political effects that really matter. And that is a harder, longer-term, more fuzzy
process.”

— Carlos Davidson, retired faculty member of San Francisco State University who receives a
pension

This isn’t the first legislative push for fossil fuel divestment. Last year a similar bill was passed
by the Senate, and then died in the Assembly’s committee on public employment and retirement.
It might have a better shot this time, thanks to some political musical chairs. Previously, the
Assembly’s public employment committee was led by Jim Cooper, an Elk Grove Democrat who
was opposed to the Legislature directing state pension funds on how to invest, Frost said. Now
he’s left the Assembly, and the committee has a new chairperson, Tina McKinnor, a Democrat
from Inglewood.

A complicating factor is that the pension funds have a “fiduciary duty” under California’s
constitution. That means that the people overseeing the funds are legally required to invest
prudently, and act exclusively to benefit the fund’s members.

Some of the bill’s opponents say that requiring the funds to divest from fossil fuels would
conflict with their fiduciary duty to their members, including the California Professional
Firefighters, a union.



SECTIONiziﬁr_, PAGE NO, ﬁ

“Forcing any California pension system to make investment decisions that may harm the fund in
an attempt, in this case, to affect global climate policy, violates their fiduciary mandate and puts
the retirements of hard-working Californians at risk,” wrote president Brian Rice in a statement.

Already, the concept of fiduciary responsibility is causing legal headaches for divestment efforts.
Three New York City pension funds are being sued for allegedly violating their fiduciary
duties after they divested $4 billion in fossil fuel holdings.

Ultimately, it’s up to the pension funds themselves to determine whether divesting would
conflict with their mandate.

The state worker pension fund hasn’t done a full analysis yet, but, said Frost, “my impression on
this is that it would violate the board’s fiduciary duty to do this.”

The bill has an escape clause of sorts, making it clear that the pension funds don’t have to sell off
their investments if doing so would conflict with their fiduciary duties. That means there’s a
scenario in which the Legislature passes the bill and then the funds say that divesting goes
against their responsibilities to the beneficiaries, and nothing changes in practice.

Davidson, the retiree pushing for divestment, says that’s not the outcome he’s expecting.

But it wouldn’t be all bad, he said. What really matters is the politics, and “the vote of the
California Legislature to divest is really powerful, and that’s going to get press coverage around
the world,” Davidson said. “That is part of the outcome that we want.”

HHt

CalMatters.org is a nonprofit, nonpartisan media venture explaining California policies and
politics.



CORRESPONDENCE




Southern Trinity Area Rescue

Serving Southern Trinity & Southeastern Humboldt Since 1979

H.BMWD. JuN -2 3

6/2/2023

Dear Hurnboldt Bay Municipal Water District Board of Directors

Southern Trinity Area Rescue (STAR) Ambulance has been serving the
Southern Trinity/ Eastern Humboldt region, including Ruth I.ake and the
upper Mad River, for over 40 years. We have always relied on volunteers
and donations to help the ambulance survive and provide 911 emergency
service for this 1200 square mile area; however, we have also had financial
aid from the state and federal governments in the past. The state pulled
funds from ambulance coverage long ago and starting about 5 years ago the
federal government has done the same, leaving the burden on the counties.
Since this change STAR has been struggling to stay furided and continue to
provide emergency service year-rotind,

We have many sources of funding we use each year, Trinity County,
Humboldt Measure Z, one-time small grants, fire contracts, patient revenue
and constant fundraisers and donations brought in by our volunteers.

Still with all of this, at best we fall $50,000.00 short of covering cost most
years.

STAR is proud to provide Emergency Medical services for an ares that
would otherwise have none and would love to continue to do so. We are
hoping the HBMWD might donate to STAR to help us bridge our budget
gap this coming year, 2023-24, and keep us in service for the community.

Thank you so much for your time and I hope to hear from you soon.

o o

—
Brooke Entsmlnger EMT-P

EMS Manager

707-777-1743 (Home)/ bentsminger@sthsclinic.org

o

Non-profit Tax ID# 94-2507342

321 Van Duzen Road, Bridgeville, California 95526
Telephone (707) 574-6616  Fax 707-574-6523
www sthsclinic.oro




BOARD OF DIRECTCRS

NEAL LATT, PRESIDENT

MICHELLE FULLER, VICE-PRESIDENT

J. BRUCE RUPP, SECRETARY-TREASURER

DAVID LINDBERG, ASSISTANT SECRETARY-TREASURER
SHERI WCO, DIRECTOR

GENERAL MANAGER
JOHN FRIEDENBACH

June 5, 2023

Rick Hanger, General Manager
Fieldbrook-Glendale CSD

PO Box 2715

McKinleyville, CA 95519

SECTION ] 1) _ PAGE NO.|

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

828 Seventh Street « Eureka, California 95501-1114
PO Box 85 « Eureka, California 95502-0095

Office 707-443-5018 Essex 707-822-2018

Fax 707-443-5731 707-822-8245

EMAIL OFFIGE@HBMWD.COM
Website: www.hbmwd.com

RE: DWR letter date 5-22-23 re: Inspection of FGCSD Water System

Hello Rick,

| received a copy of the inspection letter from DWR dated May 22, 2023 regarding the November 9, 2022

inspection. | noticed ltem 5. Managerial Consolidation was one of the suggested items.

If you would like to discuss this suggestion by Mr. Barry Sutter, please contact me at your earliest convenience. |

Respecﬁ%W C

John Friedenbach
General Manager




'SECTION1l0__PAGENO._ S~

FGCSD #1210020 2. May 22, 2023

5. Managerial Consolidation — Given that supply, daily operations, maintenanee, technical and
managetial requirements for this water system are provided or performed by Humboldt Bay
Municipal Water District-(HBMWD), this water system should consider a formal managerial

. consolidation, if feasible. Moreaver, consolidating with HBMWD may increase the economic
feasibility of future water” system.improvemernits such as.a new storage tank, pump station, or
mergency eqmpmen’r by sharmg costs. across.a iarger customer base , SR

6 Remmders

a.. Perform lead and coppersamp}mg at same approved 10.sites durmg elther June Juiy,
August, or September of 2023. S

b. Perform annual disinfection byproduc{ monitoring for fotal trihalo'methane's (TTHM)
and haloaoe’uc acids (HAAS in e[ther Ju!y, Auguet or September \

If you have any questlone or concerns regardmg thrs letter or the-enclosures, please contaet Scott
Gilbreath at (630) 224-4876 or me at (530) 224-4875.

- . g W y |
 STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD

o Enclosures :' )

Ge: John Fnedenback HBMWD Géneral Manager P.O. Box 95 Eureka CA 95502
Dale Davidsen, HBMWD Superlntendent P.0O. Box 95, Eureka CA 95502 ‘




et e e e}

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

828 Seventh Street » Eureka, California 95501-1114
PO Box 95 + Eureka, California 95502-0005

Offica 707-443-5018 Essex 707-822-2018

Fax 707-443-5731 707-822-8245

EMAIL CFFICE@HBMWD.COM

Website: www.hbmwd.com

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

NEAL LATT, PRESIDENT

MICHELLE FULLER, VICE-PRESIDENT

J. BRUGCE RUPP, SECRETARY-TREASURER

DAVID LINDBERG, ASSISTANT SECRETARY-TREASURER
SHERIWCOC, DIRECTOR

GENERAL MANAGER June 22, 2023
JOHN FRIEDENBACH

VIA EMAIL: Marjon.saulon@gov.ca.gov

Govemor Gavin Newsom

¢/o Marjon Saulon, Northern California Deputy Regional Director, External Affairs
1021 O Street, Suite 9000,Sacramento CA 95814

RE: PG&E Transmission of Hydro Electricity from the Gosselin Hydroelectric Plant

Dear Honorable Governor Newsom,

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District has a small capacity, 2 MW generator at our Gosselin Hydroelectric Fagility
located on the Mad River near Ruth California where we produce and sell renewable energy to PG&E. Dueto a

lightning strike in early April at the Low Gap PG&E substation on Highway 36 in Trinity County, the PG&E
transformer is out of commission preventing us from utilizing our hydro plant.

PG&E has informed us that without the transformer functioning, they can no longer take energy from our

hydroelectric facility. They also stated it could take anywhere from months to a year to replace the equipment. At
this point, we have been unable to sell electricity since April, 2023,

We belisve the electricity generated at the Gosselin Hydroslectric Plant is eligible for inclusion into the
Renewables Portfolio Standard, as enforced by the CPUC, as it is classified as “small hydra”. Since the power is
generated during the night and independent of wind, it may even be considered a Resource Adequacy product.
We are aware that both of these electricity sources are in high demand within California.

We are respectfully requesting any assistance you may be able to provide o expedite the replacement of the
transformer so we can begin supplying Renewables Portfolio power as soon as possible. As you can imagine,

this is also a large revenue loss for our small water district. The longer the delay, the more these two types of
energy are belng lost,

Thank you for your assistance!

B il

John Friedenbach
General Manager

C\

cc: Senator Mike McGuire
Asssmbly Member Jim Wood
Alison Talbott, Govemment Relations Rep, PG&E

SECTION_"1.C PAGENO.__|




SEGTION__/ & PAGENO.__J\

John Friedenbach

From: Dear, Dustin <DSDc@pge.com>

Sent: Friday, June 16, 2023 3:08 PM

To: Dale Davidsen

Cc: Crafton, Mike; Dillahunty, MaryAnn
Subject: RE: Mathews Dam (HBMWD) Export Update

Classification: Internal

Dale,

Apologies for the delay. Our team completed a walkdown on Wednesday, and | wanted to make sure you received the
most up to date information.

Based on the walkdown, it will take roughly 2 months to complete the pad and transformer replacement, Due to the
new transformers size, we are required to pour a new concrete pad which requires air quality board permits. Once
poured, there is a required curing time prior to placing the transformer. We know that this isn’t an ideal situation
considering the rain and snow the state received this year. Please know that we are working as expeditiously and safe as
possible to return your service back to its normal source.

Best,
Dustin

Dustin Dear

Pacific Gas & Electric Company

Manager, Distribution Operation Engineering
1020 Detroit Ave, Concord CA 94518

C: 415-948-0385 | DSDC@pge.com

From: Dale Davidsen <supt@hbmwd.com>

Sent: Wednesday, June 14, 2023 14:17

To: Dear, Dustin <DSDc@pge.com:>

Cc: Crafton, Mike <M2Cy@pge.com>; Dillahunty, MaryAnn <MMHe@pge,.com>
Subject: FW: Mathews Dam (HBMWD) Export Update

CAUTION: EXTERNAL SENDER!

Hi Dustin,

| am enquiring about progress on the Low Gap 1101 circuit being restored. | realize 2 months is not quite up yet but at
this time do you foresee this being repaired in a few weeks or another month out? | have also heard a local rumor that
this repair will not be done for many months. | would like to think this is not true, but want to confirm,

Thanks




Dale Davidsen, Superintendent oeGTION -/ C. PAGE NO. .3
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

7270 West End Rd.
Arcata Ca. 95521
Phone: 707-822-2918
Fax: 707-822-8245
Cell; 707-496-1378

From: Paul Jorgensen <aops@hbmwd.com>

Sent: Wednesday, June 14, 2023 1:44 PN

To: Dale Davidsen <supi@hbmwd.com>

Subject: FW: Mathews Dam (HBMWD) Export Update

Paul Jorgensen

Assistant Operations Supervisor
aops@hbmwd.com
707-822-2918

From: Deat, Dustin <BSDc e.com>

Sent: Friday, May 5, 2023 11:40 AM

To: aops@hbmwd.com

Cc: Crafton, Mike <M2Cy@pge.com>; Dillahunty, MaryAnn <MMHe @ pge.com>
Subject: Mathews Dam (HBMWD) Export Update

Classification: Public
Paul,

Thank you for the time spent discussing your team’s hardships over the past few weeks. As stated over the phone, our
Low Gap substation transformer was taken out of service due to concerns around the transformers integrity. Your
generating facility was transferred from its normal Low Gap 1101 circuit to it alternate source Bridgeville 1101. Due to
this transfer, our operations team has determined that your generating facility MUST remain offline due to the potential
for overloaded conductor and protection concerns. As you know, we have an obligation to ensure that our employees
and public remain safe during operational abnormalities. The Mathews Dam generating facility does not have an

alternate source study which would be required for your facility to remain online during these abnormal switching
events.

On a more positive note, it appears that we have identified a new substation transformer to replace the existing

transformer. The timeline for the replacement is between 2-3 months. Once the timeline has been firmed up, I'll make
sure to get that over to you.

I've included our Division Operations Specialist Mike Crafton in this email for awareness.

Best,
Dustin

Dustin Dear
Pacific Gas & Electric Company




secTIN_ /A paeno, |

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

To: Board of Directors

From: John Friedenbach

Date: July 13, 2023

Re: Ruth Lake CSD Policy 6800 Update
Discussion

Amendment 3 to the Master Lease between RLCSD and HBMWD contained a requirement that changes
to RLCSD policies regarding Lease Lots be reviewed and approved by HBMWD. Section 14, Lessee’s
Adoption and Enforcement of Rules and Regulations, subparagraph b specifically states:

b. “New or Amended Policies. Should Lessee desire to adopt new policy or
revise its Existing Policies, Lessee shall, prior to adoption, provide writien
notice to Lessor of the proposed policy and provide Lessor a period of foriy-
five (45} days to approve the proposal. Lessor shall not unreasonably withhold
its approval. In the event Lessor disapproves of the policy, Lessee and Lessor
shall meet and confer over the nature of the Lessor s disapproval to resolve any
issues. If, following the meet and confer, Lessor still does not approve, Lessee
shall not adopt the proposal,

At its June 13 board meeting, RLCSD considered changes to Policy 6800 — Lease Fees and Payments. See
attached red line version indicating the proposed changes. Although subparagraph 14 b directs RLCSD to
provide proposed draft changes to HBMWD prior to adoption, the RLCSD board did adopt the changes
contingent upon HBMWZD's approval. In this instance, the changes are administrative in nature to
facilitate collection of lease lot fees and payments and do not appear to have any direct impact on
HBMWD or our operations at Ruth Lake. Therefore, adoption by RLCSD prior to consideration and
consultation with HBMWD as contained in the Amendment 3 is nonconsequential. However, this may not
be the case with proposed lease lot policy changes in the future.

Recommendation

Staff recommends that the Board approve the proposed amendments to the RLCSD policies 6800 — Lease
Fees and Payments in accordance with the provisions of Master Lease Amendment 3. Staff further
recommends that in our approval letter, we remind RLCSD of the policy change approval process
contained in Master Lease Amendment 3 and respectfully request that it be followed for future policy
amendments.




SECTION__] & __ pAGE NO._).

Ruth Lake Community Services District
12200 Mad River Road
P.0. Box 6
Mad River, CA 95552
Telephone: 707-574-6332  Fax: 707-574-6080

Ruth Lake Email: ruthlakecsd@yahoo.com Website: www.ruthlakecsd.org

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

June 24,2023

John Friedenbach, General Manager
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
PO Box 95

Eureka, CA 95502-0095

Re: RLCSD Policy 6800 revision

Dear John,

At our last board meeting, June 14, 2023, the RLCSD board approved a few changes to Policy
6800, Lease Fees and Payment. 1 would like to request these changes to be presented to your
board of directors for approval at your July 13th, 2023, meeting.

If you have any questions about the proposed changes to Policy 6800, please let me know.
Sincerely, W

Caitlin Canale

General Manager



SECTION_JA_ PAGENO._3.

RUTH LAKE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Policy Handbook

POLICY TITLE: LEASE FEES AND PAYMENT

POLICY NUMBER: 6800

6800.01 Recreational sublease fees will be reviewed and set by the Board of Directors
when offering a new sublease contract or one for renewal.
6800.02 The sublease contract requires that the board may consider annual fee increases

based on the Consumer Price Index.

6800.03 Lease fees shall be billed twice annually.

6800.04 The lease year shall run from May 1 to April 30 each year.

6800.05 Lease bills will be mailed during the third week of March and the third week of
July of each year.

6800.06 Lease bill shall be mailed by first-class mail to the address last given to the District
by the sublessee. Failure to update the mailing address is not a valid excuse for non-
payment or late payment of lease fees.

6800.07 Lease fees shall be due May 1 and September 1 of each year.

6800.08 Lease fees shall be considered late if not received by May 1 or September 1.

6800.09 A late fee of $30 shall be charged monthly if fees are not paid in full are-netpest
fraredbe e September L.

6800.10 A late notice may be mailed out on the next business day following May 1
or September 1.

6800.11 Non-receipt of a late notice shall not release the sublease holder of any liability for
late payment including a charge of a late fee or any other action or remedy available
to the district.

6800.12 If fees, including late fees, are not received by the District office by July 1 Junet, or

by November | Oetebert, that sublease shall be placed on the Board of Directors
meeting agenda for default consideration.

Approved by the RLCSD Board of Directors: November 8, 201 1
Approved by the RLCSD Board of Directors: June 14, 2022
Approved by the RLCSD Board of Directors:



SECTION___£.22 _ PAGENO.__|__

Ruth Lake Community Services District
P.0.Box 6
12200 Mad River Road
Mad River, CA 95552 A
" ; Telephone; 707-574-6332 Fax: 707-574-6080
L , Email: ruthlakecsd @yahoo.com Website: www.ruthlakecsd,org

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

July 3,2023
VIA Email: friendenbach@hbmwd.com

John Fridenbach, General Manager
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
PO Box 95

Eureka, CA 95502

RE: Lease 42 ~ Boundary Lines/Placement for July Agenda

Dear John,

In response to your letter dated June 22nd, 2023 regarding Lease Lot 42 requesting a variance to
the Policy 6000.23 the RLCSD will be reviewing this request from Dan and Brianna Cavanaugh at
ourregularly scheduled board meeting on July 11th, I will be let you know on Wednesday, July
12th, whether or not the RLCSD board had passed and/or denied the requested waiver.

Currently, the Cavanaugh’s are requesting a variance to Policy 6000.23 on the back boundary
line on their lot where they have their proposed structure. The requested variance would be a
25 foot variance at the closest spot on the northern boundary line as the proposed structure is
about 5 feet from the line. This goes at an angle to reaching the 30 foot set back at the north

eastern corner of the lease lot boundary lines as their proposed structure is right in front the
northern boundary line of the hillside.

All in all, the placement of their structure near the back boundary line has no impact on any
surrounding leases as there is an easement that borders their northern boundary line. It would

be heneficial to keep their structure placement where it is proposed rather than moving it closer
to the lake and high water mark.

Thank you for your consideration and please let me know if you have any further questions.

Sincerely,

Lol Commen

Caitlin Canale
District Manager




SECTION ] € PAGENO._

July 5,2023
Dear RLCSD Board & HBMWD Board,

We purchased lease lot 42 in May of 2022 and are respectfully requesting a
variance to 6000.23 allowing us to move forward with our proposed building site.
The northwest side of our lease lot runs at an angle and our proposed building site
is 5 feet off the property line at the closest point, and complies with the 30-foot set
back at the furthest point. The other 3 sides of the proposed building site meet the
30-foot set back requirement. The proposed building site is near the back boundary
line and is a significant distance from any neighboring homes. There is a pg&e
access road that borders our back boundary line. The pg&e access road is fully
accessible as our building site is lower and further down the hill from this access

road. We do not want to move our building site closer to the lake and high water
mark.

Lease 42 was listed for sale with issued Trinity County building permits and
had been approved by RLCSD and HBMWD. The proposed building site was marked
out with stakes and ready for us to start building. The permitted project included a
cabin and three bathrooms. After purchasing the property, we applied to change the
building plans to something that would better suit our family. This included
downsizing with plans to build one bathroom.

We obtained approval from RLCSD and HBMWD and applied to Trinity
County for new permits. After applying, it was discovered that Trinity County issued
the original building permits in error, and that they did not send the permit
application to Environmental Health for proper septic approval. We then applied for
septic approval and found out that the current septic system was not up to code and
contained ground water pipes that are not suitable for wastewater treatment.
Trinity County Environmental Health issued us a repair permit to bring our septic
system up to code and at that time Trinity County Building issued us building

permits. We completed the requested septic work and planned to move forward
with our building plans.

Soon after, HBMWD did a site visit to see the work that we had done to our
septic system, and at that time they noted possible property line issues,. We are
seeking to build where the previous owners had requested and got approval to

build, as well as where the previous cabin was located that burned in the 2020
August Complex Fire.

Thank you for your time and consideration.

Dan & Bri Cavanaugh




CONTINUING
BUSINESS




SECTION_ &z | __PAGENO, |

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

To: Board of Directors .
From: John Friedenbach
Date: July 13, 2023
Subject: Water Resource Planning (WRP) — Status Report |

The purpose of this memo is to summarize recent activities and introduce next steps for discussion.

1) Top-Tier Water Use Options

a) Local Sales
i) Nordic Aquafarms ~ The project continues in the permit challenge process. The Transport
Committes met with Nordic Staff on June 14" to review the status of the project. Nordic has
changed their fish species to an ocean saltwater fish, so they no longer need industrial
water from HBMWD.

ii} Trinidad Rancheria mainline extension. The Rancheria continues to negotiate
engineering services with Stetson Engineering.

iii) Blue Lake Rancheria mainline extension. Draft MOU has been prepared and is included
for discussion and possible approval.

b) Transport — no update. TimesStandard news article re opposition to Sites Reservoir.

¢} Instream Flow Dedication
Committee met and is finalizing the final narrative and graphics. Staff would like to schedule
a Special Board meeting the last week of July to review and possibly approve the final final
narrative prior to submission of the draft 1707 petition for change to the Water Board Staff
for their initial review.




sscnonff_rlétij_ PAGENO. |

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (this “MOU”) is entered into this __ day of
July 2023, by and between the HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, a
California municipal water district (the “District™), and BLUE LAKE RANCHERIA,
CALIFORNIA (“Tribe™), a federally recognized Indian Tribe (the District and Tribe are
sometimes referred to herein individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties™).

Recitals

A, The District is a duly formed and existing Municipal Water District, formed
pursuant to Division 2 of the California Water Code and providing municipal water service to
customers within its sphere of influence and District boundaries.

B. The Tribe is a federally recognized Indian tribe eligible for the special programs
and services provided by the United States to Indians and possessing inherent powers of self-
government.

C. The United States government holds lands within the boundary of the State of
California in trust for the benefit of the Tribe over which the Tribe exercises jurisdiciion and
possesses sovereign governmental powers (“Tribe’s Lands™).

D. The Tribe intends to develop workforce training, business incubation, and
conference facilities, healthcare facilities, residential housing, and other uses on the Tribe’s

Lands (“Project”) located near Blue Lake, CA and inside the District’s boundaries and sphere of
influence.

E. The Tribe has requested that District provide water service to the Project, which
will necessitate an extension of the District’s water main to the Project location,

F. The Parties desire to enter into this MOU for the purpose of conducting
preliminary needs and capacity assessments, conceptual planning, and consultations with
regulatory agencies to determine whether the mainline extension is feasible and desirable for
both Parties and, if so, on what terms and conditions. The Parties further desire to enter into this
MOU to provide for the reimbursement of certain costs and expenses incurred by the District
relating to or arising from the preliminary needs and capacity assessments.

G. The Parties recognize the existence of agreements between the District and the
City of Blue Lake (“City”), including an agreement for the supply of municipal water dated July
1, 2017 and an addendum to the District and Blue Lake Agreement dated January 13, 1977, The
Parties recognize that such agreements provide for certain notice and maintenance requirements
that will be included in the Parties’ final agreement. The Parties also recognize the existence of
additional agreements between the Tribe and the City as well as between the District and the
City, which may provide other requirements to be included in the Parties’ final agreement.

1869013v2




SECTION X L 11} PAGE NO._2,

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual understandings and agreements set forth
herein, the parties hereby agree as follows:

Section 1.  Term and Termination, This MOU shall become effective immediately
once approved by the District’s governing body and shall terminate upon the earliest to occur of
the following: (a) the execution by the Parties of one or more definitive agreements with respect
to the subject matter of this MOU; or (b) twenty-four (24) months from the date hereof. The term
of this MOU can be extended upon the written mutual agreement of the Parties. Notwithstanding
any other provision of this MOU, including the provisions of this Section 1, either Party may
terminate this MOU at any time by providing at least thirty (30) days written notice of such
termination to the other Party.

Section 2.  Non-Binding Effect. This MOU is intended to serve as a general basis for
studying the feasibility of the main line extension. With the exception of Section 4 hereof, which
is intended to be binding upon the Parties, the Parties shall not have any legal obligation under or
by virtue of this MOU, including any obligation to enter into any definitive agreement or other
contract for the mainline extension, to provide any services, to commit to development of the
mainline extension, to make any investment or pay any consideration or compensation, whether
or not expressly described herein, regardless of the results of the preliminary assessment. The
District reserves the right to withdraw from this MOU at any time.

Section 3. Coordination and Water Needs and Capacity Assessment. The Partics
agree to meet and confer with one another to develop a definitive mainline extension agreement,
Among the tasks to be performed are as follows:

(a)  Evaluating the water demands for the Project, including total maximum water
demand in the future;

(b)  Dvaluate capacity of existing water delivery and storage facilities and identify
additional needed capacity to meet peak water demands;

(9] Coordinate on an approach for outreach to the City;

(c) Evaluating the necessary regulatory approvals and conducting preliminary
meetings with agencies regarding permitting processes and entitlements. For
purposes of this sub-section, regulatory agencies may include and are not limited
to; LAFCo, County of Humboldt, California Water Board, and CalTrans;

(d)  Evaluate potential mainline routes and conceptual designs;

(e)  Evaluate need for related infrastructure and facilities, including cievated storage,
valving, pumping stations, and metering;

6] Evaluate cost to operate and maintain facilities, transmission and distribution
systems including staffing, equipment, utility and other operating and
administrative costs;

(g}  Make projections for the rates and fees necessary to cover capital and operating
expenses;

(h)  Preliminary assessment of environmental impacts and NEPA and/or CEQA
scoping as applicable;

(i) Evaluate property entitlements and rights held or to be acquired,

() Meet with community stakeholders;

1859013v2




SECTION S L o 11 PAGE NO._

(k)  Evaluate funding sources and financing structure; and
D Negotiate definitive agreement for the mainline extension.

Section 4. Cost Reimbursement. Upon execution of this MOU, the Tribe agrees to
advance to District a deposit in the amount of Ten Thousand ($10,000) to fund the District
engineering, legal and administrative services in connection with the water needs and capacity
assessment. The District will draw on this deposit to pay or reimburse periodic invoices from the
District consultants and to reimburse District for the cost of District staff time, legal fees, and
materials. In the event that the amount on deposit with the District is less than $1,000 remaining,
the District shall request replenishment from the Tribe to restore the $10,000 deposit balance.
The District understands that the Tribe may be seeking grant funding to cover the costs of any
preliminary assessments and will support the Tribe in that effort with technical information as
appropriate; provided, however, the Tribe’s obligation under this Section 4 shall not be
conditioned upon the actual receipt or availability of grant funding. The Tribe will make the
initial deposit within thirty (30) days of the execution of this MOU and make subsequent
deposits as needed. If the Tribe declines to make such additional deposits this MOU shall
terminate. In the event this MOU is terminated by either Party prior to the expiration of the
Term, the District shall return any unused funds deposited by the Tribe. The District shall have
no obligation to reimburse the Tribe for any costs relating to the subject matter of this MOU.

Section 5. Will Serve Agreement. The Parties recognize that the definitive
agreement for the mainline extension must include a Will Serve Agreement between the Parties
whereby the District agrees to provide water services to the Tribe following the District’s
acceptance of the work that is to be detailed in the final mainline extension agreement.

Section 6.  Indemnification. Under the final agreement, the Tribe will agree to
indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless District and its officers, employees, engineers, and
agents, from any and all claims, demands or charges and from any loss or liability, including any
claims from the City that may be associated with this MOU, the final agreement, or any
agreements between the Tribe and the City.

[the remainder of this page is intentionally left blank]

1868013v2




SECTION_Z1 L4111, PAGE NO, 4

The Parties authorized representatives have executed this MOU on the date(s) indicated
below:

BLUE LAKE RANCHERIA, CALIFORNIA

Tribal Chairperson

Date

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Neal Latt, President of the Board of Directors

Date

1869013v2




SECTION 5. | o, PAGE NO.__|

Times Standard — 7/6/2023, Jackson Guilfoil

Tribes, activists rally in Sacramento over water
rights

A rally in Sacramento on Wednesday focused on water rights and a Central Valley
water project that impacts the Klamath. (Screenshot)

By JACKSON GUILFOIL | jguilfoil@times-standard.com | Eureka Times-Standard
PUBLISHED: July 5, 2023 at 2:46 p.m. | UPDATED: July 5, 2023 at 4:04 p.m.

On Wednesday, representatives from Native American tribes, including some from
Humboldt County, and activists protested in front of the capitol in Sacramento over
water rights, rules and a specific project on the Delta River.

The rally featured speakers and tribal representatives from across the state, including
from the Hoopa Valley Tribe and Karuk Tribe, both with ancestral lands in Humboldt
County. The group called on Gov. Gavin Newsom to realign the state’s water rights
system to greater favor management from tribes and less diversions for agriculture.

“Our social well-being, or our physical or cultural or spiritual well-being, it all runs
parallel to the salmon and if the salmon are doing good, we're not doing good,” said
Jason Jackson-Reed, an executive assistant with the Hoopa Valley Tribe.

Jackson-Reed added that tribes continue to suffer the legacy of genocide,

displacement and theft, but greater power over water rights can begin to help heal the
damage inflicted on tribes over the centuries.

The rally also included environmental activists, fishing industry representatives and
conservation groups, all concerned about decreasing salmon populations in rivers
across the state in large part because of agricultural diversions.

In Humboldt County, which has some of the highest levels of tribes per capita in the
state, the issue is especially salient. Recently, several local tribes lauded the



SECTION £ | b ageNg,_2,_

decommissioning of four dams along the Klamath River, which extends from Northern
California into Oregon.

“They (tribes) should have the access to their cultural and traditional waterways. We're
also here to advocate for inclusion of tribal beneficial uses into state practices and
state policies,” said Kasil Willie, a staff attorney for the conservation group Save
California Salmon.

The group also protested the Delta tunnel, a $16 billion project that would build 45
miles of pipes diverting water from the Sacramento River water into aqueducts. The
water would be used for agriculture and in cities.

Lawmakers were in session during the rally, which was intentionally timed to get policy
makers’ attention.

Regina Chichizola, executive director of Save California Salmon, addressed the history
behind the Klamath River and its waters the state allowed to be used for agriculture in
the Central Valley.

“A lot of people don't know the largest tributary to the Klamath is diverted into the
Central Valley Project for Westlands Water District to grow almonds over hundreds of
miles away,” Chichizola said. “They took 90% of this river for so long until the Hoopa
Valley Tribe and the Yurok Tribe fought for generations to get water back in that river
and that water is now threatened. ... It's the only thing keeping the Klamath salmon
alive right now. And it's threatened by the Sites Reservoir and it's threatened by the
Delta tunnels and it's threatened by these new Department of Interior biological
opinions that will take more water out of the Trinity and go against any co-
management the Hoopa tribe has with the Bureau of Reclamation.”

On Wednesday, tribal representatives and their allies gathered in Sacramento to decry
current water diversion allowances. (Screenshot)
Jackson Guilfoil can be reached at 707-441-0506.



o SECTIONG- 24, PAGENO._ /- 1

IS

—

; ;., Department of Toxic; Substances Control

Meredith Williams, Ph.D.
Yana Garcia Director Gavin Newsom
Secretary for . Governer
Environmental Protection 700 H?H‘IZ ’.Ewenue
Berkeley, California ©4710-2721

June 13, 2023

Mr. Erik Nielsen, P.G.

SHN Consulfing Engineers & Geologists, Inc.
812 West Wabash Avenue

Eureka, California 95501
enielsen@shn-engr.com

Dear Mr. Nielsen:

The Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) has completed its review of the
Site Investigation Work Plan (Work Plan), dated June 12, 2023, for the Former
McNamara and Peepe LLumber Mill in Arcata, California (Site). The Work Plan outlines
the installation of two groundwater monitoring wells (one on-Site and one off-Site) and
proposes the collection of soil and groundwater samples for further site characterization.
The Work Plan also discusses the repair of groundwater monitoring well MW-1 and the

abandonment in accordance with Humboldt County procedures of the production well
on-Site.

DTSC provided comments via email on May 10, 2023 and June 5, 2023 and the revised
Work Plan satisfactorily addresses DTSC's comments. DTSC has no additional
comments and hereby approves the Work Plan.

@ Printed on Recycied Papor




Mr. Erik Nielsen SECTION %9~ PAGE NO| 22
June 13, 2023 - .

Page 2 of 2

If you have any questions, please contact Nicole Yuen via email at
Nicole.Yuen@dtsc.ca.gov or by phone at (510) 540-3881.

Sincerely,

Marikka Hughes, P.G.
Unit Chief

Site Mitigation and Restoration Program — Berkeley Office
Department of Toxic Substances Control

cc:  John Friedenbach
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
friedenbach@hbmwd.com




SECTION 3 .24 PAGE NO, /.3

Phone: (707) 441-8855 Email: info@shn-engr.com Web: shn-engr.com
812 W. Wabash Avenue, Eureka, CA 95501-2138

Reference: 020189.120
June 12, 2023

Nicole Yuen

California Environmental Protection Agency
Department of Toxic Substances Control
700 Heinz Avenue

Berkeley, CA 94710

Subject: Site Investigation Work Plan, Former McNamara and Peepe Lumber
Mill, 1619 Glendale Drive, Arcata, California; EnviroStor ID: 12240115

Dear Nicole Yuen:

The enclosed site investigation work plan has been prepared to further define the extent of chemicals of
concern in soil and groundwater at the former McNamara and Peepe Lumber Mill (M&P). A review of
available historical data and recently acquired testing results have identified data gaps in contaminant
extent and hydrogeologic conditions that will require further evaluation. Specific areas of the site for
investigation include the cap and former green chain area, downgradient of the cap, and the eastern

portion of the property near the former planer. SHN has prepared this work plan on behalf of the
California Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC)

Site Information

This section contains an overview of the site conditions and environmental activities conducted at the
site for background understanding.

Mill Setting

The former mill site located at 1619 Glendale Drive in Arcata, California, operated from the 1940s to
2002 (Figure 1). The facility contained a sawmill, planer, sorter, and green chain, and used a chemical
fungicide containing pentachlorophenol (PCP) and tetrachlorophenol (TCP) to treat lumber from 1967 to
1984. Spillage and drippings from the “green chain” and dip tank fungicide application area are believed
to have caused PCP and TCP contamination to soil and groundwater. In 1998, soil in the green chain and
sawmill areas were consolidated and capped with an impervious layer (concrete) to prevent PCP and
TCP detected in soil from being discharged to groundwater and surface water. Mill structures are no
longer present at the site; however, the foundations of several mill buildings remain. The site is currently
operated for production of soil amendments and is surrounded by residential and commercial industrial
properties. The Mad River is located approximately % mile to the south of the site.

CIVIL ENGINEERING » ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES »+ GEOSCIENCES » PLANNING « SURVEYING




S

|

PROJECT
VICINITY

tion.mxd User Name: mcurran DATE: 11/5/21, 10:16AM

tion\Figl_ProjectL

0 2,000 : D\ e = 8 W
e : ; 7o - Blue Lake
1"=2,000'* : ' 7/ AN

2 . S

Former McNamara & Peepe Lum
Remediation Evaluation

1619 Glendale Drive, Arcata, California SHN 020189.040

November 2021 | Figl_ProjectLocation Figure 1

e o :
3 ‘Q%Pblc _o_cletx, i-cubed

ber Mill

Project Location

Path: \\eureka\projects\2020\020189-M-P-Mil\GIS\PROJ_MXD\Site_|




Nicole Yuen, California Department of Toxic Substances Control SECTIOM'E?@" PAGE NO._____
Site Investigation Work Plan Former M&P Lumber Mill
June 12, 2023

Page 2

Environmental History

Investigations conducted at the site from 1987 to 1989 included the collection of soil samples,
installation of monitoring wells for groundwater sample collection, and the collection of stormwater
samples. Results of the investigations determined the green chain area to be the primary contributor of
contamination identified at the site (AEMC, 1989). A final remediation action plan was prepared to
consolidate and cap the impacted soils (Trans Tech, 1994) that was completed in March 1998 (B&C,
1997). As part of the remediation action plan, soil was placed in a trench that was covered by a 15-inch
concrete cap. A land use covenant was issued in 1998 to restrict use in the capped area. A site plan
showing the capped area and existing site monitoring wells is provided as Figure 2.

In April 2002, mill operations ceased and use of a water production well at the site was discontinued.
This action resulted in higher groundwater elevations across the site (approximately 10 feet) that were
previously being artificially suppressed through the extraction of groundwater for mill operations.
Testing results from site monitoring wells in December 2003 showed a significant increase in PCP
concentrations in groundwater. An investigation conducted in 2005 to evaluate the source of elevated
PCP in groundwater determined dissolution from soil due to a rise in groundwater elevation was the
cause (Weiss, 2006).

Additional investigations for soil and groundwater impacts were conducted at the site in June 2010,
October 2010, November 2011, and April 2012. Results suggest soil with elevated PCP concentrations
beneath the cap and former sawmill building are the source of PCP in groundwater (URS, 2012).
Supplemental groundwater analysis conducted at the site in December 2016 suggests that groundwater
is generally aerobic with localized anaerobic conditions near the source area (Apex, 2017). Groundwater
monitoring at the site occurred from April 1998 to February 2023, and stormwater monitoring was
recently initiated in February 2021 with a frequency of two events during the wet season.

A field investigation was completed in February 2022 to facilitate a bench-scale study for PCP
remediation options at the cap. The location of soil borings installed at the cap area during the February
2022 site investigation are provided in Figure 3. Soil sample results showed PCP is present at low
concentrations in several locations beneath the cap (former green chain) and sawmill to the east (SHN,
2022a). The study was unable to identify the specific source of phenols contributing to groundwater
contamination but was able to demonstrate bioamendments are capable of reducing concentrations of
contaminants under anerobic conditions (SHN, 2022b). The installation of two additional monitoring
wells at the site was completed during this field effort (MW-13 and MW-14), which have been
incorporated into the current monitoring program.

Hydrogeologic Conditions

Subsurface soils at the site consist of alluvial deposits comprised of fines (silts and clays) and coarse
material (sand and gravel). No indication of bedrock depth was observed in historic boring logs reviewed
for the site. Groundwater elevations and direction of flow are observed to be impacted by seasonal
influence. The groundwater depth in the area of the cap (MW-1) ranges from approximately 6 to 10 feet
below existing ground surface (BGS). The direction of groundwater flow at the site is typically to the
south but shows a southwest trend during low groundwater conditions.

P:\Eureka\2020\020189-M-P-Mill\120-Site-Inv-Plan\PUBS\rpts\20230612-MP-
SitelnvestWorkPlan-Rev02.docx




EXPLANATION

PRIVATE WELL
PRODUCTION WELL (FORMER)
MONITORING WELL

——— FIRE ACCESS ROAD

CONCRETE CAP AREA

D FORMER MILL BOUNDARY

0 200
s |
1" = 200'+

PHOTO SOURCE:
GOOGLE, 2019

B

&
a
@
w
2
£
z
w
w
=
e}
S
E
=
B
o
2
<
~
o
L
_l
2|
-
=
£
1|
a
-
c|
af
21
m|
ol
a
QU
>
£
5
2
v
o
=4
5
2
o
<I
(=1
|
=2
ol
=
=
-
Q
z
£
Qi
Q|
=
=
.

Former McNamara & Peepe Lumber Mill Site Plan
Additional Site Investigation

1619 Glendale Drive, Arcata, California December 2022 -020189.120

P:\Eureka\2020\020185-M




0Z1'6810¢20 - ¢20c 42quieaeQ elulojl|eD ‘eyedly ‘@Al 3|epu3D 6191
suojj3es0 uonesiisanu| 23S uonesdnsanu| 1S |eUOIIPPY
[IIA 4aqwin 3daad % eJeWEND|A JoW.I0

6L0Z ‘319009
:324n0S OLOHd

VIHY dvD ILIHINOD |||
NOILY201 113M DNIYOLINON &
oNiyog 110s @
LNIOd TI3M AYVHOJWIL ANY DNIHOE 110S @

NOILVYNV1dX3

WVEY:8 ‘TT/VT/TT '31v0 S504W 1YISN PXWISUOREI0T |5 €314 ISY\UORRBNSaAU|a)IS|EUOmIPPY 0ZT\AXIN rOHd\SID\IIIA-d-IN-68T0Z0N0Z0Z\&Y24n3\d




Nicole Yuen, California Department of Toxic Substances Control SECTIOI\EQQL_, PAGE NO. b/
Site Investigation Work Plan Former M&P Lumber Mill

June 12, 2023

Page 3

Areas of !nvestigatim

Cap Subsurface

A review of soil sample results from site investigations conducted in 1987 and 1988 shows the highest
concentrations of PCP and TCP were observed in soils beneath the green chain at a depth range of 3 to
6 feet BGS. After consolidation of impacted soils and placement of the cap in March 1998, investigations
for soil contamination were completed for areas outside the cap in 2010, 2011, and 2012. Outside the
former green chain/cap area, PCP and TCP concentrations were observed to be at lower levels in

shallow soils to the south and east. No soil samples were observed to have been collected from beneath
the cap following material placement.

In order to assess current conditions beneath the cap and directly to the east, borings will be installed
across this area for the collection of soil and groundwater samples. The locations of eight soil borings
proposed for the cap area investigation are shown in Figure 4. Continuous core from each boring will be
collected to a depth of 15 feet below the surface for lithologic interpretation and obtaining depth
discrete soil samples for laboratory testing of phenols and dioxin/furans. Groundwater samples for
laboratory testing will additionally be collected in the cap area by installing temporary well points at four

boring locations shown in Figure 5. One temporary well point will be located approximately 40 feet east
of well MW-1 to further define the extent of groundwater contamination in this area.

Groundwater Downgradient of the CAP

Historical sample results show elevated concentrations of PCP and TCP present in groundwater south of
the former green chain, with the highest concentrations of PCP observed in monitoring well MW-1. This
general area is southeast of the cap and within the former sawmill structure footprint. The observed
pattern of contaminant distribution in groundwater shows it to be primarily localized to wells
immediately downgradient of the cap (MW-1, MW-5, and MW-12).

Two monitoring wells are proposed for installation downgradient of the cap and well MW-1 at the
locations shown in Figure 5. One well will be located approximately 25 feet downgradient of well MW-1
and the second well approximately 150 feet downgradient of the cap near the private well on the
adjacent property. The newly installed monitoring wells will be incorporated into the site monitoring
program and sampled for phenols and dioxin/furans during the next groundwater monitoring event.

Eastern Mill Boundary

Recently installed monitoring well MW-14 is located along the eastern portion of the mill property south
of the former planer. Groundwater samples collected from this well in February and August 2022
showed detectable concentrations of PCP and TCP are present. The source of contamination in
groundwater at this well location is unknown and wells located on either side of MW-14 show very low
or no detectable concentrations of phenols in groundwater (MW-11 and MW-13). DTSC has initiated the

collection and analysis of groundwater samples from well MW-14 for dioxins and furans during the 2023
monitoring period.

P:\Eureka\2020\020189-M-P-Mill\120-Site-Inv-Plan\PUBS\rpts\20230612-MP-
SitelnvestWorkPlan-Rev02.docx




0Z1'6810Z0 - £20Z aun( BIUIOJ|ED ‘B1BIIY ‘BALIQ B[BPUR[D 6191
uo3esnsanu| IS [BUOHIPPY

a4nS14 | suonzeso Suriog [10S ealy dy) pasodoid [N 4equinT adaad g eJBWENI|A Jawlo4

6L0Z 379009
‘3J¥N0Ss 0L0Hd

F5E =ul

vayY dvd F134IN0D ||
DNIY04 1/0S 4350d0¥d @

= NOILYNY1dX3

INAT06 ‘£2/8/9 '31va 2S04Ul :¥3sN pxwsSuiogios” pasodold paI4 (Sy\U0nESIsIAURHS|BUCIIPPY 0ZTAAXIN FOY d\SID\IIIN-d-IN-68T0Z0\0Z0Z\B¥2an3\d




0Z1'681020 - €20z aunf eIUIOJI[eD ‘BIB2IY ‘DAIIQ BBPURID 6191
uonesnsaAu| S [RUOIIPPY
suonelIo [[2M _.Umonohm N Jaquin adaad %@ eJeWIEND|A J3W.I04

6L0Z 'I19009
‘3J4n0S OLOHd

AYVANNOS TIIN ¥INHO04 _H_

vady dvd 3L3HIN0D || |

avoy ssany ——-
179M ONIHOLINOW &
773M DNIYOLINOW G3SOdO¥d &
INIOd TIIM AYVHOdNIL GISOdOY¥d @

NOILVNVY1dX3

NdZ0:6 MN\m\m 31vQa 2504w 1Y3SN vxE m:o_pmuo._..ss__nmmonohn_ E “m.o):o_wmm_w_mm.;:_m“_.. __u_ud. QN._“/DXS__ an_/m_w/__:)_ d- __Z-mw._”_uwo/oNDN/mv_v._n




Nicole Yuen, California Department of Toxic Substances Control SECT[ON&'—‘?R-A; PAGE NO.__B:___
Site Investigation Work Plan Former M&P Lumber Mill

June 12, 2023

Page 4

To assess the presence and distribution of contaminants in this area, two soil borings with temporary
well points are proposed for installation at the locations shown in Figure 5. One boring location will be
upgradient of well MW-14 towards the former planer, and the second boring will be approximately 25
feet downgradient. Soil samples will be collected from each boring location at the
saturated/unsaturated zone interface and submitted for the analysis of phenols and dioxin/furans.
Groundwater samples collected from each temporary well point installed along the eastern mill
boundary will be analyzed for phenols. Additional groundwater will be collected from each temporary
well point location at MW-14 for the analysis of dioxins and furans. Groundwater samples collected from
this area showing elevated concentrations of phenols will be analyzed for dioxin and furans.

Field Program

Upon work plan approval, SHN will initiate activities for field program implementation. The proposed
work is intended to provide soil and groundwater from within the contaminant-impacted areas for
discrete analysis, assess conditions downgradient of the cap by installing two new groundwater
monitoring wells, and improve understanding of hydrogeologic conditions at the site.

This scope of work is designed to provide the information needed to meet the project objectives of this
investigation and includes:
e Project implementation, permitting, and Underground Service Alert (USA) notification.
e Field program:
o Complete 11 soil borings at the cap area and along the eastern property boundary.

o Install temporary well points using polyvinyl chloride (PVC) casings and screens in six soil
boring locations at the cap area and along the eastern property boundary.

o Collect discrete soil samples from each soil boring.
o Collect groundwater samples from each temporary well point.
o Submit soil and groundwater samples to a California state-certified analytical laboratory.
o Drill and install two new groundwater monitoring wells.
o Properly develop and survey each newly installed monitoring well.
o Characterization for determination of proper disposal of investigation-derived waste.
o Conduct identified well maintenance operations.
e Reporting: Prepare a report of findings that includes the activities and results of the field

program,

In addition to providing this work plan, SHN will coordinate and schedule the activities related to
program implementation that include obtaining boring permits from the Humboldt County Division of
Environmental Health (HCDEH), contacting USA, coordinating with facility occupants, and corresponding
with the DTSC.

P:\Eureka\2020\020189-M-P-Mill\120-Site-Inv-Plan\PUBS\rpts\20230612-MP-
SitelnvestWorkPlan-Rev02.docx




Nicole Yuen, California Department of Toxic Substances Control SECT'ON&&%;' PAGE No—f—-
Site Investigation Work Plan Former M&P Lumber Mill

June 12, 2023

Page 5

Soil Borings and Sample Collection

SHN proposes the installation of 11 soil borings to a depth of approximately 15 feet BGS using a sonic
drill rig. This method of drilling uses a large drive tube that will generate continuous core with
improved recovery and is capable of coring through the reinforced concrete cap. Eight soil borings are
proposed for the area of the cap shown in Figure 4, and two locations are proposed for completion in
the area of MW-14 south of the planer shown in Figure 5. Two additional soil borings will be completed
for planned installation of downgradient monitoring wells shown in Figure 5 and will be drilled to a
depth of approximately 20 feet BGS.

Soil will be field-screened using a photoionization detector (PID) and described in general accordance
with the Unified Soil Classification System under the direction of a California-licensed professional
geologist. Soil samples will be collected from the recovered core at discrete locations for laboratory
analysis based on observations that include depth to groundwater, staining, odor, PID readings, and
source area consideration. Each sample selected for analysis will be placed in an iced cooler and
shipped under the appropriate chain-of-custody documentation. It is anticipated that two to three
samples from each boring location at the cap will be submitted for laboratory analysis. The collection of
soil samples from the downgradient monitoring well locations for laboratory testing are not anticipated
during coring operations.

Temporary Well Point Installation and Groundwater Sample

Collection

Upon completion of the three soil borings at the cap, one location between well MW-1 and MW-13, and
two soil borings at the area around MW-14, a temporary well point will be installed for the collection of
groundwater samples. The temporary well points will consist of 34-inch PVC casing and 5 feet of 34-inch
PVC screen inserted through the sonic drive rods. Each temporary well point will be purged of
approximately three casing volumes, prior to groundwater sample collection using a peristaltic pump
with disposable tubing. All groundwater samples collected for the analysis of dioxin/furans during the
site investigation will be filtered in the field using a 0.45-micron pore size filter. Groundwater samples

will be placed in an iced cooler and shipped under the appropriate chain-of-custody documentation to
the testing laboratory.

Upon completion of coring activities and groundwater sample collection, the temporary well casing and
screen will be removed, and all borings will be backfilled with neat cement or bentonite grout. Borings
completed in the reinforced concrete cap will be sealed with non-shrink hydraulic cement to ensure cap
integrity is maintained. All borings will be completed at grade to match the existing surface conditions.

Monitoring Well Installation

To assess contaminants in groundwater downgradient of the cap, two soil borings will be completed
using sonic coring methods to approximately 20 feet BGS for the installation of a monitoring well at the
locations shown in Figure 5. One monitoring well will be installed immediately downgradient of MW-1 on
the facility property, and the second is planned for installation near the well on private property
(approximately 150 feet downgradient of the cap). Each boring will be 7.25-inches in diameter and have
a monitoring well installed that will consist of 2-inch PVC casing and 10 feet of 2-inch, 0.010-inch slot PVC

P:\Eureka\2020\020189-M-P-Mill\120-Site-Inv-Plan\PU BS\rpts\20230612-MP-
SitelnvestWorkPlan-Rev02.docx




Nicole Yuen, California Department of Toxic Substances Control SECTIO@A- PAGE NO-J-Q—-—
Site Investigation Work Plan Former M&P Lumber Mill

June 12, 2023

Page 6

screen. Size 2/12 Monterey sand will be used for the filter pack, hydrated bentonite chips will be placed
for the transition seal, and the remainder of the annulus will be filled with bentonite or cement grout.
An aboveground monument will be set in concrete to protect each wellhead.

Groundwater monitoring wells will be properly developed after installation and surveyed for location
and elevation under the direction of a licensed surveyor. The newly installed monitoring wells will be
sampled during a subsequent groundwater monitoring event. SHN is additionally planning to resurvey
all site monitoring wells for location and elevation during the site investigation field program.

Laboratory Analysis

Discrete soil and groundwater samples collected during the site investigation will be analyzed for the
following constituents:

e Chlorinated phenols (PCP and TCP) by National Council for Air and Stream Improvement, Inc. by
Method 86.07

e Chlorinated dibenzodioxins and chlorinated dibenzofurans (dioxins and furans) by U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Method 8290

It is anticipated that all soil and groundwater samples collected for this site investigation will be tested
for phenols and testing for dioxin/furans will be based on location, depth, and phenol testing results,
PCP and TCP testing will be completed by North Coast Laboratories, Ltd. (NCL) located in Arcata,
California. Dioxin and furan testing will be completed by Enthalpy Analytical, located in El Dorado Hills,
California. Both testing laboratories are California state certified.

To address the potential that a hydrocarbon solvent was used as a carrier for PCP, additional testing of
soils and groundwater for petroleum hydrocarbons in gasoline range organics (GRO) and diesel range
organics (DRO) will occur in select locations based on field conditions encountered.

Well Maintenance

Findings from recent inspections and monitoring at the site have identified two wells that will require
services from a licensed well driller. Water observed in the well box at monitoring well MW-1 appears to
be coming from the surrounding subsurface and not from infiltration of surface flow. The locking well
cap (J-Plug) on MW-1 has been replaced but is not capable of making an air-tight seal with the top of the
PVC well casing. There is concern that influence from this upper zone of perched water may be entering
MW-1 well casing from accumulation in the well box, and a proper seal will need to be completed to
correct the situation. The well box and collar for MW-1 will need to be removed using a jackhammer and
reset in concrete. A PVC riser will also need to be attached to the existing well casing and completion
with an aboveground monument protected by bollards is proposed.

A production well near the former planer at the site was presumed to have been properly abandoned
based on documentation provided in the October 12, 2010, well destruction permit issued by HCDEH.
An inspection of the production well aboveground casing in February 2023 identified an open bore, the
presence of electrical wiring, and a discharge pipe. A well-depth meter placed in the discharge pipe
determined solid contact at approximately 109 feet in depth. It is presumed that a pump is attached to

P:\Eureka\2020\020189-M-P-Mill\120-Site-Inv-Plan\PUBS\rpts\20230612-MP-
SitelnvestWorkPlan-Rev02.docx




@
Nicole Yuen, California Department of Toxic Substances Control “’EGT'ONMPAGE NO._Z,L_

Site Investigation Work Plan Former M&P Lumber Mill
June 12, 2023
Page 7

the wiring and discharge pipe, and the abandoned well was returned to use at some point previously.
To properly abandon this well, the pump and discharge pipe will need to be removed and backfilling the
well with sealing material to ground surface will be completed. The aboveground steel well casing for
the production well is additionally planned for removal.

Permits from HCDEH for the modification of well box MW-1 and abandonment of the production well
will be required.

Equipment Decontamination Procedures

Drilling equipment will be cleaned prior to its use onsite and between each boring installation using a
steam cleaner or the triple-wash system (a Liquinox® solution wash, followed by two distilled water
rinses). Small equipment that requires onsite cleaning will be cleaned using the triple-wash system.

Investigation-Derived Waste Management

Soil cuttings generated from the soil boring activities will be placed in 55-gallon steel drums, sampled for
disposal characterization, and properly disposed. Water generated during drilling activities, well
development, aquifer testing, and groundwater sampling will be temporarily stored onsite in an

appropriate container. The water will then be sampled for disposal characterization, and properly
disposed.

Project and Data Quality Objectives

This project involves evaluating the presence or absence of contaminants identified in site soil and
groundwater to assist in an evaluation of risks to human health and the environment and identifying
potential remediation options. Quality assurance (QA) objectives for the soil and groundwater
assessment at the site are intended to provide guidance for collecting and evaluating data that
represent site conditions through precision, accuracy, and completeness.

Data Review and Validation

The SHN QA officer will perform a Tier 1A level data validation on all laboratory reports received. Tier 1A
level data validation may include, but is not limited to:

» Review of the data package for completeness

e Review of chain-of-custody forms for consistency with laboratory reported information,
signatures, sample condition upon receipt by the laboratory, and sample preservation

e Review of holding times
e Review of quality control (QC) summaries
e Review of blank results for possible field or laboratory contamination

e Random checks of reported results against raw data

P:\Eureka\2020\020189-M-P-Mil\120-Site-Inv-Plan\PUBS\rpts\20230612-MP-
SitelnvestWorkPlan-Rev02.docx




SECTION 3.4, PAGE NO._/s2-

Nicole Yuen, California Department of Toxic Substances Control
Site Investigation Work Plan Former M&P Lumber Mill

June 12, 2023

Page 8

» Random checks of raw data for interference problems or system control problems (baseline
anomalies, baseline drifts, and so on)

If comparison of data to QA/QC objectives indicates anomalies, the laboratory will be instructed to
review the submitted data and SHN will review the methods used to collect and handle the samples. If
anomalies remain, the laboratory may be asked to re-analyze samples.

Field Quality Control Samples

The EPA recommends collection of field quality control samples at a rate of one quality control sample
for every twenty samples collected. As many as 25 soil samples and six groundwater samples are
planned for collection during the site investigation field program. Therefore, two field duplicate soil
samples and one field duplicate water sample will be collected for quality control purposes. This
proposed approach will satisfy the recommended number of field quality control samples.

Reporting

Following completion of the field program, SHN will prepare and submit a report of findings on behalf of
DTSC for review. The report will include: a description of the work performed, a summary of the
sampling results, analytical laboratory reports, site maps illustrating sample locations and analytical
results, updated geologic cross sections of the cap area, and recommendations for additional work, if
needed. The report will be submitted within 60 days of receipt of laboratory analytical data. Upon
approval of this site investigation work plan, SHN will initiate implementation of the field program
consisting of facility notification and permitting.

Please call me at (707) 441-8855 if you have questions or comments regarding this work plan.

Sincerely,

SHN \ONAL G&:

Erik J. Nielsen, P.G., C.
Senior Hydrogeologist

EJN:WRB:ame

References ¢

American Environmental Management Corporation. (June 1989). Final Investigation Report for the
McNamara And Peepe Lumber Mill, Glendale, California. NR:AEMC.

Apex. (December 2017). Technical Memorandum - Remedial Alternatives Evaluation, McNamara and Peep
Lumber Mill, 1619 and 1678 Glendale Drive, Arcata, California. NR:Apex.

1 P:\Eureka\2020\020189-M-P-Mill\120-Site-Inv-Plan\PUBS\rpts\20230612-MP-
?f!_,l / SitelnvestWorkPlan-Rev02.docx



Nicole Yuen, California Department of Toxic Substances Control SECT!ON-&-%JL PAGE NO.__Z}_i
Site Investigation Work Plan Former M&P Lumber Mill

June 12, 2023

Page 9

Brown and Caldwell. (December 1997). Implementation Report of Remedial Action, Former McNamara and
Peepe Lumber Mill, Glendale, California. NR:B&C.
National Geographic Society. (2013). Accessed through ESRI i-cubed January 15, 2021. NR:NGS.

SHN. (June 1, 2022a). Site Investigation Report of Findings, Former McNamara and Peepe Lumber Mill, 1619
Glendale Drive, Arcata, California; EnviroStor ID: 12240115. Eureka, CA:SHN.

--. (June 17, 2022b). Bench Scale Testing Update, Former McNamara and Peepe Lumber Mill, 1619 Glendale
Drive, Arcata, California; EnviroStor ID; 1224011. Eureka, CA:SHN.

Trans Tech Consultants. (November 1994). Final Remedial Action Plan. McNamara and Peepe Lumber Mill,
Arcata, California. NR:Trans Tech.

URS Corporation (June 2012). Technical Memorandum - Soil and Groundwater Investigation, Former
McNamara and Peepe Lumber Mill, 1589 Glendale Drive, Arcata, California. NR:URS.

Weiss Associates. (March 2006). Field Investigation and Sampling Report for Former McNamara and Peepe
Lumber Mill, Glendale, California. NR:Weiss.

P:\Eureka\2020\020189-M-P-Mill\1 20-Site-lnv-PIan\PUBS\rpt5\2023061 2-MP-
SitelnvestWorkPlan-Rev02.docx




SECTIONS. .0 PAGENO.\

Department of Toxic Substances Control
Former McNamara and Peepe Lumber Mill
Monthly Summary Report
May 2023

This monthly summary report summarizes environmental site investigation and remediation
activities conducted by the Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) or by their
contractor, SHN Consulting Engineers and Geologists, Inc. (SHN) at the former McNamara and
Peepe Lumber Mill Site.

a. Actions during this calendar month (May 2023).

o February 2023 Stormwater Sampling Report. DTSC reviewed and approved the
stormwater sampling report for the February 2023 sampling event. The final report is
available on Envirostor. Frontier, the commercial [ab used for dioxin/furan analysis, was

acquired by Enthalpy. While the laboratory analytical results are presented in a slightly
different format, DTSC did not change labs.

» PRIMA Bench Scale Study Report. DTSC finished reviewing the Bench Scale Study
Report. The final report is available on Envirostor. The bench scale is not a remedy
decision document and should be seen as a component of a future feasibility study.

b. All planned activities for the next month and beyond (June 2023).

e Access Agreement. DTSC is working on an access agreement to install an additional
monitoring well on a private resident’s property south of the Site.

+ Site Investigation Work Plan. DTSC has reviewed the Site Investigation Work Plan and
submitted comments to SHN. US Environmental Protection Agency also submitted
comments on the Site Investigation Work Plan. DTSC is discussing these comments
with SHN. After the Work Plan is finalized, DTSC anticipates fieldwork will be conducted
this summer.




SECTION R ) PAGENO, &

Department of Toxic Substances Control
Former McNamara and Peepe Lumber Mill
Monthly Summary Report
June 2023

This monthly summary report summarizes environmental site investigation and remediation
activities conducted by the Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) or by their

contractor, SHN Consulting Engineers and Geologists, Inc. (SHN} at the former McNamara and
Peepe Lumber Mill Site.

a. Actions during this calendar month (June 2023).

« Site Investigation Work Plan. DTSC reviewed and approved the Site Investigation Work
Plan. The final work plan is available on Envirostor. Fieldwork started at the site on June
21, 2023. Cascade will be drilling through the cap to collect soil borings and groundwater
samples from temporary well points. A monitoring well will also be installed in the vicinity
of MW-1. The well maintenance of MW-1, re-decommissioning of the production well,
and installation of the monitoring well on a resident’s private property south of the Site
will take place in July using a local drilling company.

b. All planned activities for the next month and beyond (Juiy 2023).

o First Semi-Annual 2023 Groundwater Sampling Report. DTSC is currently reviewing the
groundwater sampling report.

= Virtual Quarterly Update Meeting. DTSC will be hosting a virtual quarterly update
meeting with DTSC, EPA, Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District, and Humboldt
Baykeeper on July 27 at 11am. An agenda will be sent out closer to the date.




€ a4ngi4 suoied0T IS €814 _ zzoz |Wdy
080°68T0Z0 NHS ejuiojljed ‘e1BOJY ‘DAL 2|EPUR|D BTOT
uonen|eaj uollelpaway

1A dequuni adoad @ BJEWENIA J3WI04

Su0I1e207 uonesilsanu| als

6102 ‘HidVv3 319009
- , :324N0Ss I9VINI

P
. |
e |
¥ \M_

- ia
| NOILVIOT T71IM DNIYOLINOW GITTVISNI ATMIN &

A
AHVANNOS TTIN YINHOH D

VIV ¥ ILIHINOD n

NOILYD01 TTIM DNIHOLINOW &

SECTION @r& L PAGENO. |

l onjgog 1ios @
mﬂ.

LNIOd T1IM AYVYOdIWIL ANV DNIHOF TI0S @

NOILVNV1dX3

T




EXPLANATION

G PRODUCTION WELL

& MONITORING WELL LOCATION

———= FIRE ACCESS ROAD

|| CONCRETE CAP AREA

D FORMER MILL BOUNDARY

o 200 \
S S|
1"=200'+ \
N
IMAGE SOURCE:
GOOGLE EARTH, 2019

FORMER MILL|
FACILITY |~
BOUNDARY |

e ‘“.

\\eureka\Projects\2020,020189-M-P-Mill\GIS\PROJ_MXD\Site_Investigation\ USER: mcurran DAT“EA: %}22/2%, 9:37fM

Former Mcamar& Peep;

Remediation Evaluation

1619 Glendale Drive, Arcata, California

Lu'mbr Mill

Site Plan

SHN 020189.040

February 2022

| Fig2_SitePlan

Figure 2




i 1 1ON 852\ L. PAGE NO, 22

EXPLANATION

STORM WATER
SAMPLE LOCATION

-+ DRAINAGE FLOW

__ STORM WATER
CONVEYANCE

1" =250'+

IMAGE SOURCE:
GOOGLE EARTH, 2019

o~ '

Former McNamara & Peepe Lumber Mill

Site Plan with
Storm Water Sampling Plan Storm Water Sample Locations
Glendale Drive, Arcata, California SHN 020189.050

\\eureka\projects\20204,020189-M-P-Mill\GIS\PROJ_MXDASWSPY USER: mcurran DATE: 3/1/22, 3:10PM

March 2022 | SWSP_Fig2_SitePlan_20220111 | Figure 2




SECTION_&E_L PAGE NO._ 4

Table 3-1
Historical Storm Water Sample Results
Former McNamara and Peepe Lumber Mill, Arcata, California

b S

2/18/21 0.0736 )5 <0.30 <1.0
12/15/21 0.351) <0.30 <1.0
SW-1 4/14/22 0.181] <0.30 <1.0
12/08/22 4,37 <0.30 <1.0
2127123 0.00 <0.30 <1.0
2/18/21 779) <0.30 <1.0
12/15/21 2.70] <0,30 <1.0

12/15/21 (R 0.308) - -

SW-2

A/14122 96.1 <0.30 <1.0
12/08/22 2.58] <0.30 <1.0
2127123 1.73) <0.30 <1.0
2/18/21 4.44)] 0.099) <1.0
12/15/21 6.82 0.091) <1.0
SW-3 4/14/22 0.179) <0.30 <1.0
12/08/22 4,47 ) <0.30 <1.0
2/27123 0.262) <0.30 <1.0
2/18/21 11.4) 0.11] <1.0
12/15/21 5.87] <030 <1.0

12/15/21 (F) 0.945 | - -

SW-4

4114422 0.233) <0.30 <1.0
12/08/22 3.30] <0.30 <1.0
2127123 0,255 <0,30 <1,0
2/18/21 8.04] 0.14) <1.0
12/15/21 4.06) <0,30 <1.0

WS 12/15/21 (F) 1.39) .- -
4114122 3.74] <0.30 <1.0
12/08/22 19.1] <0.30 <1.0
2/27/23 0.483 | <0.30 <1.0
12/15/21 63.9] <0.30 <1.0

12/15/21 (F) 0.0572] - -
SW-6 4/14/22 121} 0.48 <1.0
12/08/22 8.54 ] <0.30 <1.0
2/27/23 6.10] <0.30 <1.0

\\eureka\Projects\2020\020189-M-P-MIINO60-SW-Reporting\PUBS\data\20230419-
App.3 HistSWResulis.docx




SECTION 8'2 (v PAGE NO. 5

Table 3-1
Historical Storm Water Sample Results
Former McNamara and Peepe Lumber Mill, Arcata, California

12/15/21 <0,634 4.87) 0.21] <1.0
12/15/21 (F) <0,728 0.970) - -
SW-7 ANAI22 <0.771 0.317] 0.15) <1,0
12/08/22 2.59 36.8 0.12] <1,0
2/27/23 <0.799 1.66 ] <0.30 <1.0
12/15/21 <0,797 3.80] <0.30 <1.0
SW-8 12/15/21 (F) <0.733 2.38 - -
4114122 <0.715 1.35] <0.30 <1,0
MCL! 30 NR/ 1.0 NR
PHGsX 0.05 NR 0.3 NR

22,3,7,8-TCDD; 2,3,7,8-Tetrachlorodibenzodioxin was analyzed [n general accordance with EPA Method 8290

b pg/L: picograms per liter

€ 2005 WHO TEQ: 2005 World Health Organization's Texic Equivalency Quotient, TEF calculations, TEQs are )-
flagged as they are calculated from one or more result with a J-flag (Analyte concentration below calibration
range).-

d pentachlorophenol (PCP) and 2,3,4,6-Tetrachlorophenol (TCP) were analyzed in general accordance with
Natlonal Councii for Air and Stream Improvement, Inc, Method 86,07

e ug/L: micrograms per liter

< *ess than” the stated laboratory reporting limit

£ ]: estimated value

h (F): Field filtration prior to sample collection using a new 0.45-micron filter

I MCL: maximum contaminant level, State Water Resources Control Board, March 13, 2019

i NR: no reference

k PHGs: California public health goals, Office of Environmenta! Health Hazard Assessment, March 13, 2019

Weuraka\Projects\20201020189-M-P-MilN060-SW-Reporting\PUBS\data\20230415-
App.3.HistSWResulis.docx




___PAGENO. [v

Tahle 23 3. ! f
Groundwater Analytical Results SECTION L
2015 to 2022
Well Name pate PP | TCP | Chromlum | HOXEVAISRE |y ppe | Total | Ferrous | o vte | Sulfate | chioride| TeHD | YO©8
Chromlum Iron Iron {DIPE)
Units T8 — | mel uR/L maiL W/l

MW-1 5/13/2015 690° 14 - - - - - - - - - -
5/13/2015 {FD) 560° 1z ~ - - - - - - - - -
191142015 610° 120 - - - - - - - - - -
111172015 (FD) &70" 120 - - - - - - - - - -
5231206 830" 71 - - - - - - - - - -
5/23/2016 {FD} 1,100° 8 -- - - - - - - - - -
12114/2016 1.2 <1.0 <5.0 <5,0 0,99 25 <100 <10 18 19 - -
121442015 {F0) 1.2 <10 — - - - - - - - - -
5/8/2017 570° 8.4 - - - - - - - - - -
5/8/2017 |FD) 530a 7.9 - - - - - - - - - -

872172019 1,200° 29 - <10 = — - - - - oA | 17
31572021 460° 5.6 — - - - - - - - - -
2222022 920° 9,7 - - - - - - - - - _
8/23/2022 13007 | <1,000 BY| - - - - - - - - - -
MW-5 513,205 35" 4.3 - - - - - - - - - -
111120158 65° 33 - - - - - - _ - - _
523218 56" 16 - - - - - - - - - -
1211412018 39° 23 <50 <5,0 <0.19 330 600 <19 12 45 - -
57812017 46° 23 - - - - - - - - - -
8/21/201¢ - - — - - - - - - - - -
3/5/2021 18 <1.0 - - - - - - - - - —
22212022 19 1.1 - - - - - - - - - —
812372022 0,63 <%0 - - - - - - - - - =
MW-7 £/13/2015 0.3% <1.0 - - - - - - - - — -
111142015 <03 <1.0 - = - - - - - - - -
5/23/2016 <03 <1,0 - - - - - - - - - p
12/14/2016 <0.3 <1.0 — - - - - - - - - -
5/8/2017 <0.3 <1.0 - — - - - - - - - -

8/21/2019 <03 <10 - <10 = - - = = — <50 0.5
3/5/2024 <0,3 <1.0 - - - - - - - - - -
20T 0.26) <10 — = - Z - - - - - =
B/23/2022 0.12] <1,0 - - - - - - - - - -
MW-8 5/13/2015 <0.3 <1.0 - - - n~ - - - - - -
1171172015 <0.3 <1.0 - — - - - e -~ . - -
5/2312016 <0.3 <1.4 - - — - - - - - - -
1211472016 <0.3 <1.0 - - - - - - - - - —
5/8/2017 <03 <10 - - - - - - - - - -

82102019 <0.3 <1,0 - - — e Z - _ - - 05
37572021 <0,3 <1.0 [t - - - - - - - - -
212242022 C.13] <1.0 — - - - - - - - - -
8/23/2022 <0,3 <1.0 - - - - - — - - - -
MW-5 5/13/2015 <0,3 <10 - - - - - - - - - —
11112015 <03 <14 - -~ - - - - - - — -
5/23/2016 <03 <1,0 - - - - - - - - - —
12114/2016 <03 <1.0 <5.0 <5,0 1.4 <15 <100 - 1.8 50 ~ -
E/82017 <0.3 <1.0 — - - - - - - - - -

872172019 <03 <10 - - — Z - - o Z - 05
3/5/2021 <03 <1.0 - - - - - - - - - =
222/2022 0.21] <1.0 - - - - - - - - - -
8/23/2022 <03 <1,0 - - — - - - - = — -
MW-10 5/13/2015 <0.3 <1.0 - - - - - - - - - —
111142015 <05 <2,0 - - - - - - - - —- -
512372046 <03 <1,0 - - - - ~— - -~ - - -
121142016 <0.3 <1.0 <50 <50 0.71 58 <100 <10 1.5 0.6 - -~
5/8/2017 <0.3 <10 - - - - - - —~ —~ - =

8/2172019 <62 <1.0 = <1.0 —~ - - = — — Z80A] | <05

8/21/201G (FD) | <03 <10 - 0 - p - Z - - 2A0A | <05
3/5/2021 © <03 1,0 - - - - - - - - - -
3/5/2021 (FD) <03 <1.0 - - - - - - - - - -
212242022 0.12] =<1.0 - I - - - - — - - -
242242022 {FD} 0,26) <1,0 - - - - - - - - - -

§/23/2022 <0.3 <1.0

8/23/2022 (F3} <0.3 <10 - ~ - - - - —~ —~ - .
MW-11 5M13/215 <(.3 <1.0 - ~ - - - - - - - —
1171172015 0,67 «<1,0 - - - - - - - - . -
5/23/2016 <03 <1,0 - - - - - - - - - -
1211412016 <03 <1.0 - - - - - - - — - Z
5182017 19" <1.0 - - - - - - - - - -

821209 <03 <16 = ~ - - = - = = - <05
3/6/2021 <0.3 <1.0 - - - - - - - - - P
2§22/2022 0,14) <1.0 — - - - - -- -~ - — -
8/23/2022 <03 <1.0 -~ - - - - - - - - -
MW-12 5/13/2015 52" <1.0 - - - . - - - ~ ~ -
111142015 54" <1.0 - — - - - - - - - -
5/23/2016 f20" <1.0 - - - - - - - - - -
1211412016 46* <1.0 <5.0 <50 0,13 <15 <100 <10 5.4 23 - -
S/8/2017 a1* <1.0 - - - - - - - — — -
8/21/2019 119" 1.7 - - - - - - - - - -
3/5/2021 120" <1.0 - - - -- - - - - - -
202212022 120* 0.49 ) - - - - - - - - - -
812312022 130" <100 B9 — - - - - - - - - -
MW-13 22212022 0,27 <1.0 o - — = Z - = = - =

8/23/2022 0.77 <1.0

MW-14 272242022 a5* 1.7 - ~ - - - - - - - _
8/23/2022 a9 <10 B9 P - - - - - - - - -




ﬂ@aﬂ!ﬁﬁ:‘nﬁsa_u«aﬁnﬂmm:nﬁﬁ&wxéu.ﬁgsgﬁqﬁmpgmﬁu&eau_g& x4

(o]

=

54

2

0.

=

(=]

T

2

o3

GEE000 | L9L0~ | Z9r0- | 99gps | zewle | 998 | 8E60> | 8ZG0> | 06> [eer 6Lt ose’0>- | 611> | Ss80- | Stk oL S L> BEL> 591> BOTL> EZL> £8°L> £l> | Lo TZOTTLE 1M
215000 | 880> | 8180 | toro> | Loroe | sLeee | 6960 | 6960> | S0 (¥ 79'L> e 9> 0z 1= 951> e 551> 95 L> £ 1> £ZL> 520> | 69T 637> | 0zeoe ZZOE/EE/R

fee0n | Se90> | G69D= £E' 1> ZEL> £E 1> YT > YT L> zge> [g6L (66t {580 | 24> | 6580 | 6l¢» 95°L> 5L £0'T> oLl CLL> LE > [ET] (82 | 9590 ZTOUCET

PEZU0- | LLLU> | ZLE0> | Zeg0- | 780> | 289C> | 9450> | 94670> | EbZ> [ssL 581> 6EL> [T 65| 551> 15l 851> 751> 51T SLZ> 9L ] fz57 | erso= LZOZ/S/E ZLMN
59000 | NGOVS | §5L0> | WPQOSE | Zegoe | 090w | ALk £ SgE [g52 | WTA99E| £l PEL> 90" L 61> 00z &LT 507> [T el | zee0» | (g1t [g6's | ££070> ZEOZET/S

S0s0'0 LS e [IFx4 5k E5l> 7yt L SEE fres (133 [T 8L 1> LT > 95 L 6L1> Y5 1> 961> YT Y [t [ ooz 25610 ZTOTRLIT

i - [{] 2 o [} ] [i 0 0Lo/BLMGL § M

11z |waszi| segee |wlParsol | opzeo- | 9Z60> [ 6%l 62L> [S6r 68 | WTaege | 6t Ll oE > [orgz [62E [eoy sty [ Si1> jogl 0801 565 95510> | (04} ZZO%ELR

oz |warol] ssgo jwlossll sveoe | 8960» | [0Z> 107 ¥z 075 Warse | ek e 601> X ary [sry {oo LS 0z 1861 YEL LEL 0Z5 10 ZEOLETIE

[ [10E i €ri0> fog's £L50- | 8680 SEL> SEL> [2vZ LZZ wrasol | z¥i> 661> ol [ore £ ZEL> TE' 1> [rez gL' {118 5% VOE 8sg9'0> | {04 TZOTEET

sEL Igey | ZS90> fe'ol 1960~ | 6950- | 0T oZl> [L8g L¥E walsz | el SLL> SC 1> [Z8L (54 [ZrE 9l L'EE L3> i5ZL €76 g5 7550 ZZOL/CLE

BEP00 | LeL0» | LELT- | o/60» { 1560 | 9/60> | ¥E80> | VIR Lz fELL 95" > Tt 951> [rat SKL [TyE] SL'L> LI L1 Tl BE'L> T9zs fog'e_ | 6EST> LEZSS/E

g o270 | «[fr0 | «[sr0 A6 | W50 | ¥Z | #7850 oL oLl 55> «[¥9 #[EL M 80 [ (550 | 260 | «[¥Z 8L Y] «[0E #[51 Ll 0 (0d) 6102/ 128

10 : 00t> ool 5> X[ SE an zZe> 5> [ 5> V4 54 0 6L0¢/1T/8

0 - 0 a [i] 0 [i] 0 0 0L0Z/31/0L [
vole | (ZEL | fvS0- | 7Ze0> | ZTZY0- | 0eSO> | OE60- | OEEC> = B 25 1> opgt> [ BEl> | LIEC> | DEL 6l'L> Q€ L> YT 1> oF k> Sg1> OE'L> £0°5> s> | 680> TZOLELS

yEEOD | 0LL0> | 0400 e LUl 9¢g b> B9l 69L> 0ZZ> {55t 59°L> 1y 59°L> GL > 'L [ 09°L> [ GG [ oL e5'y fsez | 9evi- I

\9ECC | 0000 | 0090~ | €680 | 10> | 2oE0> | Sg60- [ SEEO> § LSZ> Y 151> UL 151> ol il 1T L 21> 6L'L> [ L5 L L 955 [vt'e | w2ooe LZOT/SIE

N £/50 — [123 nLe naze Mz | nog | Mie 56> LLOZ/E/LL

270’0 - 031 0 0 [i [ i 7 (0} 010Z/8 L0

¥500 - ogl ] [1] 0 0 [ 0 OLOZ/RL/0L S

YE WageLl s160> | Wasez | 96> 102> [E=4 oYL (4} oov'el | Waoenr | [ss6 £9°Z> £02> [iT4 s £V irLs CELL rusg L¥E OLIE oo’ | sg6e ZEOTIET/B

Tve | WaQe59 1 Lir0- | WaorZ | sl [v8'8 i 51> 05" | pop'sL |w'gogoT | 90z 062> [ 05z [T 13 [szw OLLL 65E [ 0TS ooyt | 0O IO

og6 | wag0l | 08g0- | WOy | 0Z1> rerl fra] [ DLz | DOEGE | WGOLEr | [¥Z) [z8'g £ul £29 [e2) BRI [ [P d e 56 oLoL 09/g 1760 1ZRT/S/E

LE OvE =0055 EL aN SL aN zz izz 0S5 {9 0ol 046 0Zs 0 L0ZLL/8

{REY — {oogot LE 0L [k 00z [T [ o) LLoZEsLL

19 - fooLi [3 [ [Fed 00z roLl 05> LLQZ/E/LL

Bz = 00LL [+3 [ilri4 Vi OEE 08 [} 0LozZ/8L/0L LM

Wi 1/2d 500 OHd V2
/N Ad 0g TOW ¥
baL 4a3L ElwT] Ja39d ua.uw._ u.nUum Qadad mmuum smo | ame Flibiy | muuz._.w OXH-6 wmux:.n qQar*H E._ux:.a .E._ux:.m mnus:.w FLRT un._w. m_._ %._M.M_._ aaxdH E.._MM_._ n.n.ul_. —_— —
oL | erer | teser |wLveT|-RLETL| 190l |ELETL oL |'CeveET | WIETL|LYETL| 1ML [ROETLLEETL LYETY 0L | [agupper, FOL ey RLET
A saguinT] adsad pue eAelMeNo
synsoY peanAfeuy uxald
-z algeL




NEW
BUSINESS




SECTION a4 e PAGE NO. |

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

To: Board of Directors

From: John Friedenbach

Date: July 13, 2023

Re: Ruth Lake Boat Lease Septic Issue
BACKGROUND

As you may recall, there are “Boat” Lease Lots on the west side of Ruth Lake. They are named as such
because you must access them using a boat. They are prohibited from having road and vehicle access,
RLCSD Policy 6400 — Boat Access Lease Site Improvements delineates the majority of the improvement
policies regarding these lease lots. Some of the relevant policy provisions are (see full copy attached pgs

H-8)

“6400 Boat access lease sites are recreational in nature. They are intended to provide a more
primitive experience than a road lease. This policy is intended to provide a balance between the
desire for tent camping, and the desire for dwellings capable of supporting year round use. The
Board of Directors recognizes that the District must conform to existing health and sanitation
regulations and the policies of many agencies. To that end, the Board may approve the

construction of a congregate residences as defined by the Trinity County Building and
Development Services,

6400.91 Boat leases are defined as those sub-leases sites adjoining the lake that have no road
access.

6400.10 Motor vehicles of any type are NOT to be used on boat access leases.

6400.21 Building and sewage disposal permits are required for all structures in Trinity
County, including boat leases.

6400.30 Sanitation
6400.31 Pit privies constructed in accordance with policies 6220 and 6225 are the
preferred method when minimal development is planned or present.
6400.32 Pit Privies can only support primitive development, i.e.: congregate residence
and small storage.
6400.33 The District will consider alternative methods on a case by case basis.
6400.34 Portable toilets are not acceptable,
6400.35 Pit privies, or alternate disposal systems must meet County and State
requirements to obtain a permit for an on-site disposal system, per Trinity County
Environmental Health (TC Health) and the North Coast Regional Water Quality Control
Board (NCRWQCB).

6400.36 Septic systems will not be allowed.

6400.37 The installation of a waste disposal system is required prior to consideration for
approval of further development.




section__ A ¢ paGENO._ X

6400.40 Water
6400.41 Running water will only be allowed outside of buildings and only if a Trinity

County approved gray water waste disposal system is installed according to policy
#6220.

6400.42 Lake water may be used only if permitted under Policy 8100,

6400.54 Congregate residence: "A dwelling or similar structure used for 10 people or less
that can be family members or not." Intended for seasonal use - are not subject to County
energy regulations, and does not need a heating system or insulation. Kitchen or utilities
are not allowed. Water can be carried in, but no plumbing is permitted.

6400.55 Total number of buildings allowed on a boat access lease site will be three.
Those building will consist of one pit privy, and if desired; one storage shed with a
maximum size of 120 square feet, one tent deck OR one congregate building.

RLCSD Policy 6220 — Individual Wastewater Treatment Systems On Recreational Sub-Lease Sited[s] also
contains a provision relating to boat leases,

6220.32 Boat access only leases must install a pit privy; septic systems are not allowed.
6220.321 If a vault privy is instalied, no running water (i.e.: pumped from lake or diverted
from stream or spring) will be allowed unless a separate gray water disposal system is
instatled.

6220.322 Construction of pit privies shall be in accordance with RLCSD policy number 6225.

RLCSD Policy 6225 — Construction and Maintenance of Pit Privies appears to be in conflict with current
state law and Trinity County health code regulations. See attached copy (pgs _Q—_S_

In 2003 the question of septic systems on boat leases came up. In response to that, Policy 6410 Septic
Systems on Boat Access Leases was developed. See copy of Policy 6410 attached (pgs _q_—@_).
Although technically it allowed septic systems on a case-by-case basis it ultimately it was determined
that it would be very difficult to develop, given the restrictions for boat only access. A review of our
HBMWSD records indicate there are only two boat leases that currently have a septic system. Admittedly,
our district historical records can be limited regarding prior development of lease lots. For one boat
lease, it appears that while the lease holder got all the appropriate Trinity County permits, he failed to
get permission through RLCSD or HBMWD. After extensive discussions, he was granted retro-active
approval.

DISCUSSION

Following the August Complex fire, there was extensive damage to many of the lease sites, including
several boat leases. Subsequent to the current policies regarding improvements on boat lease sites and
their development, the State of California and Trinity County have changed the laws and regulations
governing the permitting and use of pit privies or redwood vaults as a form of sewage disposal. Basically,




secToN_ 4 ¢ paceNno. B

they are no longer allowed. This will have an impact on boat lease holders that previously had pit privies
or redwood vaults as they will not be allowed to replace what they had. See attached email dated June
22" from Kristalynne Anderson of the Trinity County Environmental Health Department (pgs 1} - \:2)-

CURRENT REQUEST

We have received an improvement approval request from a boat lease lot holder who has asked to
install a composting toilet to replace the prior pit privy. Trinity County Environmental Health
Department was contacted to ask about their rules regarding composting toilets. See response email
(pgs _Y1- 1) stating that compasting toilets are not permitted as they do not fall within the Tier 1
Onsite Wastewater Treatment System (OWTS). Tier 1 — Low Risk or New or Replacement OWTS are
defined as New or replacement OWTS meet low risk siting and design requirements as specified Tier 1,
where there is not an approved Local Agency Management Program per Tier 2. There is also a current
code requirement that septic systems be at least 200 feet from lakes.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff seeks guidance from the Board regarding this issue. Staff recommends: 1) at a minimum staff
suggests that HBMWD, RLCSD, Trinity County Environmental Health, and State Water Board staff meet
and confer about possible options for sanitary waste processing on boat lease lots at Ruth Lake; and 2)
that a review of existing RLCSD policies be performed for compliance with current laws and regulations to
update any provision relative to sanitary disposal on lease lots.




section__ 9 & pace wo. -

POLICY TITLE: Boat access lease site improvements

POLICY NUMBER: 6400

6400 Boat access lease sites are recreational in nature. They are intended to provide a more
primitive experience than a road lease. This policy is intended to provide a balance between the
desire for tent camping, and the desire for dwellings capable of supporting year round use. The
Board of Directors recognizes that the District must conform to existing health and sanitation
regulations and the policies of many agencies. To that end, the Board may approve the
construction of a congregate residences as defined by the Trinity County Building and
Development Services.

6400.01 Boat lcases are defined as those sub-leases sites adjoining the lake that have no road
access.

6400.10 Motor vehicles of any type are NOT to be used on boat access leases.

6400.11 Boat access lease holders' have no right to access their lease site through adjoining
private property without the permission of the land owner.
6400.111 Permission of an adjoining landowner to cross private property may be
obtained, but the private landowner is under no obligation to grant or maintain such
privilege.
6400.112 Permission of an adjoining landowner to cross private property with a vehicle
does not imply the right to bring a motor vehicle on the buffer strip,

6400.20 Permission to make improvements
6400.21 Are obtained as listed in policy 6000,

6400.21 Building and sewage disposal permits are required for all structures in Trinity
County, including boat leases.

6400.30 Sanitation
6400.31 Pit privies constructed in accordance with policies 6220 and 6225 are the
preferred method when minimal development is planned or present.
6400.32 Pit Privies can only support primitive development, i.e.: congregate residence
and small storage.
6400.33 The District will consider alternative methods on a case by case basis.
6400.34 Portable toilets are not acceptable.
6400.35 Pit privies, or alternate disposal systems must meet County and State
requirements to obtain a permit for an on-site disposal system, per Trinity County
Environmental Health (TC Health) and the North Coast Regional Water Quality Control
Board (NCRWQCRB).

6400.36 Septic systems will not be allowed.




wotih_9d & maceno, £

6400.37 The installation of a waste disposal system is required prior to consideration for
approval of further development.
6400.40 Water
6400.41 Running water will only be allowed outside of buildings and only if a Trinity
County approved gray water waste disposal system is installed according to policy
#6220.
6400.42 Lake water may be used only if permitted under Policy 8100.

6400.50 Buildings
6400.51 Must have planning and/or building permits as required by Trinity County.
6400.52 May not have any running water or related plumbing fixtures installed except as

allowed under section 6400.40, above,

6400.53 No structure shall be placed at an elevation less than 2675 ft. (spillway level plus
21 ft.). Horizontal setback (from the 2675 ft level) must be 20 feet. Side and back lot line
spacing shall not be less than 30 feet. Lease lots wishing improvements but not able to
meet all of these requirements must be considered and approved on an individual basis by
both the RLCSD and the HBMWD Board of Directors.
6400.54 Congregate residence: "A dwelling or similar structure used for 10 people or less
that can be family members or not." Intended for seasonal use - are not subject to County
energy regulations, and does not need a heating system or insulation. Kitchen or utilities
are not allowed. Water can be carried in, but no plumbing is permitted.
6400.55 Total number of buildings allowed on a boat access lease site will be three. Those
building will consist of one pit privy, and if desired; one storage shed with a maximum
size of 120 square feet, one tent deck OR one congregate building.

Approved by the RLCSD Board of Directors: 7/24/2003

Revisions to 6400.53 Approved by the RILCSD Board of Directors: 9/14/2006

Addition of 6400.54 and 6400.55 approved by the RLCSD Board of Directors 11/09/2006
Revised and Approved by the RILCSD Board of Directors May 10, 2007




secTion__ L ¢ maceno._(p

POLICY TITLE: Construction and Maintenance of Pit Privies
POLICY NUMBER: 6225

6225 Trinity County will continue to allow the construction and maintenance of pit type privies
on boat only access recreational sub-leases under the alternative disposal section of the North
Coast Region Water Quality Control Board policy entitled “On the control of water quality with
respect to on-site waste water treatment and disposal practices.” The RLCSD has agreed to ac-
tively manage the construction and maintenance of these systems.

6225.10 Pit privies shall be allowed on boat access only leases. A lease with road access shall
have a Trinity County approved and inspected septic system. No exceptions can be granted.

6225.11 Pit privies can only support minimal development, i.e.: congregate residence and
small storage. Pit privies must meet County and State requirements to obtain a permit for an on-
site disposal system, per Trinity County Environmental Health (TC Health) and the North Coast
Regional Water Quality Control Board (NCRWQCB).

6255.12 An approved waste treatment system must be installed and approved before the
sub-lease site is occupied.

6225.13 Approval must be granted by RLCSD and HBMWD.

6225.131 Application shall be submitted in writing to RLCSD/

6225.132 Application shall include a plot plan showing location of proposed
privy, lot lines, water courses, and high water lake level. It shall also include a plan showing
construction details and materials.

6225.133 Trinity County retains final authority relating to wastewater treatment
and disposal on the districts lands.

6225.134 The district shall inform the County of all pit privies approved within
the buffer strip and shall work closely with the County to maintain the integrity and intent of
these systems.

6225.14 Erosion contrel When a project requires the removal of dirt, or excavating, area
to be excavated must be clearly marked on ground. Excavated materials shall be utilized on site
at the greatest extent possible. Disturbed ground must be contained treated to ensure no erosion
into the lake and/or creeks. (See “Ruth Lake Buffer Strip Road and Lease Site Standards and
Policy #6000; Recreational Lease Site Standards, section 6000.60; Erosion Control.)

6225.20 L.ocation:

6225.21 Pit Privy must be at least 100 feet from the high water lake level of 2675’
(Spillway level +21 ft.) Horizontal setback (from the 2675 ft level) must be 20 ft.




secton__d ¢ pace NO._ ]

©225.22 Pit Privies must have at least a 50 foot set back from any perennial or seasonal
stream or spring,

6225.23 Pit Privy must be at least 10 feet from lease lot lines.

6225.30 Construction shall be as set forth below. Minor deviations must be noted in the applica-
tion. Significant changes in design or materials must be approved by the Trinity County Health
Department.

6225.31 Pit

6225.311 Pit shall be at least 4’6 in depth, and 3°6” in width and breadth (ap-
prox, 55 cubic feet).

6225.312 Pit shall be lined with 1 x 6 redwood or pressure treated lumber. Boards
should have a 2" horizontal gap between them.
6225.313 Pit shall have an open bottom,

6225.32 Sill
6225.321 Sill shall be concrete or concrete block.

6225.322 Sill shall rest on the ground surrounding the hole walls, not upon the
walls themselves.

6225.33 Floor may be concrete slab or tongue & groove redwood or pressure treated ma-
terial.

6225.34 Enclosure
6225.341 Shall be constructed to be insect and animal tight.
6225.342 Shall have a self closing door which provides an ingect tight seal.
6225.343 Tongue & groove siding is preferred. Plywood siding is acceptable if
properly installed, preserved and maintained. Particle board is not acceptable.
6225.344 All openings except the door must be screened to prevent the entry of
insects.

6225.40 Maintenance
6225.41 Pit Privy shall be maintained to be insect and animal tight.
6225.42 Pit Privy shall be maintained to be odor free.
6225.50 Inspections
6225.51 RLCSD shall inspect site prior to approval to ensure adequate set backs.
6225.52 RLCSD shall ingpect during and after construction for proper materials.

6225.53 RLCSD shall inspect annually to ensure proper maintenance and for signs of
failure or overloading.




secTion_ ) & PAGEND, S
Approved by the RLCSD Board of Directors; May 9, 1996

Revised and approved by the RLCSD Board on May 10, 2007.




secnow__ﬂ_&_ PAGE NO, fi

POLICY TITLE: Septic systems on Boat access leases

POLICY NUMBER: 6410

6410 Septic systems on boat access leases will be considered on an individual basis

but are, in general, not encouraged because of the rough terrain, difficult installation, difficulty
in pumping, difficulty in removing the system in case of failure and the difficulty in positioning
because of proximity to the lake, creeks, springs and other water courses. The majority of boat
access lease sites will not support a septic system.

6410.01 If a pit privy is deemed insufficient for any reason by the leaseholder, RLCSD,
HBMWD, or Trinity County Environmental Health, a septic system may be considered.

6410.02 Each project must be approved in advance and in writing by RLCSD, HBMWD, and
Trinity County Environmental Health. Initial application must be made to RLCSD,

6410.10 Each proposed septic system will be considered on its own merits. The existence or
nonexistence of other systems in the area has no relevance to the proposed project.

6410.11 The proposed site must meet all the minimum County and State requirements to obtain
a permit for an on-site sewage disposal systern, per Trinity County Environmental Health
(TCEH) and the North Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board (NCRWQCB).

6410.12 Construction shall be in accordance with an approved Trinity County Disposal System
permit. Copies shall be filed with RLCSD before any work shall begin, as well as the completed
copy when project is final inspected by TCEH.

6410.13 The installation of a septic system is only one consideration for approval of further de-
velopment.

6410.14 The leaseholder making the application will be responsible for providing transportation
to the lease site for inspectors.

6410.20 No mechanical (wheeled, tracked or similar) equlpment shall be used in the digging of
the hole for the tank or leach field.

6410.21 A plan for the placement of spoils from the tank and leach fields and control of erosion
of all disturbed earth will be provided by the leaseholder at the time of initial application.

6410.30 The permit application must identify a primary and repair leach field in accordance with
para. 6410.11 above.




SEGTION Qe PAGENO, 1 D

6410.31 If the main field is unable to handle the liquid volume placed on it, as second field may
be established and excess liquids pumped to it, with an approved permit from TCEH.

6410.32 Excess solids may be disposed of in one of the following ways, depending on individu-
al site conditions to be determined by Trinity County Environmental Health Department:

A. Transferred to containers capable of being sealed liquid tight, then, transferred to an
approved disposal site.

B. Transferred to a pit constructed to pit privy standards but without wood siding, then to
be immediately filled in,

6410.321 In either case, prior permission must be obtained from RLCSD, HBMWD, and TCEH,
at which time a review of the suitability of the system and the lease use shall be conducted.

Approved by the RLCSD Board of Directors; July 24, 2003

Approved by Trinity County Environmental Health :

reviewed by HBMWD:

reviewed by NCRWQUCB:

Policy 6410 -~ Septic systems on boat access lease sites
Policy #2000 - "Executive Officer™




SECTION____Q;.,(_"/___ PAGE NO.__\ \

John Friedenbach

From: Kristalynne Anderson <kanderson@trinitycounty.org>

Sent: Thursday, June 22, 2023 3:02 PM

To: 'John Friedenbach'

Subject: RE: Question re Composting Toilets at Boat Lease Lots on Ruth Lake
Hello John,

We have to use both Waterboard and Trinity County Code.

Here is the TCC code section: 15.04.150 - Discharge of sewage.

It shall be unlawful to discharge into or permit to be discharged from any privy, cesspool, septic tank, container, sewer
pipes or conduits, not connected to a public sewer system, sewage, poliuted or contaminated water or any matter or
substance offensive or injurious or dangerous to public health, where such water overfiows and any land whatever
including tidelands, or where such water empties, flows, seeps or drains into or adversely affects any springs, streams,

rivers, lakes or other waters or any public highway within the county, or where such water is accessible to insects or
rodents.

Additionally, all systems must be designed per the Tier 1 OWTS policy standards, which call out the exact type of septic
system and tanks allowed, including the 200" setback from the lake for all new systems. A composting toilet is not one of
the approved methods.

Kristy Anderson, REHS

Director of Environmental Health
61 Airport RD/PO Box 476
Weaverville, CA 96093

{530) 623-1459 x 2831

From: John Friedenbach <friedenbach@hbmwd.com>

Sent: Thursday, June 22, 2023 2:44 PM

To: Kristalynne Anderson <kanderson@trinitycounty.org>

Subject: FW: Question re Composting Toilets at Boat Lease Lots on Ruth Lake

Hi Kristy,

A follow up question:

The current Ruth Lake CSD policies state that a privy toilet is allowed on a Boat Lease sit.

I recall a discussion with you post August Complex Fire during the recovery that when this topic came up, you mentioned
that Trinity County does not allow privy toilets. Can you please confirm if my recollection is correct and provide a copy
of the relevant building or health code for our files?

Thank you,

John

From: John Friedenbach <friedenbach@hbmwd.com>
Sent: Wednesday, June 21, 2023 2:42 PM
To: 'kanderson@trinitycounty.org' <kanderson@trinilycounty.org>

1




Ce: office@hbmwd.com SECTION_iQ—-_ PAGE NO. ]Q

Subject: Question re Composting Toilets at Boat Lease Lots on Ruth Lake

Hi Kristy,

We have a Boat Lease Lot requesting to install a composting toilet.
What are the Trinity County regulations on these?

Thank you,

John Friedenbach

General Manager

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
www.hbmwd.com

707-443-5018 work

707-362-7509 cell




ENGINEERING




sgcTioN_ 10 i g PacENO. |

5
GEI

MEMO

To: Mr. John Friedenbach, General Manger
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

Date: July 6, 2023

Re: Mainline Redundancy Pipeline Project — Geotechnical Conditions
GEI Project No. 2301333

Purpose:

GEl's review of existing information and field observations on April 26, 2023 indicate there are several
geologic hazards (fault and landslide) along the proposed grant scope of work alignment. The proposed
pipeline alignment from West End Road to the Turbidity Reduction Facility (TRF) (GHD 2022) travels
through a previously mapped landslide (mapped by Taber 1994) and crosses the Mad River Fault Zone at
two locations at the TRF. The hazards and pipeline alignments are shown in Figure 1. There is moderate to
high risk of damage to the pipeline installed along this alignment due to permanent ground deformations
due to land sliding or fault displacement. The purpose of the proposed pipeline is to provide a redundant
pipeline to the current distribution pipeline, which was constructed within and been impacted by a separate
landslide near the TRF. Therefore, we recommend that the proposed pipeline be realigned to avoid these
hazards and/or that it be designed to withstand ground deformations to provide the Humboldt Bay Municipal
Water District (HBMWD) with a seismically resilient pipeline that will achieve the purpose of providing
increased reliability and redundancy.

Recommendation:
GEIl recommends an alternative pipeline alignment that either avoids the geohazards or is designed to
withstand ground movement related to these geohazards be considered. The pipeline alignment contained

in the grant scope of work is shown in Figure No. 1 as the yellow line. The proposed new GEI alignment is
shown as the green line in the same Figure.

Hazard 1, Landslide — The depth of the slide may be 35 to 50 feet deep. The pipeline can be installed under
the slide using horizontal directional drilling (HDD) or micro tunneling. Micro tunneling cost significantly more
than HDD and may not be cost effective. However, these methods cannot navigate the changes in vertical
and horizontal direction and stay within the existing and available HBMWD pipeline easement. If permanent
easements outside of the available HBMWD easement cannot be obtained, GEI recommends incorporating
engineering controls in the pipeline design to reduce the risk of damage from landslide movements, such as
through the use of flexible pipe or Earthquake Resistant Ductile Iron Pipe (ERDIP).

Hazard 2, Fault— Realign the pipeline in the vicinity of the TRF facility to avoid the fault by traveling parallel
to the fault and while avoiding both the existing TRF and future District facility footprints. Figure No. 1
indicates the possibility the HDD pipeline will cross the fault. If the fault cannot be avoided, incorporate
engineering controls in the pipeline design to reduce the risk of damage, such as through the use of flexible
pipe or Earthquake Resistant Ductile Iron Pipe (ERDIP), and some realignment of the pipeline to attempt to
cross the fault as orthogonally as possible.

Additional geotechnical studies to define the fault location and characterize the landslide, and consulting
with an HDD/ consultant to support the alternative alignment will be necessary.

www.geiconsultants.com




secTioN_10:\ & PAGE NO._A

Mr. John Friedenbach, General Manger -2- July 6, 2023

Phase 1 Grant Implications:

The FEMA grant approved the proposed TRF pipeline alignment identified in the grant application as shown
in Figure No. 2. Furtthermore, the grant specifies HBMWD must receive approval of any change in the
scope of work shali be evaluated before its implementation. The FEMA grant specified four geotechnical
borings along the proposed pipe alignment at the TRF to fadilitate the existing Phase 1 design. HBMWD
and GEI recently met with Cal OES grant administrator to discuss the current alignment concerns and
proposed alighment change for the pipeline. Cal OES confirmed that a change to the scope of work in the
grant must be approved by FEMA prior to moving forward with realigning the pipe and corresponding
design plans. Although unaffected by the hazard concerns at the TRF, the project's proposed pipeline
alignment at the Essex Control Facility cannot move forward until the change in the scope of work at the
TRF is approved.

Basis for additional geotechnical studies:
After reviewing the existing boring information, there appears to be adequate information to move forward
with the Phase 1 design except at the fault location.

The previous gectechnical explorations did not identify the fault location. Data from the previous borings
also suggest that the fault (dashed blue ling) could be further to the east of whare itis currently mapped.
The mapped fault and the possible fault location based on boring data are shown in Figure No. 1. Defining
the fault location would be an imporiant first step to identify whether the pipe can be realigned o avoid the
fault or whether it needs to be designed to cross the faulf. We propose to perform several seismic refraction
and electrical resistivity geophysical survey lines orthogonal to the mapped fault trace and perform geologic
mapping to define location of the fault. Depending on the findings of the geophysical surveys and geologic
mapping, it may be warranted to drill one or more angled borings northeast of the fault to try and intersect
the fault plane and confirm interpretations from the geophysical surveys and define rock characteristics in
the fault zone.

Seismic refraction lines also have the benefit of informing the rip ability of the subsurface matetial, if an
open trench along the alignment is selected for pipeline installation.

Additional borings and an inclinometer would also be necessary to identify the depth of the landslide and
evaluate the magnitude and rate of movement. Additionally, if a trenchless pipe installation methodology is
selected, deeper borings with downhole testing would be necessary to support the design.

There are numerous existing historical borings at the TRF site, and the existing boring information is
adequate to move forward with the pipeline design outside of the fault and landslide.

A seismic survey s proposed at the Essex Control Facility to define shear wave velocity characteristics of
the soils and to complement the existing boring data at the site.

Schedule and Financial Implications:
There will be financial and schedule project impacts associated with the pipeline realignment. They are:
. Requires additional easements

. Requires additional geotechnical work to locate the fault, depth and activity of the slide, and
inform trenchless design.

. Requires additional survey and adjustment fo the civil design task 7.

. Schedule timeline increase in the completion of the Phase 1 design. The process to obtain

approval by FEMA of the scope of work change could fake 12 to 18 months. The completion
of the geotechnical investigation and Phase 1 30% design could take an additional 6 months.

. Additional project management cost resulting from an increase in managing the project for
the additional year to year and a half,
. The anticipated additional costs to complete the preliminary design are:

o Preparation of the scope of work application to FEMA - $15,000
o Geotechnical investigation - $70,000



SECTION_\ D L&y PAGE No. =

Mr. John Friedenbach, General Manger -3- July 6, 2023

o Specialty HDD consultant - $120,000

o Survey -$15,000

c Increase in Tasks 1 and 7 budget - $20,000.

o The total increase in the Phase 1 cost is anticipated to be in the range of $240,000.

A more detailed estimate of additional costs can be provided if HBMWD moves forward with the scope of
work change submittal to FEMA.

E‘&'E‘-" uséwd by Mark Marin
Mark Martin sopmmesenasen

Date’ 2023.07.05 16,20 25-0700"

Mark Martin, P.E.
GEI Consultants, Inc.



2023

SECTION | ©. V& PAGE NO.

July 6

4

, General Manger

Mr. John Friedenbach

1

Figure No. 1 Grant Proposed Phase 1 Alignment changes at the TRF

wewuby pesodold |

# 01

s e

£202 e

‘op a4nBiy

ujusoj|[ED ‘oI
13IS| 1510A [BCO[UNYY 4B JplogUInH

N

N¥Id 3118

wewulyy 39_5_@._" i
d

ejuiojeD AUnaD Iploqwnk|
198[01d Aouepunpay aujjujely Jo101I0D OMINEH
UONOBSEAU| [BULDBI00S

spijspug; oy Yieeusq uawubye
880[JaU AABUIGHE pasodold

VF
UNey S|S0 « == =
Ineg JoAY PEW =

© Hisiogro g

epiispue eanoy [ " R R
(vB01) 7 ° i ﬁ;ﬂlaﬁslsia.aazaai4h_dhm

; ! e LI UOITREAT [ERADTIRE

Jeqe), WOy SRIFPUET 4 , ﬁhﬁ\ﬁw?}.ﬁg}ig;al 3 ity oty

ourjadig posadoly AIaMNON

i
wubije sulodid




_5-

Mr. John Friedenbach, General Manger

July 6, 2023

e
D

PAGE NO.

secTioN 1 &,

Figure No. 2 Proposed Grant Alignment

Wi s( AR poipor) "EUaT THGY IpRal pIR wjparsd (0 ALNRD IR eATPUDPNATE PR SIHATT G OAMNTH 13308 ey
e At 2] puo Fow AR i DIGEYIIUN & ojaiduoo) ‘menaam B dei o j nanl 8 T A 440 Aq DOGNOAE £ AN 0 BA AN (RBEU (FEVONbanIDY X DO EY Burgiai 1003 Jofie AnfieieD ‘noweo aonusden A 1)

SPTRIEYTY 16 L] TDRALED U1 BN DU AUE 10 Appes U0t sl pup Ay {eXR VUUTD pug #Rocad sensaied AU 10) AIGROE 0 BTRURIMTREOD A0 ADEINIO 911 INIE IREUTIER JO SUOINUBTRIR G 10N IMPIRH T8 VORISR 'QHD e S eindard pf 0219 uaga TIU R8O AAR UM 2D
Lt 0 Rl 0 it 4 M ek AL i TN DANHTH FREOTILLILL NSRRI N DE TN

sair i t&tﬁ’:nﬁqi?!? B DECWERT 404 o) OXCALRT LD, 1 £ 055K YD My ARG B 81f
T b pnedeig i mpopy Buzey a3 LDFD G | PRIOIIND MiRlgSIFIG CU6L OYN RID
mN ain m_ n_ : LA ? mpinger 2 Wiy ity AL oy
den sBULOg |BO[ULRI0BD) | ne Ay pvedshe @) woia duskiey By ) Sl g a0 (eLLPPD YRTITY UOLISa] Y
] vty B ooy powg g [ wwemeg e 1ng
- s o oL ] whg S LN Ay B —
0202 48v 1} | @il @ » _..un R o6z 002 OBl 00b o% 0
v| vespoy  108l0ic Aouepunpay eUUEL 10181100 v () PRI e it semiu et e £ " ¥ ISNY 9215 sodvd
paavthl | mquny qer  191ISIQ JDIBAA [RADIUNY ARE IPIOGUINH aneny PN ey L] aeossmieie o g ey iy g R g

ray g

L1 [wnos o) seonpey.0tK.Ee ¥
v ] (uedg Kieusion)
e ) tjioN 03 Jasnpey
; | W0EX.ESM AL ,0E puB
(uoda Areuuon)

153 03 Add LP2IM
9] YZX.0E MaN (IEJ8U)




SECTION_| D} ,A PAGENO. |

JaauBiug 'SUSASIS UBYIEN JC LBANS Nowjed "yl OHD

Fr

BZ0E/LID MG

Jafieusy [B15U55) (4OBAUSRSL] LYIT JOLSI] JHIBM [Bdiunty ABg 1BI04WNH

‘pencitithy’

JaBeusy eloid og sewret uasuAlSLYD Uk

DS LB PPES poL=d S L ang
00°195'51 § paotonu| fjsnoild £204/9/8 PRGNS AlReatsag
D0°'8LE 05E apQeenGEN  DOISFSE | § T A \\ NN\
(00704 218) (g} ofeumsey  {0C'6LSS) (g} Bueny  |loo'eseaLs) {556) eDeuiggey
006802 § ] [ooosesr $ | [ooooiisE 8 00000'59Y'Z 5 1500 LOr0dd TWICL |
| I 1
- S - 3 - ] - YRHOM €3080 FONVHD ToL01]
I I
[ 1
B - SUI0UO FONVHD L T siRpio sBuEgg| R0
C000022 5 - 5 0600022 3 NHOM SAIGaY TW.CL]
00000 c& B &1 ToPPE | 19515 seoIanG (oweul| e
DOO0DER 3 1 JI3PPET [B5]5 SSIWEIS SpAdld| 1=y
00000 ¢4 B EE] A3[3 FeaeHIa ve Buboal] Hodang [epdiey § sA0lsd| o
00000 85 $ vE ad
0o 006'Sk ] KES i
CO0S6'L £ 41 Al
00000 25 B vz B g
Co'00022 B 05 66000 2 $ %05 00000 7 & 51 DI, suc(e, polddng 1o AGIISSSs|] 3 Aquessy] 1y
- g R & T T LN R - 2INPSUPS Pig sMUPRY]
0008025 $ O0T08Ea L 3 00°DOLGE2 0000D'SSY'T 5 Z % b SVHI Y10
000G BYZ' L 5 Z J5vHA WLC]
- $ - $ - 5 00000801 §|ooooosal % 1 L =8 soueulaped [l F (U]
- $ - S - $ 00000 62 5 | ooooo’sz 5 s1 3 TSN, 10D [ooIS SSalIES (2| (1) IEsa B uslund] 52
- $ - 3 B $ 06°000 G687 S | 000581 S 1 008 SBIEE ] gl doRAad % Ny ysiumd| 12
- 5 - B - § 00000001 $ | 00700005 B v T ElEE ] P o1 4o buprer buwni| gz
- $ - E] - 3 00°000°6k 5] 000005k E il L Buroer (eI J5) UmODenEL g dnes| 52
- 5 - B - § 0000008 $ | 0000008 5 EE} H )
- 5 - T - B 00000 FL S| 00000 7L 5 s1 b ToeERD Ui Budd ¥ SOUNg BumRemed| 6%
- 5 - 5 - 5 a000L L2 $|oowolizk & s1 3 pUSd uoRRotiad| ZE
- B - s - § 00008 E9) §]0000389L & 51 3 GopEZGoNaq g UheZaoi| L
- ] - 3 WY -  SSYHd
00°005'SLE L $ T 35vHE L0l
00700080+ § 3 - B 0000080+  § 3 00000 801 ${0000080F  § s1 3 S[59.| eouBRUOfied o] B 1emd| G-
- g - s - $ 0006028 § | 00°000'26 < 1 3 SoAE/ Sy [ea1g ceaelg 21 (2 eyl g ysung| gL
- 3 - g - $ 00D00'S6Y BEEEED E Fil G0 SEieIe | 2l SoleARd B Iasul Yeng|  Z)
B 3 B B - $ 0000006 § | 00O000GE g v3 T el YRN 0 dmeg bunoer buwn L] o
B 3 - B - $ 000005 § | 000C0EY S El 3 Bujoer [1oy2] Jo) thapayeL 3 dnjes| &
- § - E - $ 00°600°08 § | oooo'es 3 V3 z S04 J0 UGIREsul| i
- 3 - s - § 00000 7L $ | 00000 %L S $1 L uossE] upw Bujdld F saund bupaemag| g-l
DO00L 2} 5 B - 5 oiO0LZEL 8 3 00 D0 L2k B Eil 3 PUOd UoREanIeg | &L
[ 3 %01 D0 0BE 9% S %0k - $ 00008 €94 $|0000gE8L & S1 UogE)GOWad § URRBIGCH
TWLOL ApuenD LNNOWY Aguenty LNNOWY fpuenny  |snien 10egu0g 20 N W wejl - | SSVHA| # Wl
] 3 £l ¥
7 Q3LT TGO TV T SO0M3d SNOIATHd + -7 o LONHINGD TYNIDINO: . 3 - usgdiicgag)
WS Saue
€521-59006 VO ‘sepbuy su] 978888 (Fig) Wuoud
- 4] Jue) EIPSIY 3.2 SZZEY MO 'saquInioD
e e E05CY 1 XOPIDo ] “PY ASRUNH DSES
e aaLApe JuawuAed pens Auedwon ussusisnyg suliz] 01D (xJped ‘Sdiy “1=apnon) Du| "Adedilog Tasuxgsiig suie
GOTSLZLEZ "N oy BOIAIBS XG0T BIIDWY J& Mueg :ssaippy Buiddiys fwoag
Auedwos ussURGSHYD IUAET] swmep =0y
£656008Z0 way am d32 SEDU-ZOSGE WO ‘Bng
95£000LZL wAY HOY B0SE-FL005 wD ‘se136iny 507 {irew eo1nues [e50d
VN BRIy JO jueg 60IEPLXOT O ~§°(1 Jeinban} o8I JorEm lediowmiy Aeg Ip1oqung
FUEY SOINHIT fuedwog uasuagsiyn auiet sRppY Buliien ‘DL ZJ0ANI

£20Z 1 AR ©1 £202 I [Hdy pouad YIopn 1o
2 # 1S3N03y LININAYd
£Z0T ‘g aunp
YEZLAZL # qor sude

08014 BoRENNIELEY Z J0308}[02 - 3913SH] Jaep ediojuniy Keg Iplequng




scrion_10:1\ page NO.__

J125u1BUT ‘Suasals UBIEN JO UBAIINS Youied U QHD

202192/ 2 e PanIsTy
abEugp [BI3USD ‘YORGUSPSIS LYo T0INS sSiss [ediouniy ABg Ip1oqunH
“pancIddy
SLOLY'SEES Ppouad siy1 ang 1aBRuBp 102(0ld (88 SeLWE UssuasILD Buke
“Toolc0se & Psaosu AEnonsid TR0TISS PERUIANS AlFHRedsaE
“elzelsess segolendeN  ODOLEOSE  § sroweez $ AT, \\ u“\
{5 2ST'6T8) {ops) oleuwmay  (00POL'ELS) (950) Buery  |(SZTBPSGES] {255) aBuiRey
00°570°586 3 | [oocadviz ¢ | |oosgsoe & 00'000'58F'Z. § 1500 Lo3rcad 10|
[ 1 I
- $ - s - H - SHGH HIGH0 ZONVHO V.0
,
|
- SHIAUOIINVHD; T e e s s £epd0 sBueyd]  # 03
OGO00TE 5 MH0M SAILATY Tv.101]
00000 28 s 1 ISP Po0S w=a| mHS eS| gy
00600 67 5 =l JEPT] [PHS SSos ankold| I
00000 CL 5] vd 7515 WB IR 16 BAUCold odans NEfsuled % SAoiies| g
00000 8G 5 k£ eS| N 03 GrjeS BUpPSr Bllinl] -y
0000057 7 v= SINEA, S1CD 19078 ESR|UIEIS L&k (1) 1edl 3 Jalind| v
00T B 31 SEIae 2 doEAen  lIesu] Jslind| gy
PO 000 ES 3 VI 10 jo uCHEEsU [z
00'000°2C S %05 00000 22 i 00000 77 5 51 Blidia SUILICIe, Pellddnis Jo AIquiossesi] § Aquesey| |y
R R - : g 3ALIOAY ard = - AINPAYDS PIA AAgPRY[ - -
COSHOEYS s [ Z 2 L 3SVHd V101
[ Z26VHd V101
- $ - 5 - 5 00 GO0R0} S [000008B0E S Ell T sS61 woueUlialsd [BUld 8 BIHl| 62
- B - 3 - 5 0000052 S[C00008L S & L SIAEA, 020 10918 SIS 2k (1) hEsUl g gsund]| 87
- £ - £ - < 007G00"S5 I EEE g Ell 008 SISl 2L QO/aAa) B (IesUl Wsibind| /T
- B - 3 - 5 B0°00C 60k | oooceS HEE T TEseie PN of e Bupoer Buuinl | g-Z
- 5 - 5 - H G0CUG & S | 00'000°SF 5 s1 T BUpEr [Exhe] 10} WWOPSeL 3 Oma8| 6¢
- $ - 5 - s 0000008 S [ C0C00CE 5 w2 z S0 10 UaRlesll| P T
00°000 7L H L - 5 o0000FL S B To000TL s|oooo0YL _§ 1 L USSERD) Ul Buidlg g sdwing Salsiemad] €T
00528 L€ 5] %ST = g Q0GCELE 8 A 0000L L2+ B 1 L PUod UoHECSd| &€
- 5 - S - 5 00008 ESF S| oo00sEaL 6 ST 3 UOEIgoWad § Logeiaon| 12
- B - § WS- 7 35%Hd
00°005'512°F $ } 3S¥Hd TY10L
00'000'30L 3 I 00000B0L S I - $ 00'000°80% s[o0c0080L  § s1 3 155 ), SoUBLLICIS 18Ul 5 BRI
- § - S - B 0000026 $ | 00'000Z6 3 s1 [ SR SIED (0918 52|08 21 (2] (58 USiuing] gL
- 5 - E - E 00000567 HEEED % A1 [ SeIsE o J018AR0 B (IBISL] usung| 27 .
- B - S - g 0000005 § | bonon'g BEEE I TEIRE] PN 0 dries puprer buny| gv
- 5 - g - B GOO00'SE §[00CO0SY & Sl [ Bupmer e ] 1o] Inepeie L § Omog| o F
- g - 3 - § 5000009 S | 00°00008 | v3 z
00000 7L g I - S 0G0V, $ L 00000 FL 5 | COD00 VL S €1 T
00'00L 221 3 L 000022t § T - B 0000L LTt $|ogoosEr & S1 L plod uogeredisd| &1
00°0Z% 271 5 %06 COOBEDL & %0 00OF0'LEL S %08 00'008 €9 § [00CORESL  § S1 T USREZIGOLISE § UOREallaon|
TWI0L RRuEnd LNROWY AmuEng LNNOWY Fjizeng  Jeren 1oenuos @1d N aun Auent w3 - 1 ISVHd| # way
3 E] a v
o CALT N0 IVIOL 00134 SNOIATH VY LNODTWNISING - :

££21-58008 V2 'sEEbuy 307

*1g Jmua] BIPSY BOLZ

[ el G09Sk XOmpioa]
63 201ApE Jusiuufied Rz Aupdwon ussusLng sUAE] /0

U T
£ozo8as (r19) rauclg
8ZEEY OIYO “SHREUINIOD

“pu foRURH 09¢0
oy 'fuedwen UssUSIIY DUl

o sauwre]

{x3ped 'sdn ‘R1R07)

GOZELZLETE “ON 3O S0IAEG XOGHI0T EINAUNY Jo LT :ssazppy Guddiyg wold
AuedwoD uasudspEus auke BWEN Y

€BS6005Z0 yaY 84 03 SE00-Z0SE6'¥D BH8Ing
#5E0001EL vay Hov S09EFL006 WD 'sEEBuy 507 (nEw 3313 [B350d 6%0T Od

VN "Bl JO yueg G09EPL XO8 "0d ' rerrbay) 1DInEI0 SEN [ediopunly Aeg 3pequinH

Hueq sSWREIT Auedwon ussusysHYY Suie] sssaippy Suiten 0L IDI0ANI

£Z0Z "9Z eun 03 £202 '€ KBl polad ylopm 1od
£ # 1S3N0IY INSWAY
£20Z ‘gg ounp
YEZLIEE # qor auie]

Jo8l03d UOIRIIIGRYSY Z 103991102 - FOLFSIA JejeM [edioiln |y feg Ipiogquing



FINANCIAL




HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT SECTION _IQ_ %_ﬂ;, PAGE NO. |

To: Board of Directors
Date: July 13, 2023
From: Chris Harris

RE: June 2023 Financials

Due to the timing of processing and payment of final bills for the year-ending June 30, 2023, staff is unable
to provide financial information in time for inclusion in the Board packet. Staff will provide the entire
financial packet prior to the Board Meeting July 13, 2023.




HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT SECTION_‘_@;Q_ D, PAGE NO. _|_ —

To: Board of Directors
Date: July 13, 2023

From: Chris Harris

RE: FY2022/23 Project Budget Reallocation

Review

As the Board is aware, the District has a multi-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). Implementation of the
CIP requires significant financial resources. In order to minimize the impact on the District’s municipal
customers In any one fiscal year, staff uses a combination of funding mechanisms including grants, loans,
and Advance Charges. The Project Budget Reallocation is a means to supplement the Advanced Charges,
using funds already collected from the Municipal Customers.

Each year as part of the budget process, staff completes a thorough analysis of the status of funds as related
to the Project Budget. Once staff has identified the status of all projects, unspent funds are then available
to be reallocated as Advanced Charges to other large capital projects — thus the term “Project Budget
Reallocation.”

» Approved Budget: The individual project’s original budget approved in the Project Budget
for FY22/23.

* Revised Budget: The requested adjustment to the individual project’s budget based on
project activity (increase or decrease based on project circumstances).

® Encumbered: Funds related to projects that are currently in process.

Staff has communicated the concept and process of the Project Budget Reallocation to the Municipal
Customers, and they have agreed to the process as a means of enhancing the Advance Charges funding
mechanism for our larger CIP projects. This minimizes potential large fluctuations in the Municipal
Customer charges and the upward pressure on retail rates.

Discussion

As the Board is aware, the District has three FEMA-grant supported projects in various stages of the
construction process. All of these projects are for very large construction projects, and FEMA requires a
District match of 25%. Staff has created a tentative timeline to spread the projects over the next 3-4 years
and to also allow funding of the required matches.

The District has also been awarded two NCRP Prop 1 Grants to fund $1.3M of the Collector 2 Rehabilitation
Project. Construction on this project began May 2023.




"=CTION (-4 PAGE NO.O—

Lastly, in addition to these large grant-supported projects, to eliminate the high risk hazard of Chlorine Gas
and increase safety for District staff and the surrounding area, the District is in the process of replacing the

chlorine gas system at Essex with an On-Site Generation System (OSG) for Chlorine. This project is currently
under construction and will be completed in the coming fiscal year.

Large Construction Projects

: 5 AR : District
Grant Project Tentative Timeline Total Project 3
Funding

On-Site Generation for Chlorine
(District Funded) FY22/23-FY23/24 $1,312,000 $1,312,000
3x Tank Seismic Retrofit (FEMA)* FY22/23-FY23/24 $5,740,000 $1,435,000
Collector 2 Rehabilitation (Prop 1) FY22/23-FY23/24 $2,565,000 $1,253,000
Collector Mainline Redundancy FY22/23-FY24/25 $3.100,000 $775,000
(FEMA)*
TRF Emergency Generator (FEMA) FY22/23-FY23/24 $1,925,000 $481,250
TOTALS $14,642,000 $5,256,250

*Multi-Phased Project (Design & Construction)

District Funding Status

Adv. Charges Remaining
(Project Budget District
FY23/24) Funding*

District Adv. Charges

Grant Project Match Collected

On-Site Generation for Chlorine
(District Funded)

$1,312,000 $1,180,050 $131,950 S0

3x Tank Seismic Retrofit (FEMA) $1,435,000 $1,313,910 S0 $121,090

E e
g:olsT;r 2 Rehabilitation (NCRP 41,253,000 $1,000,000 $0 $253,000

: N
f:gn:;t;’ sainlineLedundancy $775,000 $315,000 $0 $460,000

TRF Emergency Generator

(FEMA) $481,250

$687,860 S0 <$206,610>

TOTALS $5,256,250 $4,496,820 $131,950 $627,480

*Funding DOES NOT include Reallocation Funds from FY22/23 Project Budget



SECTION |0 2
Staff Recommendation ‘ON-]--—Q-‘-.. PAGE NO.

Due to the timing of year-end processing, staff will present the FY22/23 Project Budget Reallocation details
prior to the Board Meeting on July 13, 2023.

Staff will be recommending that any allocated and unspent funds determined available in the Project
Budget Reallocation from the current fiscal year be first reallocated to authorized but unbudgeted projects
by the Board, and the net remainder be reallocated to Advance Charges as defined under Ordinance 16 for
the major grant-supported/District funded construction projects listed above.




HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT SECTION 10:2C, PAGENO,_|
To: Board of Directors
Date: July 13, 2023

From: Chris Harris

RE: Final Budget for FY2023/24

Review of Complete Proposed FY2023/24 Budget

During the June 8*" Board Meeting, staff presented the complete draft FY2023/24 budget for review and discussion. Based on feedback
during that meeting, staff is presenting the proposed final version of the FY2023/24 budget for approval.

s  Service & Supply (Incl. Power) Budget — No changes from June presentation.
o Total Service & Supply Budget including Power = $2,002,700
= Increase of 5162,000 or 8.8% over FY2022/23 Budget

s Power -5112,000
* T & Software Maintenance 549,000

s Insurance $9,000

*  Regulatory Agency Fees $8,500

*  Other Misc. Adjustments® <516,500>

e Salary 8 Wages Budget — No changes from June presentation.
o Total Salary & Wages Budget = $2,843,013
»  Decrease of <546,420> or <1.6%> under FY2022/23 budget

e Staff recommended 5,7% COLA $152,852

¢  Two Training Positions 523,314

¢+ Misc. Longevity & Step Increases $11,016

¢  Other Misc. Adjustments* <$233,602>

» Employee Benefits Budget — No changes from June presentation.
o Total Employee Benefits Budget 51,776,146
¢ Decrease of <550,475> or <2.7%> under FY2022/23 Budget

" CalPERS Pension Liabilfties 525,874

v Benefits for Training Positions 518,746

¥ 457 Contribution Increose 515,300

" Workers Compensation Insurance 59,331

»  QOther Misc. Increases* 511,867

" COther Misc. Decreases* <5131,593>

*please see previous Budget Presentations (May, June 2023) for additional details.




e Project Budget — No changes from June presentation.
o Total Project Budget 514,104,165
® Increase of 5682,565 or 5.1%

SECTION_|0.3(, PAGE NO, g:

Review of Funding Sources for FY2023/24 Budget

e Revenue & Funding Budget

o Grant Funding
" |ncreased by $742,965, (11.5%) from FY2022/23

o Advance Charges and Reserves
= Decreased by <535,350>, <0.7%> from FY2022/23

o Other Revenue
= Decreased by <$225,000>, <12.9%> from FY2022/23
= (Other Revenue includes: Property Tax Revenue, Power Sales, Retail Water Sales, and other
misc. income

o Wholesale Contract Funding

* Increase of $265,055 (3.4%) from FY2022/23

Review of Complete Budget Summary

COMPLETE FY2023 /24 BUDGET SUMMARY & COMPARISON

FY 2022/23 Budget FY 2023/24 Budget Difference
Budgeted Expenditures $ %
Salaries & Wages $2,889,433 $2,843,013 <$46,420>_ - <l.6%>
Empl_oyee Beneﬁts $1,826,621 $1,776,146 <$_50_,475> <2.7%>
Service & Supply $933,700 $983,700 $50,000 5.4%
Power $907,000 $1,019,000 $112,000 12.3%
Projects* _ $13,421,600 $14,104,165 $682,565 5.1%
Debt Service/Capital Financing
Funding | $547,337 $547,337 $0.00 0.0%
Charges for Reserves $350,000 $350,000 $0.00 0.0%
Total Expenditures $20,875,691 $21,623,361 $747,670 3.6%
*Debt Service Listed Separately
Budgeted Revenues $ %
Wholesale Contract Funding $7,774,141 $8,039,196 $265,055 3.4%
Grant Funding $6,482,793 $7,225,758 $742,965 11.5%
Other Revenue Funding $1,750,000 $1,525,000 <$225,000> <12.9%:>
Adv. Charges Collected,
Hoseryes, TeEESkryie $4,868,757 $4,833,407 <$35,350> <0.7%>
Total Funding Sources $20,875,691 $21,623,361 $747,670 3.6%




SECTION|0.2(, PAGENO.

Total FY2023/24 Budget - $21.6M

Funding Source $ Funds % Funds
Grants $7.2M 33%
Advance Charges $3.7M 17%
City of Eureka $3.6M 17%
Other Revenue $1.5M 7%
City of Arcata $1.5M 7%
MCSD $1.3M 6%
Reserves $1.2M 6%
HCSD _ $1.1M 5%
City of Blue Lake $203k 1%
FBGD-CSD _ $195k 0.9%
Manila CSD $91k 0.4%

Totals  $21.6M  100%

Total Funding Summary FY2023 /24 Budget - $21.6M

Funding Source $ Funds % Funds

Municipal Customer Funding

All Other Funding Sources

Staff Recommendation

Staff recommends Board approval of the FY2023/24 budget as presented and described above and in prior FY2023/24
budget presentations.



SECTION_|0-24_PAGE NO, |

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
To: Board of Directors

Date: July 13, 2023

From: Chris Harris

RE: Investment Management Change at CalTrust

Background

In November 2019, Directors authorized staff to move District investment funds held at Humboldt County
into investment accounts held at CalTRUST (managed by BlackRock Investments). The District transferred
approximately $3.7M from Humboldt County investment accounts to new CalTRUST investment accounts.

The current balance of District investment funds held at CalTRUST has increased to approximately $8.7M
(see graph below for additional detail).

CalTRUST

Initi
gL Additional  Unrealized  Unrealized Balance S

Contributions Gains Losses (5/31/23)

Investment Contribution

Unrealized

(2020) Gains/Losses

Accounts

General Reserve Account

(Short-Term Investment Account) $1,216,600 +54,142,889  +5108,989  <528,025> $5,440,453 +580,964

Restricted/Unrestricted
Investment Account

{Medium Term Investment $1,691,111 +540,191 +5116,958 <%138,700>  $1,709,560 <$21,742>
Account)

DWFP Reserve Account
(FedFund lnves’:lment Account)* 5239‘184 SO +S9'786 <50> 52481970 +$9,735

ReMat Account (LEAF Fund
Investment Account)*

$522,409 +$775,595 +555,090 <$578> $1,352,517 +554,512

TOTALS $3,669,304  $4,958,675  +$290,823 <$167,303> $8,751,500  +5123,520

*Account to be closed




SECTION 10 94, PacE NO,_2- _

Current

It is CalTRUST policy to issue an RFP {Request for Proposal) for Investment Management Services every
seven years (at minimum). After issuing the most recent RFP and reviewing submitted responses, the
CalTRUST Board of Trustees selected State Street Global Advisors (SSGA) as the new investment manager
(see email attached). With the change of investment management firms {from BlackRock to State Street
Global Advisors), two of the funds the District is currently participating in will no longer be available to the
District as investment options. These include the Liquid Environmentally Aware Fund (LEAF Fund),
currently holding ReMat funds, and the BLF FedFund, cutrrently holding DwWFP Reserve Funds. The District

is required to liquidate these two funds and either transfer the funds into another CalTRUST account or
withdraw the funds entirely.

Discussion

Based on deadlines established by CalTRUST, staff will be transferring the current balances in the LEAF
Fund {(+/-51.3M) and the FedFund (+/- $249k) into already established CalTRUST Funds. For transparency
and administrative purposes, staff does not recommend the funds remain “co-mingled” with other

established CalTRUST accounts (Restricted/Unrestricted Investment Account and General Reserve
Account). There are several options for these funds:

Option One: ReMat funds can be transferred into a CalTRUST “Liguidity Fund” (new CalTRUST
account) and would remain with CalTRUST, in a separate account (similar to before}, DWFP funds
could remain “co-mingled” either with General Reserve Funds or Restricted/Unrestricted funds,
or ancther separate fund could be selected at CalTRUST.

Option Two: Funds could be transferred into two separate funds at another investment firm to
increase investment diversification;

Recently staff met with representatives from California CLASS (Cooperative Liguid Assets
Securities System), an investment company approved by and sponsored by both the CSDA
and the League of California Cities. California Cigss is a California Joint Powers Authority
governed by a Board of Trustees comprised of special district and city finance
professionals, and utilizes Public Trust Advisors as the investment advisors and fund
administrator. The purpose of the California CLASS is to provide “California public
agencies with an additional diversification option for their daily liquidity and strategic
reserve investments.” California CLASS offers two different investing options — California
CLASS Prime and California CLASS Enhanced Cash. California CLASS Prime is a short-term
fund (<12-months) and California CLASS Enhanced Cash is for longer-term (12-18
Months). Staff has attached information for both types of accounts. Both types of

accounts can have multiple sub-accounts. US Bank is the custodian of these funds (as
with CalTRUST and PARS).




SECTION_|0-2d PacE NO._2 _

Option Three: A combination of the above with either ReMat or DWFP funds remaining at

CalTRUST and the remaining funds transferred into a California CLASS account.
Staff Recommendation

For preservation of principle and investment diversity staff recommends transferring both the ReMat
and DWFP funds into California CLASS accounts including the following:

1. Board approval for staff to complete the required paperwork and obtain the necessary
sighatures to;
a. Establish a California CLASS Prime Fund and complete the transfer of ReMat funds
into this new account

h. Establish a California CLASS Enhanced Cash Fund and complete the transfer of DWFP
funds into this new account

2. Board approval of the revised Investment Policy (attached), adding California CLASS to the permitted
investment list

Attachments

Revised Investment Policy

Correspondence from CalTRUST — 06/15/2023

Information regarding California CLASS Investments and Accounts
Current California Agencies Participating in Californiu CLASS
League of California Cities press release regarding Colifornia CLASS




California CLASS Participants as of 6/20/2023

CA-01-0003
CA-01-0009
CA-01-0078
CA-01-0002
CA-01-0019
CA-01-0006
CA-01-0059
CA-01-0047
CA-01-0026
CA-01-0076
CA-01-0032
CA-01-0021
CA-01-0007
CA-01-0037
CA-01-0058
CA-01-0004
CA-01-0034
CA-01-0042
CA-01-0027
CA-01-0041
CA-01-0005
CA-01-0001
CA-01-0050
CA-01-0024
CA-01-0057
CA-01-0030
CA-01-0031
CA-01-0036
CA-01-0043
CA-01-0048
CA-01-0051
CA-01-0025
CA-01-0045
CA-01-0018
CA-01-0068
CA-01-0040
CA-01-0056
CA-01-0064
CA-01-0067
CA-01-0029
CA-01-0012
CA-01-0011
CA-01-0038
CA-01-0013
CA-01-0017
CA-01-0035

Tehama County

City of Lancaster

Mojave Water Agency

League of California Cities

Tahoe City Public Utility District

West Basin Municipal Water District

City of Folsom

Paradise Irrigation District

City of Porterville

Santa Cruz Port District

Phelan Pinon Hills Community Services District
Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District
City of Morgan Hill

Truckee Sanitary District

Channel islands Beach Community Services District
Mark Twaln Health Care District

Altadena Library District

McKinleyville Community Services District
City of Kingsburg

North County Fire Protection District - San Diego County
Alameda County Mosquito Abatement District
California Special Districts Association

Indian Valley Community Services District
City of Shafter

City of Farmersville

Goleta Sanitary District

East Orange County Water District

Chino Basin Watermaster

Madera Irrigation District

South Placer MUD

Trabuco Canyon Water District

Soncma County Treasurer

Twentynine Palms Water District

Camarillo Health Care District

Tri-County Water Authority

West County Wastewater District

Beaumont Library District

Truckee Donner Recreation and Park District
Chico Area Recreation and Park District
Groveland Community Services District
Costa Mesa Sanitary District
Helendale‘Community Services District
Olympic Valley Public Service District

Town of Paradise

Chester Public Utility District

Copper Valley Community Services District

SECTION J02d PAGE No._LL___.




CA-01-0075
CA-01-0071
CA-01-0039
CA-Q1-0049
CA-01-0079
CA-01-0008
CA-01-0010
CA-01-0055
CA-01-0073
CA-01-0052
CA-01-0028
CA-01-0016
CA-01-0060
CA-01-0053
CA-01-0022
CA-01-0020
CA-01-0014
CA-01-0023
CA-01-0015
CA-01-0044
CA-01-0033
CA-01-0077
CA-01-0074
CA-01-0072
CA-01-0080
CA-01-0081
CA-01-0082
CA-01-0083
CA-01-0084
CA-01-0069
CA-01-0070
CA-01-0065
CA-01-0066
CA-01-0054
CA-01-0061
CA-01-0062
CA-01-0063

Alpine Fire Protection District

San Antonio Basin Water District

Desert Recreation District

Hilmar County Water District

Del Puerto Health Care District

Sierra Resource Conservation District
Herlong Public Utility District

Woestern Shasta Resource Conservation District
Pine Grove Community Service District
Corning Healthcare District

Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District
North Humboldt Recreation and Park District
Igo Ono Community Services District

San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District
Wallace Community Services District

Durham irrigation District

CSDA Finance Corporation

Anderson Springs Community Service District
Special District Leadership Foundation
Rancho Santa Fe Fire Protection District
ldyllwild Water District

Paradise Recreation & Park District

Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District
Cabazon Water District

Keyes Community Services District
Coalinga-Huron Recreation & Parks District
Fallbrook Regional Health District

City of Brentwood

Castroville Cemetery District

Artesia Cemetery District

Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency

Murphys Sanitary District

Gold Mountain Community Services District
Oceano Community Services District
Crescenta Valley Water District

Mission Hills Community Services District
Delano Mosquito Abatement District

SECTION lb;&i PAGENO, T




~=rTION 10,24 PAGE NO, (v

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
Statement of Investment Policy

The Secretary/Treasurer of the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District hereby submits the following statements of the
investment policy of the District.

I) Introduction

1)

I1I)

The authority governing investments for municipal governments is set forth in California Government Code, Sections
53601 through 53686, as amended through January 1, 2016.

The purpose of this policy is to establish investment guidelines for the District consistent with the Government Code
and with prudent investment practices.

Investment Objectives

District funds, not required for immediate use, shall be prudently invested. In order of priority, the District’s
investment objectives are as follows:

a) Safety of Principal — The preservation of principal is the primary objective. Investment transactions shall seek
to ensure that capital losses are minimized.

b) Liquidity — As a second objective, the investment funds should remain sufficiently flexible and available to
enable the District to meet all operating requirements.

c) Rate of Return — The third objective is to achieve a reasonable rate of return consistent with current economic
cycles, risk limitations and the investment objectives above.

Investment Funds

The Humboldt Bay Mun101pal Water District has elected to utilize investment opportunities provided by California
Government Code Sections 16429.1 and 53684, and Internal Revenue Code Section 115.

The District shall first invest all excess funds not required for immediate use with the State of California Local
Agency Investment Fund (LAIF).

The District reserves the option to designate and invest funds into an irrevocable, tax-exempt IRC Section 115

Trust. These funds shall be for the purpose of pre-funding the CalPERS Unfunded Pension Liability, and shall be
managed by Public Agencies Retirement Services (PARS).

As permitted under California Government Code §53601, the District additionally reserves the option to invest
excess funds not required for immediate use with CalTRUST, a JPA pooled investment program managed by State
Street Global Advisors (SSGA); and/or invest excess funds not required for immediate use with California CLASS,
a JPA pooled investment program managed by Public Trust Advisors.

The terms and conditions of such investment options are set forth in District Resolution Numbers: 434, 435, and
2018-02 and hereby incorporated herein (attached hereto as reference).

Approved by Board of Directors: July 13, 2023

Neal Latt, President
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District



SECTION {094 PAGENO, |
Chris Harris

From: Laura Labanieh <laura@caltrust.org>

Sent: Thursday, June 15, 2023 8:44 AM

To: Chris Harris

Subject: CalTRUST Welcomes New Investment Manager - Webinar Registration Open

View this email in your browser

TR -

CalTRUST Investment Manager Selection & Webinar

As part of CalTRUST's commitment to quality and prudence, it is policy that we issue a Request for
Proposal (RFP) for our service providers on a regular basis; at minimum every seven years. In line
with this policy, last November CalTRUST issued an RFP for Investment Management Services.

After a lengthy RFP process, with careful review and consideration of all proposals, the CalTRUST
Board of Trustees selected State Street Global Advisors (SSGA) as our new investment manager.
CalTRUST will transition from BlackRock to SSGA as the investment manager for the CalTRUST funds,
effective August 1, 2023.

BlackRock has been a competent and engaging provider over the last six years and we thank them
for their service to CalTRUST as we embark on this transition.

I invite you to join us for a webinar on June 22nd at 10am where John Colville, CalTRUST Board
President and City of Sacramento Treasurer, and | will describe the investment manager RFP and
selection process. Team members from SSGA will join us to discuss the SSGA investment philosophy
and engage in discussion on the resource and service enhancements that this transition will bring to
CalTRUST shareholders, including a revitalization of our education programs with increased no-cost
webinars and educational resources. REGISTER HERE.

A recording of the webinar will be available for those who are unable to join us live. Please email
Nicole Zajic if you would like to be alerted when the recording has been posted.

If you have any questions or feedback, please do not hesitate to reach out to us.
Most Sincerely,

Laura Labanieh

Chief Executive Officer
CalTRUST
laura@caltrust.org
(916) 745-6701




California

CIASS

California Cooperative Liguid Assets Securities System

What is California CLASS?

California Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities System (California
CLASS) is a joint exercise of powers entity authorized under
Section 6509.7, California Government Code. California CLASS is Same-day availability of funds in
a pooled investment option that was created via a joint exercise of Prime Fund (11:00 a.m. PT cut-off)
powers agreement by and among California public agencies.
California CLASS offers public agencies a canvenient method for
investing in highly liquid, investment-grade securities carefully
selected to optimize interest earnings while maximizing safety ;
and liquidity. The California CLASS Prime and Enhanced Cash Ratings of '‘AAAmM' & 'AAAT/ST!
funds offer public agencies the opportunity to strengthen and
diversify their cash management programs in accordance with the
safety, liquidity, and yield hierarchy that provides the framework
for the investment of public funds.

Participants
benefit from the following:

Deposits by wire or ACH

Prime fund transacts at stable NAV

: Portfolio securities
How is it governed and managed? marked-to-market daily

California CLASS is overseen and governed by a Board of
Trustees. The Board is made up of public agency finance
professionals who participate in California CLASS and are
members of the Joint Powers Authority (JPA). The Board of
Trustees has entered into an Investment Advisor and
Administrator Agreement with Public Trust Advisors, LLC. Public
Trust is responsible to the Board for all program investment and
administrative activities as well as many of the services provided
on behalf of the Participants.

Secure online access for transactions
and account statements

No withdrawal notices for Prime Fund

Participant-to-Participant
transactions

Interest accrues daily and pays

monthly

How can we participate?
Enrolling in California CLASS is simple. Public agencies may Nomdxpitcontributions
become Participants simply by filling out the Participant
Registration Form that can be found in the document center on No minimum balance requirements
the California CLASS website. Public agencies may submit the : .
completed registration packet to California CLASS Client Services No transaction fees
for processing at clientservices®@californiaclass.com. To obtain A

P g "y Annual audit conducted by
account forms and fund documents, visit

e independent auditing firm**
www.californiaclass.com/document-center/.

Dedicated client service
representatives available via phone
Sponsored By: or email on any business day

*You may incur fees associated with wires and/or ACH

transactions by your bank, but there will be no transaction fees

California Special charged from California CLASS for such transactions.

Districts Association **External audits may not catch all instances of accounting
errors and do not provide an absolute guarantee of accuracy.

LEAGUE OF
CALIFORNIA
CITIES

Districts Stronger Together

www.calcities.org www.csda.net

T (877) 930-5213 | F (877) 930-5214 | www.californiaclass.com | clientservices@californiaclass.com



7
[+

| California

What are the objectives of California CLASS?

Safety

The primary investment objective of the California
CLASS Prime fund is preservation of principal. Both
California CLASS portfolios are managed by a team of
investment professionals who are solely focused on the
management of public funds nationwide. The custodian
for California CLASS is U.S. Bank, N.A.

Liquidity

When you invest in the California CLASS Prime fund,
you have access to your funds on any business day. You
must notify California CLASS of your funds transaction
requests by 1:00 a.m. PT via the internet or phone.
There are no withdrawal notices for the daily-liquid
California CLASS Prime fund. Enhanced Cash is a
variable NAV fund that provides next-day liguidity and a

Ease of Use

To make cash management streamlined and efficient,
California CLASS includes many features that make it
easy to access account information and simplify record
keeping. Participants can transact on any business day
using the California CLASS phone number (877)
930-5213, fax number (877) 930-5214, email
clientservices@californiaclass.com or via the California

CLASS Online Transaction Portal at
www.californiaclass.com.

Flexibility

You may establish multiple California CLASS

subaccounts. You will receive comprehensive monthly
statements that show all of your transaction activity,

interest accruals, and rate summaries. These
statements have been specifically designed to facilitate
public sector fund accounting and to establish a clear
accounting and audit trail for your records.

one-day notification of withdrawal.

Competitive Returns

California CLASS strives to provide competitive returns
while adhering to the objectives of safety and liquidity.
Participants can benefit from the investment expertise
and institutional knowledge provided by the team of
Public Trust professionals. The portfolio performance
objective is strengthened by the knowledge of
California public agency cash flows that the Public
Trust team possesses.

Legality

California CLASS only invests in securities permitted by
California State Code Section 53601, permitted
investments are further restricted to those approved by
the Board of Trustees as set forth in the California
CLASS Investment Policies.

Have Questions? Contact us or visit www.californiaclass.com for more information.

Rodrigo Bettini
Director, Investment Services

Laura Glenn, CFA® Brent Turner

Senior Director, Investment Services Regional Director of Strategy
laura.glenn@californiaclass.com brent.turner@californiaclass.com rodrigo.bettini@californiaclass.com
(404) 822-8287 (303) 999-8190 (813) 820-0703

Any financial and/or investment decision should be made only after considerable research, consideration, and involvement with an experienced professianal engaged for the specific purpose. The
information presented should not be used in making any investment decisions. This material is not a recommendation to buy, sell, implement, or change any securities or investment strategy, function,
or process. Please review the California CLASS Information Statement before investing. California CLASS is not a bank. An investment in California CLASS is not insured or guaranteed by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation or any other government agency. Although the California CLASS prime-style fund seeks to preserve the value of your investment at $1.00 per share, it cannot guarantee
it will do so. Please review the California CLASS Information Statement before investing. Past performance is not an indication of future performance. No assurance can be given that the performance
objectives of a given strategy will be achieved. Any financial and/or investment decision may incur losses. California CLASS Prime is rated 'AAAm' by S&P Global Ratings. A ‘AAAM’ rating by S&P Global
Ratings is obtained after S&P evaluales a number of factors including credit quality, market price exposure, and management. For a full description on rating methodology, please visit
www.spglobal.com. California CLASS Enhanced Cash is rated by 'AAAF/SI' by FitchRatings. The 'AAAf' rating is Fitch's opinion on the overall credit profile within a fixed-income fund/portfolio and
indicates the highest underlying credit quality of the pool's investments. The ‘S1" volatility rating is Fitch's opinion on the relative sensitivity of a partfolio’s total return and/or net asset value to assumed

changes in credit spreads and Interest rates. The 'S1' volatility rating indicates that the fund possesses a low sensitivity to market risks. For a full description on rating methodology, please visit
www.fitchratings.com. Ratings are subject to change and do not remove credit risk.

Bob Shull
Director, Investment Services
bob.shull@californiaclass.com
(213) 378-2070

T (877) 930-5213 | F (877) 930-5214 | www.californiaclass.com | clientservices@californiaclass.com



INVESTING MADE EASY

Which investment option best suits your public agency's needs?

PO_FJLOE"" Prime-style fund Enhanced cash

Purpose Operating Funds Strategic Reserves

Rating 'AAAT/ST

Liquidity : X
Offered Daily Next-Day

Min/Max

None No
Investment he

Online Transaction confirms, Transaction confirms,
Pl monthly & on-demand monthly & on-demand
P 9 statements statements

Withdrawals Unlimited Unlimited

Accounts Unlimited Unlimited

Investment Horizon Day-to-Day 12-18 Months

<60 days 90-200 days

Net Asset Value (NAV) Stable $1.00 per share Variable $10.00 per share

ELIGIBLE California CLASS investments are made in accordance with California State Code, Section
INVESTMENTS 6509.7. For a complete description of permitted investments, please click here to view the
Enhanced Cash Investment Policy.

Many factors affect performance including changes in market conditions and interest rates and in response to other economic, political, or financial developments. Investment involves
risk including the possible loss of principal. No assurance can be given that the performance objectives of a given strategy will be achieved. California CLASS Prime is rated 'AAAm’ by
S&P Global Ratings. A 'AAAm' rating by S&P Global Ratings is obtained after S&P evaluates a number of factors including credit guality, market price exposure, and management. For a
full description on rating methodology, please visit www.spglobal.com.

California CLASS Enhanced Cash is rated ‘AAAf/S1' by FitchRatings. The ‘AAAf' rating is Fitch's opinion an the overall credit profile within a fixed-income fund/portfolio and indicates
the highest underlying credit quality of the pool's investments. The 'ST volatility rating is Fitch’s opinicn on the relative sensitivity of a portfolio’s total return and/or net asset value to
assumed changes in credit spreads and interest rates. The 'S1" volatility rating indicates that the fund possesses a low sensitivity to market risks. For a full description on rating

methodology, please visit www.fitchratings.com. Ratings are subject to change and do not remove credit risk. Past performance is no guarantee of future results. Any financial
and/or investment decision may incur losses.



California CLASS Enhanced Cash

BTE =

SECTION |04 Pa

A next-day liquidity investment option designed
for California CLASS Participants seeking

additional income

California CLASS
Enha_nced Cash

California CLASS Enhanced Cash is a next-day

liguidity investment option designed for California CLASS
Participants that seeks to generate a higher yield while
complementing the daily liquidity offered by the California
CLASS fund for California public agencies. California CLASS
Enhanced Cash is best suited for investors with an investment

horizon of 12-18 months.

Complement your investment management strategy with Enhanced Cash by gaining
exposure to a diversified set of high-quality, short-term securities for your public agency's
portfolio. Enhance your ability to manage your assets more efficiently and effectively

while maintaining safety and liquidity.

DETAILED PORTFOLIO FEATURES:

CASH MANAGEMENT DIVERSIFICATION
Gain exposure to longer-dated securities to

potentially increase the total return profile
of your public agency's liquidity portfolio.

REPORTING

Enhanced Cash Participants can conveniently
access transaction confirmations and monthly
statements on-demand via the Online A
Participant Portal.

California

WITHDRAWALS

Withdrawn funds are available the business day
after the transaction date that is entered in the
online portal.

i

o]

ACCOUNTS

With Enhanced Cash, your public agency will
enjoy unlimited subaccounts and monthly
transactions; seamlessly transfer between
all of your California CLASS accounts.

C I Q ; ;S @ www.californiaclass.com

0 info@californiaclass.com

o 550 S. Hope Street, Suite 560



California

CINSS

secTioN_!0-24 paGE No, |

L]
s

California Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities System

Invest with California CLASS Prime!

Investing with California CLASS Prime could mean more for your local community.

Use the California CLASS Prime investment calculator to see just how much you could have earned.

Amount Invested
! $1 000, ooo : You would have earned

$4,046.93

Start Date

MarchT 2023 |

| onyourinvestment if you started on

End Date March 1,2023

' March 31,2023

California CLASS Prime
Daily Yields as of Month-End

Month Year Month-End Yield
March 2023 49771%
February 2023 4.7275%
January 2023 4.5990%
December 2022 4.2009%
November 2022 4.0146%
October 2022 3.2325%
September 2022 2.8280%
August 2022 2.4421%
July 2022 1.9433%

California CLASS Investment Income Earned

As of Date Time S100K S1M S10M
Mar 1- Mar 31 1 month $405 $4,047 | $40,469
Jan1-Mar 31 3 months $1154 511,538 $115,378

Oct1- Mar 31 6 months $2,098  $20981 | $209,806

Months listed are in the years of 2022/2023

For more information on both historical vields
and annualized performance, visit

www.californiaclass.com/rate

or scan the below QR code:

=2t

El'-lil-.l u!.!E!n.

Source: Public Trust Advisors® Data unaudited. Values presented
may not add up precisely to absolute figures due to rounding.
Performance results for California CLASS are shown net of all
fees and expenses and reflect the reinvestment of interest and
other earnings. Many factors affect performance including changes
in market conditions and interest rates and in response to other
economic, political, or financial developments. Investment
involves risk including the possible loss of principal. No assurance
can be given that the performance objectives of a given strategy
will be achieved. California CLASS is not a bank. An investment in
California CLASS is not insured or guaranteed by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation or any other government agency.
Although California CLASS seeks to preserve the value of your
investment at $1.00 per share, it cannot guarantee it will do so.
Please review the California CLASS Information Statement before
investing. Past performance is no guarantee of future results. Any
financial and/or investment decision may incur losses. Please visit
www.californiaclass.com/rates-disclaimer far more information.

T (877)930-5213 | F (877) 930-5214 | www.californiaclass.com | clientservices@californiaclass.com



California CLASS Participants as of 6/20/2023

CA-01-0003
CA-01-0009
CA-01-0078
CA-01-0002
CA-01-0019
CA-01-0006
CA-01-0059
CA-01-0047
CA-01-0026
CA-01-0076
CA-01-0032
CA-01-0021
CA-01-0007
CA-01-0037
CA-01-0058
CA-01-0004
CA-01-0034
CA-01-0042
CA-01-0027
CA-01-0041
CA-01-0005
CA-01-0001
CA-01-0050
CA-01-0024
CA-01-0057
CA-01-0030
CA-01-0031
CA-01-0036
CA-01-0043
CA-01-0048
CA-01-0051
CA-01-0025
CA-01-0045
CA-01-0018
CA-01-0068
CA-01-0040
CA-01-0056
CA-01-0064
CA-01-0067
CA-01-0029
CA-01-0012
CA-01-0011
CA-01-0038
CA-01-0013
CA-01-0017
CA-01-0035
CA-01-0075
CA-01-0071

Tehama County

City of Lancaster

Mejave Water Agency

League of California Cities

Tahoe City Public Utility District

West Basin Municipal Water District

City of Folsom

Paradise Irrigation District

City of Porterville

Santa Cruz Port District

Phelan Pinon Hills Community Services District
Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District
City of Morgan Hill

Truckee Sanitary District

Channel Islands Beach Community Services District
Mark Twain Health Care District

Altadena Library District

McKinleyville Community Services District
City of Kingsburg

North County Fire Protection District - San Diego County
Alameda County Mosquito Abatement District
California Special Districts Association

Indian Valley Community Services District
City of Shafter

City of Farmersville

Goleta Sanitary District

East Orange County Water District

Chino Basin Watermaster

Madera irrigation District

South Placer MUD

Trabuco Canyon Water District

Sconoma County Treasurer

Twentynine Palms Water District

Camarillo Health Care District

Tri-County Water Authority

West County Wastewater District

Beaumoent Library District

Truckee Donner Recreation and Park District
Chico Area Recreation and Park District
Groveland Community Services District
Costa Mesa Sanitary District

Helendale Community Services District
Olympic Valley Public Service District

Town of Paradise

Chester Public Utility District

Copper Valley Community Services District
Alpine Fire Protection District

San Antonio Basin Water District

SECTION_10-2d,_ PAGE No, | D




CA-01-0038
CA-01-0049
CA-01-0079
CA-01-0008
CA-01-0010
CA-01-0055
CA-01-0073
CA-01-0052
CA-01-0028
CA-01-0016
CA-01-0060
CA-01-0053
CA-01-0022
CA-01-0020
CA-01-0014
CA-01-0023
CA-01-0015
CA-01-0044
CA-01-0033
CA-01-0077
CA-01-0074
CA-01-0072
CA-01-0080
CA-01-0081
CA-01-0082
CA-01-0083
CA-01-0084
CA-01-0069
CA-01-0070
CA-01-0065
CA-01-0066
CA-01-0054
CA-01-0061
CA-01-0062
CA-01-0063

Desert Recreation District

Hilmar County Water District

Del Puerto Health Care District

Sierra Resource Conservation District
Herlong Public Utility District

Western Shasta Resource Conservation District
Pine Grove Community Service District
Corning Healthcare District

Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District
North Humboldt Recreation and Park District
Igo Ono Community Services District

San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District
Wallace Community Services District

Durham Irrigation District

CSDA Finance Corporation

Anderson Springs Community Service District
Special District Leadership Foundation
Rancho Santa Fe Fire Protection District
Idyllwild Water District

Paradise Recreation & Park District

Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District
Cabazon Water District

Keyes Community Services District
Coalinga-Huron Recreation & Parks District
Fallbrook Regional Health District

City of Brentwood

Castroville Cemetery District

Artesia Cemetery District

Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency

Murphys Sanitary District

Gold Mountain Community Services District
Oceano Community Services District
Craescenta Valley Water District

Mission Hills Community Services District
Delano Mosquite Abatement District

SECTION _LQ?_(},, PAGE NO, _l_ff____




6/21/23, 1:51 PM Cal Cities announces launch of new investment pool for public agencies | Cal Cities

SECTION J02d page NO. 1D

& 'lj.f-:f\'}\ LEAGUE OF
. > CALIFORNIA
3 n CITIES

Cal Cities announces launch of new
investment pool for public agencies

Jul 6, 2022

The League of California Cities has announced a new local government
investment pool, California Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities System

(California CLASS). California CLASS was created in response to the growing
investment needs of California public agencies.

The investment program, sponsored by Cal Cities and the California Special
Districts Association (CSDA) in collaboration with Public Trust Advisors, LLC, is a

California Joint Powers Authority governed by a board of trustees comprised of
city and special district finance professionals.

California CLASS provides public agencies with an additional diversification
option for their daily liquidity and strategic reserve investments. Public Trust, in its
capacity as the investment advisor and fund administrator, is committed to

providing California CLASS participants with an exceptional user experience and
professional portfolio management.

The fundamental purpose of California CLASS is to develop and sustain an
investment program wholly committed to the tenets of safety, liquidity, and yield

for the benefit of participating public agencies. California CLASS will offer two
investment fund options:

California CLASS Prime is designed to maintain a stable net asset value of $1,

preserve capital, provide daily liquidity, and generate competitive returns for its
participants. S&P Global Ratings has assigned its '"AAAmM' principal stability fund

Tkl siv T ann snian inedodbl oo svmilaness 2o T eved IR O M T IR et L o 2hE ovww - rnamim 1w e e - Dot semcarida i v T b sl o il - Bacin ok B 0 ok i g o



6/21/23, 1:51 PM

Cal Cities announces launch of new investment pool for public agencies | Cal Cities

SECTION ML PAGE NO,_| 0

LEAGUE OF
A CALIFORNIA
) CITIES

Galitornia CLASS Enhanced Gash Is a varianlie NAVY Tund that IS most suitable
for public agencies seeking to develop a well-rounded investment program that
includes strategic reserves. Enhanced Cash seeks to complement the daily
liquidity offering of the Prime Fund by providing an investment option for those

agencies seeking access to longer-dated securities that may generate higher
income than those in a stable NAV Fund.

The longer weighted average maturity of the Enhanced Cash Fund relative to the
Prime Fund makes it an appropriate option for any strategic reserves that an
agency does not anticipate withdrawing for 12 or more months. FitchRatings
has assigned the California CLASS Enhanced Cash
(https:llwww.fitchratings.comlresearchlfund-asset—managerslfitch-assigns-aaaf—rating_:f
to-california-class-enhanced-cash-fund-09-06-2022) a rating of ‘AAAf/S1’. According
to FitchRatings, a fund rated ‘AAAf/S1’ demonstrates the highest underlying
credit quality and very low sensitivity to market risk.

“Public agency funds keep our cities running and are vital to delivering essential
services to our communities,” said Cal Cities Executive Director and CEO
Carolyn Coleman. “We are excited to work with CSDA and Public Trust to launch
California CLASS to provide access to cash management solutions and an
investment advisor with a successful track record nationally.”

The California CLASS Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement was fully executed in
June by the founding participants. The governing Board of Trustees for California
CLASS is Chairperson Christina Turner (city of Morgan Hill); Vice Chairperson
Ryan Clausnitzer (Alameda County Mosquito Abatement District); Treasurer

George Harris (city of Lancaster); and Secretary Margaret Moggia (West Basin
Municipal Water District).

https:llwww.calcities.0rglnewslpostiZGZZlD?lOGlcal-cities-announces-launch-of—new-investment-pool-for—public-agencies 24



6/21/23, 1:51 PM Cal Cities announces launch of new investment pool for public agencies | Cal Cities

SECTION [0:24 PacE NO,_| 1

T ) CALIFORNIA
y CITIES
powerful diversification tool for public agency investors seeking safety,

convenience, transparency, and competitive returns.”

“Our team at Public Trust is thrilled to partner with Cal Cities and CSDA.
Together, we seek to provide an exceptional investment experience to California
public agency investors,” Public Trust Managing Director Tom Tight said. “The
professionals at CSDA and Cal Cities provide exceptional levels of service to

their members and share the same client-first values that our team at Public
Trust commit to achieving every day.”

Currently, Public Trust provides investment services for more than 5,000 local
government investment pool clients nationally, with combined assets of more
than $55 billion as of May 31, 2022. U.S. Bank, North America, serves as the

custodian, and San Francisco-based law firm Orrick provides special legal
counsel to the program.

For additional information about the services provided by California CLASS,
please visit the California CLASS website (http://www.californiaclass.com/) or
contact client services at (866) 987-4445 or

clientservices@californiaclass.com (mailto:clientservices@californiaclass.com) .

B o LR e e s e P e ik IS IS T IR [l e vt tnnesien- 1o vmely covE et ar Sevt vk v sy eian ) Frar it il o s an alomes

NJA



OPERATIONS



secion_{0: > a_ paceNo. |

Memo to: HBMWD Board of Directors

From: Dale Davidsen, Superintendent

Date: July 1, 2023

Subject: Essex/Ruth June 2023 Operational Report

Upper Mad River, Ruth Lake, and Hydro Plant

1. Flow at Mad River above Ruth Reservoir (Zenia Bridge) averaged 12 cfs with a high
of 32 cfs on June 1% and a low of 3 cfs on June 29™ .

2. The conditions at Ruth Lake for June were as follows:
The lake level on June 30" was 2653.88 feet which is:
o (.63 feet lower than May 31%, 2023
o 0.29 feet higher than June 30%, 2022
o 3.21 feet higher than the ten-year average
e (.12 feet below the spillway

3. Ruth Headquarters recorded 0.75 inches of rainfall for June.

4. Ruth Hydro produced 0 KXWh in June. There is an ongoing shut down due to PGE issue
for the entire month with 144,000 KWh gstimated lost production.

5. The lake discharge averaged 55 cfs with a high of 101 cfs on June 1%,
Lower Mad River, Winzler Control, and TRF .

6. The river at Winzier Control Center, for June, had an average flow of 159 cfs. The river
flow was at a high of 262 cfs on June 1%

7. The domestic water conditions were as follows:

a. The domestic water turbidity average was 0.20 NTU, which meets Public Health
Secondary Standards

b. Asof June 30", we pumped 249.078 MG at an average of 8,379 MGD
c. The maximum metered daily municipal use was 9.588 MG on June 21*

8. The TRF is offline for summer since June 12 conditions for June were as follows:

a. Average monthly source water turbidity was 0.24 NTU
b. Average monthly filtered water turbidity was 0.12 NTU
¢. Number of filter backwashes for the month were 21




10.
11.

12.
13.
14.

15.

16.

17.

18.
19,

20.
21.

secTion 105 & pagE No._J)

June 3™ — Repaired a water leak on Butcher Lane in Fieldbrook.
June 5™ — Bxploratory dig at TRF generator site for Geotech work.
June 7% — 9™ — Maintenance lifted both pumps on Collector 2 for the Rehabilitation
project.
June 7% — DSOD inspection at Ruth.
June 9" — 16™ - Operations shutdown TRF for the season.
June 13™ — Maintenance installed the Arcata meter that was out for routine
calibration.
June 15™ — Safety meetings

a. PPE

b. Ergonomics
June 15 - Maintenance potholed for utilities at Essex entrance for the Redundant
line project.
June 23™ — Helped Layne and Divers with making custom wood plugs for leaking
lines on Collector 2.
June 24™ — Divers onsite for plugging leaking lines in Col 2.
June 28" — Final review of Brine tank submittal and approving design for
fabrication.
June 29" — Executive Assistant interviews.
Current and Ongoing Projects

a. Vegetation management

b. Collector 2 project - On going support

c. Tesla battery bank projects

i. Essex project in progress, operational programming in process, waiting
for PG&E PTO.

OSHG — Equipment procurement and planning in progress. Brine tank ordered.
Working on Samoa Peninsula Communication issues as time allows,
Main Office Solar project — In operation as of June .
Routine annual equipment maintenance and services.

@ h o o




SECTION_LD. 3 ¢ PAGE NO._D

1TZ0Z U0I1INPO0.d OIPAH s

12202 uo1INpold 0IpAH e

1£Z0Z UOIINPOId OIPAH e

aAne[nwin)

:99eJaNY JBIA UD | s

aneNWIN)

aAle|nwn)

oAllR|NWIND

Y] dAIB[NWND :uoi1donpoad 0JpAH yiny

000°000°T

0000002

000°000°€

000000t

000°000°S

0000009




secTioN_ 0. 3 PacE No,_4

aieq
= R = =
MR g e HD B8 38w o 3oy & o 8RR
EI[I/Z:/ZIIZIZT.II[:]?.:/ZIJZ_L_CT._CT.........
o (o)} ro co £y = ~J w w (@)} N w (9] = ~ w o (e)] N oo (9] = a N w %3] =
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 i 1 1 1 1 1 il 1 1 1 | 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 O.mNmN
0°0€9¢
0'SE9C
1287 Aem|[1d S s
0°0t9¢
SAy 1BOA 0T UOIIEAS|] B ——
0'S¥9z

14 ‘7T0T UoleA3|d B = ﬁ 0'059Z
0'6S9¢
1 ‘€707 UolBAR|] 9B ——
00992

uolileaa|3 aeq yiny

0°593¢




. . >
SECTION V0. 3o PAGENO._S

2 s
Q 8]
o o~
& o RN ®
— — << ™
o~ ~
Q [ o O
> & 25 3 N
n:m n:m S‘f'
o = o = o
¥ S 5 53
= N =N [y
Q
=T}
2
)
(2]
3
o=
U
N
=
(1]
L=
Ll
——— |
———
—— e mEpE—
—
!_—%
(=] Q o o o o o
Q (=] o o o o
Q o o o o [}
Y61 L <t m ~ —

42 - Moj4

Date




SECTION__1O: 3a PAGE NO. (&

T¢, -
£g, 98e1aAY JB3A J21BMN
DAIIR|NWNY [BILI0ISIH e

a8eJaAy anlleINWND
JBIA JDIBAN T =

aApeINWND

das

any

Inr unr Aejal ady Jen ER| uer

LETq|

AON

RO

o<

o

09

08

7T-TT 1e9A 121

aAieINWND)
£7-77 129\ JD1E |\ e

oot

oct

€¢0C-720T 1e3) 191/ - [[BjUIBY YINY

sayau|




SECTION__1D . A PAGENO.__ |

SJ2 ‘mo|4
1an1Y Sny Je3 ) QT

52 ‘@8pug
66C 18 MO|4 ZZOT

50 ‘98pug
667 1B MO ETOT ==

RIRELER]
Janry Say Jesp 0T ——

H
‘2T0T |9A7 JanY

H
‘€707 |2A37 19Ny

5§02 ‘mo|d JaA1Y

000s

0000T

000ST

0000¢

000S¢

0000€

000s€

0000%

21eq
= e - =
Lol o o = = o r 0 ® o N N -
o e o ETE2vES N eI
O @ N 00 B B N W W o N O U
I L | I f i i : ;

I

MO|{ pue |3A37 J9A1Y

ST

0¢

SC

o€

SE

Y ‘|ana1 Jan1y




Memo to; Board of Directors SECTiON__LD_g_sh PAGE NO. |

From: Dale Davidsen, Superintendent
Date: July 3, 2023
Subject: Surplus equipment request

The District has replaced the following equipment. We would like to declare this item as
surplus.

1. Westinghouse, 1200 AMP circuit breaker — This is an obsolete spare from the old
switchgear.




MANAGEMENT




SECTION |0 Ho-Pace No,__|

12Z°0%2°62

122°2%9°L

000°09¥%

000°8£9°61

oy | B

000 %69
122°8¥%1
0000081
000000
000008

o 9T ¥ 95 o

000°c¥
000°C1¥

SNIONId

$
$

000°'88G°1
000°001°g
000°'005°1
000009

000°00L's
000°00Z°¢

& Wy O o o

unowy
wels

SNIAONNL Tv10L

W1019NS
INVID MOTI WVIALSNI — 4O0M

NOLINFATId VOOV - SAVAMITLVM ¥ ONILVOT O NOISIAIA
INTATOVIIA TVELIVT 2 HOLOITIOD — JION
JSTIOL AHLTVIH — JIUTVD

NOILLDNJAT TANd T — RALTVD
YWII-NON
wvioldans
VIOSNINAL NO ¥3MOd — (207 AIVIIFID) SWAOLS YALNIM €202

STOLVYINTD YITIVEL JAL — (§70Z AAVANVI) SWIOLS ¥IINIM €207
0Z0¢ WHEATIM XTTINOD LSOV

YALSVSIA VINAL

Tvloldns
TONVISISSV IONVAQY - .LIFOULTE OIASTAS WV SMIHLLYVW
ANITIdId INVANNTII

FOLVIINTD J41

6 L-aIAOD

JIHOULTI INV.L DTNSIIS JUBL &
JuawRorday AMZ1

OWH VINII

DNION3Id

uodLasag
alold

£20T ‘qT unrjo sy
1UStUa8RURIA] J2PUN SJURID BAILDY
19141517 J31AN [ediDiuniy Aeg 1pjoguing

6697 34
£89% 1d
865 4

69SP A
LO¥¥ A
SEST AA
¢8FY 4d
Frev dd
OFev dd

Joquinp
J91sEesiq
VIN3d



W ool ﬁémﬁm MANAGER
MAPNR  Districts Stronger Together igEﬁﬁﬁﬁg}ﬁ? gumm %T

June 2527, 2023 = Everlin Resort & Spa

2023 AGENDA

SUNDAY JUNE 2.:
8:00 a.m,

) SESSIONS NETWORKING GPPORTUNITIES

| EVENT

Pre- Conferenca Workshop Reglstratmn Grand Sierra Ballroom Foyer

8:30 a.m. - 4:00 p.m. Pre-Conference Workshop: So, You Want to he a General Manager? Grand Sierra D
Scott Carroll, CSOM, Costa Mesa Sanitary District
Sponsored by the Spacial District Leadarship Foundation {(SOLF)

8:30 a.m. - :00 p.m. Pre-Conference Worlsshop IL: Flndlng Funding: Grants, Financing and Grand Sierra C
Initiative Campaigns -
California CLASS; Woodard & Curran, SCt Consulting Group; CSDA
Finance Corporation; Townsand Public Affairs

%00 a.m, Golf The Links at Everline
{Check-in and Orinks at 9:00 a.m.,, Shotgun start 10:00 a.m.}

2:00 - 4:00 p.m. Certified Spacial District Manager {CSDM) Exam Pyramid Peak A
Sponsared by the Spema! Dfstr:ctl.aadersh;p Foundat.'on {SDLF)

5:30 - 7:00 p.m. Regmtratmn and Upening Reception fron Hnad Noddle House

Spensored by Consuftants of CSDA Finance Corporation:
Brandis Taliman, a Division of Oppenheimer & Co. Inc.;
Kutak Rock, LLP; Municipal Finance Corpotmn -

MONDAY, JUNE 26 7
Conference Reglstratlon Opens
T Contmental Breakfast_wnth the Exh:tutors

- 10[!0 -10:30 aim. - - ’Break and Netw rking wnth the EXthItGI‘S
10:30 2.m.~12:00 p.i. | BREAKOUT SESSIONS

_'Gr,a_nd_ Siefra and Prafunction

Survey Says| How to Get the Most Uut of Public UplﬂlDl‘l Polls to Lead Grand Sierra Ballroom
Your District and Pursue New Revenues

Edric Kwan, SCI Consuffing Groug; John Bliss, SCI Consulting Group
Adam Probolsky, Probolsky Research; Jacquelina €. Simon,

Norih Monterey Counly Fire Protection District Board Vice Prasident

Are You a Destination Employer? Aitract, Hire and Retain the Bast Alpina A
Stephanie Smith, Bast Bast & Krieger, LLP

Colby Diugufd, Jurupa Area Racreation And Park District

Powerful Leadership: Effactive Tips for Stellar Suparvisors Alpine B
Olivar Yes, Ligbert Cassidy Whitmore .
1215 - 115 p.m, Networking Lungh with the Exhibitors - s ~ 'Sun & Spa Decks
_ ' Spdns’ored by Sitalogih - ' ' :
130-300pm. | BREAKOUT SESSIONS.

Managing the Never—Endmg Crisis - Bemg an Adaptwe Hesnlent Leader in | Grand Sierra Ballroom
Uncertain Times

Erica Manuel, Institute for Local Government; Tammy Rudock, CSDM,
retirad General Manager; Ryan Clausnitzer, CSDM, Alameda County Mos-
quito Abatement District; Lorenzo Rias, Clovis Veterans Memoarial District

— more information on next page —




AGENDA continued

MONDAY, JUME 26

l EVENT

Leadershmp Lessons Pravailing Wage Qbligations for Speciai DIS’[rICTS
Deborah Wilder, Contractor Compliance and Monitoring, Inc

sction_104b paGENO,_ O~ _

A p n A

Paositioning Your District for Success: Legislative Relations 201
Kyle Packham, CSDA

Alpine B

300-345pm.
R 'SponsoredbyCPSHHCansultmg

Break g and Ne‘eworkmg W|th the Exhlbltnrs o

| Grand Sierra ard Prefuntion ©

¥ ﬁ‘_ EAKUUTISESSIDNS

Renewable Energy Pr0|ects & lnflatlon Reduction Act Subsidies
Jeff Land, Brandis Tallman, a Division of Oppanheimer & Co. Inc.; Dan
Mitchell, Centrica Businass Sofutions; Albert Reyes, Kutak Rock LLE;
Kahl Muscott, Auburn Area Recreation and Park District; Bili Morton,
Municipal Finance Corporation

Grand Sierra Ballroom

TUESDAY JUNE 27

Sponsored by SDAMA

Leadership with an Agile Mindset Alpine A
Naney Wright, CPS HR Consulting
Keeping Up With CzIPERS: Common Compliance Findings and New and | Alpine B
Emarging Interpretations
Michael Youril, Liabert Cassidy Whitmara
515 - 6:45 p.m. Feod & Wine Expaerience Reception Sun & Spa Decks

10:30 - 1%:00 agm, - -

eak an etworkmg with the Exh:bntors :
'Spnnsared by GovDeals, !nc : '

Grand Sierra and Prefuniction

Managing a Hybrid Warkplace
Oliver Yes, Liebert Cassidy Whitmore

Grand Sierra Ballroom |

Dasigning a Well-Balanced Liguidity Strategy in the Face of Uncertainty
Tom Tight, California CLASS

Alpina A

Local Government [T Budgeting
Corey Kaufman, VC3

Alpine B

12:30 - 2:30 p.m.

Clesing Lunch: State of CA Pensions and the Latest and Greatest from
Inside cur State and Fedaral Capitols

Michael Cohen, CalPERS; Cole Arreola-Kari, National Special Districts
Coalition; Kyle Packham, CSDA

Sponsored by Straamling

Grand Sierra Baliroom

2:30 p.m.

Conference Adjourns

0000




SECTIONJ0Y (. PAGENO. |

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District Upcoming Meetings for 2023

August 17, 2023 (Note: this date was changed from August 10)
September 14, 2023

September 22, 2023 Joint Board Meeting with Ruth Lake CSD
October 12, 2023

November 9, 2023

December 14, 2023




SECTION |04 A  PAGE NO. |

Ruth Lake Cleanup

Saturday, September 23, 9am-2pm




ACWA




ACWA FOUNDATION

Humboldt Bay MWD
John Friedenbach
828 Seventh Street
Eureka, CA 95501

Dear John Friedenbach,

SECTION 1I-2 (v PAGE NO,

_____ —

acwa-foundation.org

Thank you for your gift of $1,000 on May 31, 2023 to the ACWA Foundation.

For your records, this donation has been given ID #0005.

Thank you,

£ Pk

John Varela, Chair

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Chair: John Varela, Valley Water

Vice Chair: Jennifer Persike, |Jennifer Persike & Company

Treasurer: Marwan Khalifa, Mesa Water

Secretary: Sue Stephenson, Retiree of Dublin San Ramon Services District
Steve Blumenshine, CSU-Water

Paul Hernandez, Water Education for Latino Leaders

Joone Lopez, Moulton Niguel MWD

Kari D. Shively, Stantec

Kathleen Tiegs, Past President of ACWA

EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS

Pamela Tobin, ACWA President
Cathy Green, ACWA Vice President
Dave Eggerton, ACWA

ACWA Foundation exists to serve
California by promoting diversity,
equity and inclusion within the water
indusfry through education, research
and workforce development.

The ACWA Foundation (ID# 92-0785873) is
a public charity and contributions are tax-
deductible fully allowed by law.

Please keep a copy of this letter for your
tax records and consult your fax advisor
for applicability. No goods or services were
provided in exchange for your contribution.




ACWA UPDATE ON PRIORITY ISSUES

A high-level look at recent ACWA activity and initiatives.

JUNE 2023

Water Rights Legislation

ACWA continues to work closely with the State Legislative Committee and its water rights work
group and to lead the advocacy coalition that is opposing water rights legislation that is seeking
to fundamentally change the way California's water rights system is implemented and enforced.
AB 460 (Bauer-Kahan) would grant the State Water Resources Control Board new and sweeping
authority to issue interim relief orders against water diverters and users, SB 389 (Allen) would
authorize the State Water Board to investigate and determine the scope and validity of any
water right claim and AB 1337 (Wicks) would authorize the State Water Board to issue sweeping
curtailment orders against any claim of right in any water year. All three bills were passed by
their respective houses on May 30 despite ACWA and its large opposition coalition providing

a strong and united front in advocating against these bills. The bills now move to the opposite
houses for further consideration.

STAFF CONTACT

Kristopher Anderson
State Relations
Advocate
krisa@acwa.com

Water Bond

At the Legislature, ACWA has been advocating a support-if-amended position on four separate
bond proposals, SB 867 (Allen), SB 638 (Eggman), AB 1567 (Garcia) and AB 305 (Villapudua).

In part due to ACWA's advocacy, the legislative proposals focus on water infrastructure funding

in addition to the funding of other natural resources issues. ACWA's state infrastructure funding
priorities include a $7.85 billion bond investment in water infrastructure that focuses on a number
of critical water issues including: recycled water, groundwater recharge and storage, flood
protection, dam safety, conveyance, storage, safe drinking water, regional watershed resilience,
State Water Project improvements, and water conservation. ACWA has been working closely with
Senator Allen and his staff to help shape SB 867 which would provide for $15.5 billion in funding
for various water and natural resources issues similar to ACWA's infrastructure funding priorities
above plus additional funding categories. ACWA continues to work proactively to advance having
a natural resources general obligation bond on a ballot in 2024, and while discussions are still
ongoing regarding the content and precise timing of the bond, with four bills moving through the
Legislature there is significant momentum to place a bond before the voters in 2024.

STAFF CONTACT

Adam Quinonez
State Relations
Director
adamg@acwa.com

AB 1572 (Friedman) - Potable Water: Nonfunctional Turf

AB 1572 by Assembly Member Laura Friedman (D-Glendale) would create a regulatory structure
around a prohibition on the use of potable water for the irrigation of nonfunctional turf on
properties other than single-family homes. The bill was amended coming off the Assembly
Suspense File in May with new definitions and additional clarity around local government
coordination on enforcement. Based on these changes and the significant progress on
amendments that ACWA has requested to date, ACWA's State Legislative Committee on May

26 changed the position from oppose-unless-amended to a watch-if-amended position. The

last policy issue that is not fully resolved is the continued inclusion of multifamily housing within
the scope of the bill. ACWA staff continues to coordinate with its turf policy work group and
advocate for amendments.

STAFF CONTACT

Julia Hall
Legislative Relations
Manager
juliah@acwa.com

SB 23 - Streamlining Permitting of Critical Water Projects

ACWA-sponsored SB 23 authored by Senator Anna Caballero (D-Merced), proposed to
streamline the regulatory permitting process, while preserving established environmental
protections, so that critical infrastructure projects are built at the pace and scale needed to
prepare for climate change. The bill was recently made a two-year bill. ACWA formed a diverse
coalition of supporters and while SB 23 will not continue to move forward this year, Gov. Gavin
Newsom recently signed an Executive Order and announced plans to introduce a package of
budget trailer bills aimed at streamlining the delivery of critical projects throughout the state,
including water infrastructure projects. More information on the governor's Executive Order is
available in an Advisory distributed May 19 at acwa.com/notifications.

STAFF CONTACT

Kristopher Anderson
State Relations
Advocate
krisa@acwa.com



SECTION | 1.2 PAGENO. 2= __

Voluntary Agreements

The State Water Board is considering an amendment to the Water Quality Control Plan for
the San Francisco Bay/Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta Estuary, or Bay-Delta Plan, that would
incorporate a proposed Tuolumne River Voluntary Agreement. ACWA has long supported
the Voluntary Agreements (VAs) as a collaborative, modern and holistic approach in the Bay-
Delta and its tributaries to help native fish and wildlife species while supporting water supply
reliability. On May 18, ACWA staff provided oral comments on the issue to the State Water
Board during a virtual public scoping meeting.

STAFF CONTACT

Stephen Pang
State Relations
Advocate
stephenp@acwa.com

Federal Drinking Water Standards for PFAS

The EPA recently announced the proposed National Primary Drinking Water Regulation for six
PFAS substances. The proposal would regulate PFOA and PFOS as individual contaminants,

and regulate four other PFAS — PFNA, PFHxS, PFBS, and GenX Chemicals — as a mixture. EPA
proposed to set the federally enforceable limits, maximum contaminant levels (MCLs), at 4 parts
per trillion (ppt) for PFOA and PFOS and proposed water concentration limits for the remaining
four PFAS based on its estimated hazards, known as a Hazard Index. The proposal was published
on March 29, and ACWA submitted comments on the proposal that are available at acwa.com/

resources. EPA plans to finalize the regulation by the end of 2023. For more information on the
proposal, visit EPA's website.

STAFF CONTACT

Madeline Voitier
Federal Relations
Representative
madelinev@acwa.com

Water Use Efficiency

The State Water Board recently released the proposed regulatory framework for "“Making
Conservation a California Way of Life.” This new framework proposes unique water use efficiency
goals for each urban retail water supplier, including urban water use efficiency standards,
variances, an urban water use objective, and commercial, industrial, and institutional (ClI)
performance measures. The formal rulemaking is anticipated to start in June. ACWA is already
engaged on the underlying issues and will actively engage in the rulemaking.

STAFF CONTACT

Chelsea Haines
Regulatory Relations
Manager
chelseah@acwa.com

ACWA Elections

The deadline to designate a voting representative to cast a ballot for ACWA President and Vice
President is June 16. Every ACWA member agency should designate a voting representative

to ensure the correct person receives the ballot. To designate your agency's voter, submit an
Authorized Voting Representative Form to donnap@acwa.com. In addition, the deadline to
declare candidacy for ACWA President, Vice President or to serve on a Region Board for the
2024-'25 term is also June 16. The Authorized Voting Representative Form and more information
on the election is available at acwa.com/elections.

STAFF CONTACT

BOARD OFFICER
ELECTION:

Donna Pagborn
Senior Clerk of the
Board
donnap@acwa.com

REGION ELECTIONS:

Your Region
Representative

Quench California

ACWA's award-winning statewide public education campaign, Quench California, is continuing
to offer a paid partnership program to help member agencies take advantage of the campaign’s
branding and website while amplifying the importance of investing in water infrastructure.

In addition, ACWA members are encouraged to continue utilizing toolkit items, including
customizable social media posts and graphics, campaign logos, handouts and four videos

in three different lengths and with Spanish subtitles. More information about the partnership
program is available online. The toolkits and videos are available to members at acwa.com/
resources. More information on the campaign is also available at QuenchCA.com.

STAFF CONTACT

Heather Engel
Director of
Communications
heathere@acwa.com

Upcoming Events - Visit www.acwa.com/events for more
¢  ACWA Region 10 Program and Tour - June 29
e ACWA Region 8 Program and Tour - July 13

June 2023 | Page 2



MONTHLY

ROUNDUP

e ACWA Region 10 / Pure Water Oceanside / June 29 at 8- :00 am/ Reglsterhere
CWA Region 8 / West Basin’s Water Recycling Facility / July 13 at 8:30 am/ Register
TR &

Drinking Water Needs Assessment: 2023 Final Report
*  On April 27, the State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) released
its third annual Drinking Water Needs Assessment, which describes the overall
health of the State’s water systems and domestic wells and will inform the funding

ACWAZL

June 2023

here

— Staff Contact

Soren Nelson
sorenn{@acwa.com

and regulatory work of the Safe and Affordable Funding for Equity and Resilience FER Tomene
(SAFER) drinking water program. State Water Board staff held a public webinar on '
Tuesday, May 2 to review the document. A recording of the webinar will be
available here, While the Needs Assessment is final, the State Water Board is
accepting feedback on the report.
o Written comments due June 2 via email
SAFER: Administrator Policy Handbook Staff Contact

s On May 10, the State Water Board issued a Notice of Public Webinars: SAFER:
Administrator Policy Handbook Workshop. The Administrator Policy Handbook
provides standards, terms, and procedures that apply to the selection and duties of
appointed water system administrators. The workshop will be an opportunity for
stakeholders to contribute to the handbook.

0 Public Workshop: lune 14 from 9:00 - 11:00 am

Annuai Water Supply and Demand Assessment
e The Department of Water Resources (DWR} will hold an Annual Water Supply and

Demand Assessment {Assessment) Information Meeting. The meeting will discuss

lessons learned from the 2022 Annual Assessments, changes to the second round of

analysis and reporting, and the Assessment and Annual Water Shortage Assessment

Report {Report) submittal process. Every water supplier that provides over 3,000

acre-feet of water annually or serves more than 3,000 urban connections is requiredi

to perform an Annual Assessment and submit an Annual Report to DWR.,
o Assessments due July 1

Soren Nelson
sorenn@acwa.com

. Staff Contact

Chelsea Haines
chelseah@acwa.com

% WORKING
) GROUP

Bay Delta Plan: Environmental Justice
e On May 11, the State Water Board issued a Notice of Environmental Justice
Listening Session on the State Efforts to Update and Implement the Water Quality
Control Plan for the Bay Delta Plan (Bay-Delta Plan) to receive input from
environmental justice organizations, economically disadvantaged communities, and
black, indigenous, and people of color community members and individuals on its

Staff Contact
Stephen Pang
stephenp®acwa.com

SER WORKING.
GROUP




June 2023

SECTION || 2.C- PAGE NO,_J;.

efforts to update and implement the Bay-Delta Plan, including consideration of
possible Voluntary Agreements.

o Listening Sessm :June 7 at 3:00 pm

P N T S A T E T RV oY AR

Bay Delta Plan: Possible Addition of Tribal Beneficial Uses
¢ On May 11, the State Water Board issued a “Save the Date” for Consideration of
Additional Tribal Beneficial Uses to the Bay-Delta Plan. The addition of tribal
beneficial uses to the Bay-Delta Plan would provide for explicit recognition and

implementation through water rights related actions.
0 Informatlonal ltem: June 7 at 9:30 am

B e L T et

Staff Contact
Stephen Pang
stephenp@acwa.com

Clean Water and Drinking Water State Revolving Funds: Intended Use Plan

reasonable protection of these beneficial uses within the context of the Bay-Delta % O ING
Plan, which is focused on instream flow and associated habitat conditions and
Staff Contact
Nick Blair

o On May 22, the State Water Board issued a Notice of Opportunity to Comment,
Board Workshop, and Consideration of Adoption of the State Fiscal Year 2023-24
Federal Fiscal Year 2023 Clean Water State Revolving Fund {CWSRF) Intended Use
Plan {IUP} and Drinking Water State Revolving Fund {(DWSRF} IUP with Supplemental

IUPs and Guidelines for Complementary Funding from the Budget Acts of 2021,
2022, and 2023 and Propositions 1 and 68. The draft CWSRF and DWSRF [UPs
outline the State Water Board’s plan for administering the CWSRF and DW5SRF and
the types of projects eligible for financing for SFY 2023-24,
o Board Workshop: lune 20 at no earlier than 1:00 pm
o Written comments due June 23 by 12:00 pm
- Board > Board Meeting: July 18 at 9:30 am

nickb@acwa.com

WORKING |

_GROUP

Clean Water and Drinking \ Drmkmg Water State Revolving Funds: Section 106 Agreements
¢ On May 17, the State Water Board and United States Environmental Protection
‘Agency (EPA) issued a Notice of Consultation Meeting regarding the Development
of Section 106 Programmatic Agreements for the CWSRF and DWSRF Programs.
These two new statewide programmatic agreements, one for the CWSRF and one
for the DWSRF, will guide compliance with Section 106 of the National Historic
Preservation Act.

o Board Meeting: June 22 from 10:00 am — 12:00 pm

Staff Contact
Nick Blair
nickb@acwa.com

’ % WORKING
SROUP

Drought and Conservation Technical Reporting Order
¢ The State Water Board will hold an Information ltem on the Drought and
Conservation Reporting to the SAFER Clearinghouse. The SAFER Clearinghouse
Drought and Conservation Reporting was launched in lanuary 2023 and is the

Staff Contact
Chelsea Haines

chelseah@acwa.com

reporting platform now used to submit drought and conservation reporting data % WORKING
e GROUP
from public drinking water systems,
o Board Meeting: June 6 at 9:30 am
Fees: 2023 - ‘24 Drinking Water, Water Quality and Water Rights Staff Contact

e The State Water Board is holding a series of stakeholder meetings to discuss
drinking water, water quality and water rights fees,
o Water Quality: June 12, August 3 from 2:00 — 11:00 am
o Water Rights: June 12, August 3 from 1:00 - 3:00 pm
o Drinking Water & ELAP: June 13, August 4 from 9:00 - 11:00 am

Chelsea Haines
chelseah@acwa.com

: %wbnuma
_ GROUD




June 2023

SECTION |1.2,C; PAGE NO.

PAGE

Making Water Conservation a California Way of Life

On March 15, the State Water Board released a Draft Staff Framework for Making
Water Conservation a Way of Life Regulation (Proposed Regulatory Framework).
The Proposed Regulatory Framework summarizes aspects of State Water Board's
staff proposed water use efficiency standards, objective, and Commercial,
Industrial, Institutional {Cll) Performance Measures. On March 13, the State Water
Board also released the Standardized Regulatory Impact Assessment of the
Proposed Regulatory Framework. The State Water Board expects to begin the
formal rulemaking process for the regulation this May and consider adoption by the
end of this year/early next year.

Staff Contact
Chelsea Haines

chelseah@acwa.com

FER, WoRKING
€3 GROUP

Six-Year Drought White Paper

As part of Water Resilience Portfolio Action 26.3, the California Water Commission
(CWC) is continuing to explore potential strategies to protect communities, fish, and
wildlife in a six-year drought. The CWC will conduct public outreach through June
and expects to release a draft white paper this summer for public comment, and a
final white paper this September

'Be Well Prepared” Program

On May 17, DWR announced the launch of its Be Well Prepared program, which
provides information and resources to help well owners, well users, and local
agencies be ready for impacts of climate-driven weather extremes on groundwater
supplies and drinking water wells. Groundwater is a critical component of
California’s water supply and is heavily relied on by communities, agriculture, and
the environment, especially during dry and drought years.

Staff Contact
Soren Nelson

sorenn@®acwa.com

' ‘% WORKING
) GROUP

Staff Contatt
Soren Nelson

sorenn@®@acwa.com

SGMA Funding: Round 2 Solicitation Recommendations
[ ]

Water (iualdlt"y Enforcement | Pollcy

On May 19, DWR announced the release of the draft Funding Recommendations for
the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) Implementation, Round 2
solicitation for public review. Solicitation for eligible applicants located within
eligible high and medium priority groundwater basins, including critically over
drafted basins, closed on December 16, 2022, DWR received 82 applications
requesting over 5795 million in grant funds. The Draft Funding Recommendation
will provide over $187 million from the General Fund and Proposition 68,

o _Written comments due June 9by 5:00pm_______

On May 2, the California Department of Food and Agriculture {CDFA) announced a
new study to explore opportunities to streamline regulatory processes for
agriculture. The study will evaluate agriculture’s food safety and water quality
regulatory reporting requirements as part of an effort to streamline administrative
processes and optimize information collected by the state. The results of the study
are expected to be completed by 2025, CDFA will hold listening sessions in Summer
2023 to gather input from agricultural groups.

o Llstemng sessions {dates TBD)

Staff Contact
Soren Nelson
sorenn@®acwa.com

Staff Contact -
Stephen Pang
stephenp@acwa.com

Staff Contact

Nick Blair




secTion_1\- 3¢ pace No, 4

June 2023

PAGE 4

¢ On Feb. 10, the State Water Board released Proposed Amendments to the Water
Quality Enforcement Policy that aim to ensure more transparent and consistent
application of the statutory factors outlined in California Water Code that the Water
Boards must consider when assessing a civil liability.
o Board Consideration: August 15 at 9:30 am

2023 Su mer Loads and Resources Assessment

¢ On May 15, the California Independent System Operator released its 2023 Summer
Loads and Resource Assessment (Summer Assessment), is an assessment of the
expected 2023 summer supply and demand conditions to maintain grid reliability.
The Summer Assessment shows considerable improvement in resources available
for the upcoming summer, driven by accelerated resource development and
favorable hydropower conditions within California,

nickb@acwa.com

Staff Contact
Nick Blair
nickb@acwa.com

Advanced Clean Fleets Regulaticn Staff Contact
e On April 28, the California Air Resources Board adopted the Proposed Regulation Nick Blair
Order of the Advanced Clean Fleets {ACF) Regulation. The ACF will require California | nickb@acwa.com
fleet owners and operators to start purchasing zero emission vehicles in 2024, with
the goal to move California’s medium- and heavy-duty trucks to zero emission, % EJ&RJ(;NG
where feasible, by 2045,
o Office of Administrative Law approval: date TBD
Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant Program Staff Contact
e On April 25, the Department of Energy published Guidance for Eligibility of Activities| Nick Blair

Under the Energy Efficiency and Conservation Black Grant {EECBG) Program. The
EECBG Program will make $550 million available to local governments in
implementing strategies to reduce energy use, reduce fossil fuel emissions, and
improve energy efficiency,

o _Applications due July 31 at 5:00 pm ET

nickb@acwa.com

Hydroelectric Incentives Program Updates
* On March 22, DOE published guidance for Hydroelectric Efficiency Improvement

Incentives {HEIT}, and on May 8 published guidance for Maintaining and Enhancing
Hvdroelectricity Incentives (MEHI). These programs were created as part of the
Bipartisan Infrastructure Law to maintain and enhance hydroelectric facilities to
ensure generators ($553.6 million aver the next 5 years) continue to provide clean,
affordable electricity, while integrating renewable energy sources such as wind and
solar, improving dam safety, and reducing environmental impacts.

o Applications for HEIT due June 20 at 5:00 pm ET

o Letters of Intent for MEHI due June 22 at 5:00 pm ET

o Applications for MEHI due October 6 at 5:00 pm ET

Staff Contact
Nick Blair
nickb@acwa.com

Load Shifting Goal

¢ On May 31, the California Energy Commission approved a new goal to make up to
7,000 megawatts.{MW) of electricity available through the smarter use of existing
clean energy resources as the state seeks to avoid running fossil fuel power plants
during grid emergencies. A requirement of Senate Bill 846, this goal refers to a suite
of efforts helping and offering incentives to customers to shift their electricity use
{or load) in response to electricity grid conditions, including time of use programs
like the Emergency Load Reduction Program and Demand Side Grid Support. This

Staff Contact
Nick Blair
hickb@acwa.com




SECT ‘
lune 2023 ION_U..&Q, PAGEA%(E)' 6

represents a doubling of current levels and is enough electricity to power up to 7
million homes by 2030 when the state projects to need 38,000 MW of new clean
energy.

To receive a monthly email of the Regulatory Roundup, please contact Sonja Eschenburg. The Regulatory Roundup is also
available on ACWA's website.

TR P A TN




CAPITOL CORNER continued from page 1|

+ Expedite Court Review: Legal chgllenges

often tie up projects even after thiey have
ccessfully gone through envjfonmental

review. These proposals would

authprize expedited judiciyl review to

avoidyong delays on the Yack end and

advanch projects withogt reducing

the envirgnmental and government

transparen¥y benefifs of the California

Environmental Qgality Act (CEQA).

» Streamline Petghitting: Makes various
changes to Cylifyrnia law to accelerate
permitting fér cerain projects, reducing
delays and/project cgsts.

« Address'Cumbersoms CEQA Processes:
Strearyflines proceduresground
docyment retention and Yeview.

» M, ize Federal Dollars: Establish a

reen Bank Financing Progrim within
the Climate Catalyst Fund so that the
state can leverage federal dollars¥or
climate projects that cut pollution)
with an emphasis on projects that
benefit low-income and disadvantage
communities.

ACWA's State Legislative Committee
adopted supportive positions on these
proposals and staff has been actively
lobbying the Legislature in support.
ACWA is encouraged by the governor’s
commitment to addressing some of the
challenges to getting projects permitted
and built. ACWA will continue to engage
on this issue and will work with the
Administration, labor groups, business
groups, and others on the proposals that
relate to water infrastructure.

S$B 23, an ACWA-sponsored bill authored
by Senator Anna Caballero (D-Merced),
which would have streamlined the
regulatory permitting process for water
supply and flood risk reduction projects,
failed to advance out of the Senate
Appropriations Committee,

SB 23 proposed specific actions to help
critical water projects overcome known
sources of permitting delays. ACWA

4 « ACWANEWS  Vol.51 No. 06

formed a diverse coalition of supporters,
which included ACWA. members, business
interests, labor, and more, While SB 23
will not continue moving forward this
year, Newsom signed an Executive Order
and introduced the above package of
budget trailer bills aimed at streamlining
the delivery of critical projects throughout
the state, including water infrastructure
projects.

Water Rights

ACWA has an oppose position on the
following three bills and is part of a diverse
coalition of more than 100 water agencies
and associations representing water,
agriculture and business interests.

AB 460, introduced by Assembly Water,
Parks, and Wildlife Committee Chair
Rebecca Bauer-Kahan (D-Orinda),
recently advanced out of the Assembly
by a vote of 43-20-17. The bill needed 41
votes to advance out of the Assembly. The
bill is scheduled to be heard by the Senate
Natural Resources and Water Committee
on June 27. AB 460 was double referred
and will also be heard in the Senate
Judiciary Committee.

AB 460 would authorize the State Water
Resources Control Board to issue interim
relief orders against water diverters and
users. The State Water Board would be
able to issue interim relief orders to force
compliance with a broad set of standards,
including to enforce the reasonable use
doctrine of Article X, Section 2 of the
California Constitution, water quality
standards, and more. The bill would
require the State Water Board to provide
the water right holder subject to the
interim relief order with a hearing prior to
issuing the order, unless, the Board finds
that immediate compliance is necessary to
prevent imminent or irreparable injury to
other legal users of water, or to instream
beneficial uses, in which case no hearing
would be required.

AB 1337, authored by Assembly Member
Buffy Wicks (D-Qakland), also advanced
out of the Assembly and is scheduled to be
heard by the Senate Natural Resources and
Water Committee on June 27,

In preparation for the bill’s vote on

the Assembly Floor, members of the
opposition coalition actively contacted
their locally elected Assembly members
to convey the coalition’s concerns and
advocated for “No” votes, Ultimately, the
bill barely had the votes to advance out of
its house of origin. The final vote count on
the Assembly floor was 45-20-15.

AB 1337 would significantly expand the
State Water Board's authority to issue
curtailments. Under existing law, the State
Water Board only has the anthority to
issue curtailments in certain emergency
drought years. AB 1337 would allow the
State Water Board to issue curtailments

in any water year, which would essentially
result in an overhaul of water management
in California.

$B 389, authored by Senator Ben Allen
(D-Santa Monica), passed out of the
Senate and is currently in the Assembly
awaiting referral to a committee. Similar
to AB 460 and AB 1337, the bill narrowly
had enough votes to advance out of its
house of origin, with a final vote count
23-11-6.

SB 389 would authorize the State Water
Board to investigate and determine the
scope and validity of any water right claim,
Under 5B 389, a water right holder brought
into a proceeding to evaluate the basis of its
right would have the burden of proving by
a preponderance of evidence the elements
of the basis of right. The bill would also
require the water right holder to submit
substantial amounts of evidence to defend
their claimed water right. ACWA has an
“oppose” position and setious concerns
with authorizing the State Water Board to
drag water right holders before the Board to
prove their claims, &




SECTION .4, PAGENO. |
John Friedenbach

From: Pamela Tobin <pamelat@acwa.com>

Sent: Wednesday, June 28, 2023 1:04 PM

To: John Friedenbach

Subject: ACWA COMMITTEE APPOINTMENT CONSIDERATIONS FOR THE 2024-'25 TERM

ACWAL

Assaciation of California Water Agancies

June 28, 2023

TO: ACWA MEMBER AGENCY BOARD PRESIDENTS
ACWA MEMBER AGENCY GENERAL MANAGERS

FROM: Pamela Tobin, ACWA PRESIDENT

SUBJECT: ACWA COMMITTEE APPOINTMENT CONSIDERATIONS FOR THE 2024-'25 TERM
PLEASE RESPOND BY SEPT. 30, 2023

Thank you for your involvement with ACWA. As you know, committees are an integral part of ACWA's
activities and policy development. With the end of the current committee term fast approaching, it is
time again to request 2024-'25 committee nominations from ACWA members. All committees will be
reconstituted following the election of new officers (ACWA's President and Vice President).

In submitting names for consideration, please do so with the understanding that committees need
active, involved individuals able to expend the time and provide their expertise, if appointed. Please keep

in mind that the district is responsible for all costs associated with the participation of its representatives
on Committees.

The following information is available on ACWA’s website or by clicking on the link below.

e ACWA Timeline, Committee Composition, and Consideration Form

If you would like to reference current committee members serving on an ACWA committee please click
here.

All correspondence and forms regarding committee appointments must be submitted to the ACWA office
no later than Sept. 30, 2023 to be eligible for consideration. Committee appointments will be made by

1



SECTION_| |- 3¢ PAGE No, ont
the incoming ACWA President in December. Please contact Region and Member Engagement Specialist,

Ana Javaid, at anaj@acwa.com or (916) 669-2442, if you have any questions concerning the committee
appointment process.

We appreciate your timely attention to this matter.

Thank you,

b= A

Pamela Tobin
ACWA President

H O 0O

© 2023 Association of California Water Agencies. All rights reserved.
980 9th St. Ste 1000, Sacramento, CA 95814
We hope you enjoy receiving email notices and updates from ACWA. At any time you can
click here to unsubscribe or to change your subscription preferences. Read Online



ACWAZ

Association +f California Water Agun:m

COMMITTEE
AND GET
INVOLVED

SECTION 1. 9€ pagENO,_3
Bringing Water Tegether

ACWA has 13 standing committees that members can join

and get involved. This is a great way for members to engage

in state and local issues and influence policy and legislation.
Committees are structured to include representation from all 10
ACWA Regions, bringing together diverse voices on technical

and policy matters. Take action, join a committee!




Stephen Pang

Makes recommendations to the Board of

Unlimited
Directors, State Legislative Committee, Federal State Relations
Affairs Committee or other committees, as Advocate

appropriate, regarding agricultural issues
affecting the interests of ACWA and its
members,

stephenp@acwa.com

+ Davelops and recommends to the Board

Communications

Limited to 40 4 Heather Engel
of Directors and ACWA staff regarding Director of
communicatiens and public affairs programs. Communications
* Promotes sound public information and heathere@acwa.com
education programs and practices among
member agencies.

¢ Prepares and distributes materials for use by
member agencies in their local cutreach efforts,

* Provides input and guidance to ACWA's

Communlcatlons Department

tat sRelatlon Yk
%A, ocate:

: el R it
Courdlnates with other ACWA commitiees Limited to 5 per 2 David Reynolds

Federal Affairs

regarding input on federal issues before Region Director of Federal
both Congress and the federal administrative Relations
branches. da\ndr@acwa com

Groundwater |+ Makes recommendations to the Board of Unlimited 4 Soren Nelson

Directors on groundwater policy issues, State Relations
* Monitors state and federal regulations Advocate
and legislation affecting the quality and sorenn@acwa.com

management of groundwater.
» Conducis studlies and gathers data on
graundwater issues.
Develops policies regarding groundwater
management.
* Coordinates with other committees on
groundwater issues.




Legal Affairs

Management

¢ Acts on requests for assistance on legal matters of

significance to ACWA member agencies.

Reviews proposed ACWA bylaw revisions and
works with staff to produce publications to assist
member agencies in complying with state and
federal laws.

Files amicus curiae filing on important cases,
comments on proposed regulations and guidelines
of state agencies such as the Fair Political Practices
Commission and monitors and engages in water

regarding membership policies, eligibility and
applications for membership.

Assists staff in developing membership
recruitment and retention programs and reviews
and makes recommendations to the Finance

Directors on policy and programs related to water
management.

Reviews and recommends positions on
leglislation and regulations as requested by other
committees. :

Assists in gathering and disseminating
information regarding agricultural and urban
water management, water conservation and
water use efficiency, development and use of
water resources, wastewater treatment and water
recycling and reuse.

Limited to 4
per Region

Kris Anderson
State Relations
Advocate
krisa@acwa.com

Katie Dahl
Member Services
Manager
katied@acwa.com

Chelsea Haines
Regulatory Relations
Manager

chelseah@acwa.com

- TO GET INVOLVED, SUBMIT YOUR CONSIDERATION FORM NOW/!

ENO. D

S S




PLEASE PRINT LEGIBLY

Agency Name (DO NOT use acronyms or abbreviations) ' ACWA Region #

Agency Address City, State & Zip Phone

BELOW PLEASE LIST ALL THOSE INTERESTED IN BEING ON ACWA COMMITTEES FOR YOUR AGENCY,
FOR ADDITIONAL RECOMMENDATIONS PLEASE FILL OUT ANOTHER FORM.
*If an individual is not an agency employee or director, please indicate company affiliation.

Name Title/Company* | Emall Address

Committee 1st Choice Committee 2nd Choice Commitiee 3rd Choice

Name Title/Company* Email Address

Committee 1st Choice Committee 2nd Choice Commitiee 3rd Cholce

Name Title/Company* Email Address
Committee st Choice Committee 2nd Choice Committee 3rd Choice
Signature (Agency/District Gensral Manager er Board President signature req-uired) Title Date

Commitiee member contact infarmation will be shared on the committee roster and is to be used for committee business only.

QUESTIONS? 980 9th Street, Suite 1000
Contact acwacommittees@acwa.com Sacramento, CA 95814
or (916) 441-4545 www.acwa.com




HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

828 SEVENTH STREET, PO BOX 95 « EUREKA, CALIFORNIA 95502-0095
OFFICE 707-443-5018 EsSsSEX 707-822-2918

FAXT707-443-5731 707-822-8245
EMAIL OFFICE@HBMWD.COM
Website: www.hbmwd.com

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SHERI WOO, PRESIDENT

NEAL LATT, VICE-PRESIDENT

J. BRUCE RUPP, SECRETARY-TREASURER
MICHELLE FULLER, DIRECTOR

DAVID LINDBERG, DIRECTOR

GENERAL MANAGER
JOHN FRIEDENBACH

June 23, 2023

Jackie Rech

Employee Benefits Account Manager
ACWA - JPIA
Via email: jrechfwacwajpia.com

RE: 2023 ACWA JPIA Wellness Grant Application

Dear Ms. Rech,

The World Obesity Federation estimates that globally, one in five women and one in seven men will be living with obesity
by the year 2030--that equates to over one billion individuals. Correspondingly, the Centers for Disease Control &
Prevention (CDC) estimate that obesity prevalence has increased from 30.5% to 41.9% since 2000. Contributing to this is

the fact that one in four adults do not meet the physical activity guidelines established by the CDC of 150 minutes of
moderate-intensity activity and two days of muscle strengthening each week.

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District encourages it’s staff to be as active and healthy as possible, while also
acknowledging that “health and fitness” means different things to each of our different employees. Most recently our Board
of Directors has approved a new “Fitness Stipend” Program to be implemented with the FY23/24 Budget. This program is

intended to further supplement the support we receive from ACWA/JPIA Wellness Grants. This will further support the
District’s goal for Work/Life/Health/Fitness Balance for it’s employees.

For the past several years, HBMWD has used our awarded Wellness Grant funds to provide employees reimbursement for
the purchase of exercise equipment and apparel items to assist them on an individual basis with exercise and activity.
Previously we have processed reimbursement requests for tennis shoes, fitness apparel, fitness tracking devices, and exercise
equipment. The feedback from employees has been extremely positive and they have requested the same option this year.

To encourage increased participation, we intend to have a drawing at the end of the year for participants of the Wellness
Grant Program.

Attached, please find our grant application and the required W-9. If you have any questions, please let me know.

Sincerely,

Vi -

Chris Harris, Business Manager



secTioN |1 2¥ pagE NO. o~

s S ) o e e

ACWA JPIA Wellness Grant Application
Deadline: Friday, June 30, 2023

YOUR BEST PROTECTION

Agency Name: Fuinnpl V/*x'\ AU D/i\ W ke DGhvac
Agency Address;_o2H T Q%’ Pk}/d\é—(t i et
Wellness Contact: L1 HzuAAL

Mgmt Contact (if different from above):__ SA\W

Wellness Contact Phone;___ [0 ] - LHd% - Zol%

Wellness Contact Email: Initvis @ Nbpwd. conn

Number of Active Full-Time (benefits eligible) Employees*: 2_"5

* Do include those waiving medical. Do not include Retirees or Board Members.

Maximum Grant Formula: # Employees 7/52 x$40=9% l JUEET *x

** Regardless of size, Grant minimum is $200, Grant maximum is $2,000

Requested JPIA Wellness Grant Amount: |, | 2O

Application process:

Please complete this application, the attached W9, and attach an explanation of what your
agency plans to do to increase employee wellness, and how this grant will help accomplish your
agency's goals. PLEASE NOTE THE NEW GUIDELINES ATTACHED FOR SPENDING
GRANT FUNDS on the following page.

Email completed grant applications to Jackie Rech at jrech@acwajpia.com by Friday, June
30, 2023.

Agencies who received 2022 Wellness Grant funds and have not submitted complete receipts
are not eligible to receive 2023 Wellness Grant funds. All grant funds from the prior wellness
program year need to be spent and all receipts received by June 26, 2023.

Wellness Programs are solely the product of the member agency and are not affiliated or endorsed by the JPIA or
the JPIA health plans. Wellness programs are not intended to, nor should they be construed as efforts to,
diagnose, treat, or prescribe for any human disease, pain, injury, deformity or physical condition. Under no
circumstances shall the JPIA or its employees be liable to a program participant for any damages or injury arising
out of or related to the member agency's Wellness Program, including but not limited to, the participant’s use or

reliance upon, or the participant's inability to use or rely upon, information provided by or obtained from the
Welines;/l; fgram

7/7u\ Dlo. 2% 2073

L_Signature of Wellness Program Coordinator Date

[ Bauwiag = Bguics M{vav,w

Print name and title




RCEA/RREDC



633 3 Strest, Eureka, CA 95501

Phone: (707) 2691700 Toll-Free (800) 931-7232  Fax: (707) 269-1777
E-mail: info@redwoodenergy.org Web: www,.redwoodenergy.org

SECTION | |.
Redwood Coast Energy Authority “l'"ic"/"' PAGE NO._.L____

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

Jefferson Community Center Auditorium June 22, 2023
1000 B Street, Eureka, CA 95501 Thursday, 3:30 p.m.

Any member of the public needing special accommodation to participate in this meeting or
access the meeting materials should email L Taketa@redwoodensrgy.org or call (707) 269-
1700 at least 3 business days before the meeting. Assistive listening devices are available.

Pursuant to Government Code section 54957.5, all writings or documents relating to any item
on this agenda which have been provided to a majority of the Board, inciuding those received

less than 72 hours prior to the Committee’s meeting, will be made availabie to the public at
www. RedwoodEnergy.org.

NOTE: Speakers wishing to distribute materials to the Board at the meeting, please provide
13 copies to the Board Clerk.

THIS IS A HYBRID IN-PERSON AND VIRTUAL MEETING.

The Board of Directors has returned to in-person hybrid meetings. When attending Board

meetings, please socially distance as much as possible and be courteous to those who choose
to wear a mask.

To participate in the meeting online, go to hitps://usG2web.zoom.us/i/81972368051. To

participate by phone, call (669) 900-6833 or (253) 215-8782. Enter webinar 1D: 819 7236
8051. :

To make a comment during the public comment periods, raise your hand in the online
Zoom webinar, or press star (*) 9 on your phone to raise your hand. You will continue to hear

the meeting while you wait. When it is your turn to speak, a staff member will unmute your
phone or computer. You will have 3 minutes to speak.

- You may submit written public comment by email to PublicComment@redwoodenergy.orq.
Please identify the agenda item number in the subject line. Comments will be included in the
meeting record but not read aloud during the meeting.

While downloading the Zoom application may provide a better meeting experience, Zoom does

not need to be installed on your computer to participate. After clicking the webinar link above,
click “start from your browser.” .




RCEA June 22, 2023, Board of Directors Meeting Agend SECTION || Yo
Pagezune oard of Directors Mesting Agenda PAGE NO.____Q:__

OPEN SESSION Call to Order

1. ROLL CALL - REMOTE DIRECTOR PARTICIPATION

1.1. Approve teleconference participation request for this meeting by Director pursuant

to Brown Aci revisions of AB 2449 due to an emergency circumstance to be briefly
described.

2. REPORTS FROM MEMBER ENTITIES
3. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

This fime is provided for people to address the Board or submit written communications on matters not on the agenda.

At the conclusion of all oral comrmunications, the Board may respond fo statements. Any request that requires Board
action will be set by the Board for a future agenda or referred to staff.

4. CONSENT CALENDAR

All matters on the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine by the Board and are enacted in one motion. There
is no separate discussion of any of these items. If discussion is required, that item is removed from the Consent
Calendar and considered separately. At the end of the reading of the Consent Calendar, Board members or members
of the public can request that an item be removed for separate discussion.

4.1 Approve Minutes of May 25, 2023, Board Meeting.

4.2 Approve Disbursements Report.

4.3 Accept Financial Reports.

4.4 Authorize the Executive Director to Contact Any or All Banking Services that RCEA
Currently Uses or Will Use in the Future and Reguest They Stop Funding Fossil

Fue! Expansion and Support Transitioning to Clean, Efficient and Renewabie
Energy Sources.

5. REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS

ltems removed from the Consent Calendar will be heard under this section.

COMMUNITY CHOICE ENERGY (CCE) BUSINESS - None.

items under this section of the agenda relate to CCE-specific business matters that fall under RCEA’s CCE voting

provisions, with anly CCE-participating jurisdictions vofing on these matters with weighted voting as established in the RCEA
joint powers agreement.

6. OLD BUSINESS
6.1 Climate Action Plan Update (Information only)
6.2 Rural REN Update (Information only)

7. NEW BUSINESS
7.1  Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Proposed Budget

Adopt the proposed RCEA Fiscal Year 2023-24 Budget.




RCEA June 22, 2023, Board of Directors Meeting Agenda SECTION—H&%PAGE NOi__
Page 3

10.

11.

12.

13.

STAFF REPORTS

8.1  Executive Director’'s Report

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Any request that requires Board action will be set by the Board for a future agenda or referred to staff.

CLOSED SESSION

10.1 CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATIONS Pursuant to
Government Code § 54956.8 in re: APN 001-131-007; RCEA negotiator: Executive

Director; Owner’s negotiating party: Greg Casagrande; Under negotiation: price
and terms.

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION
CLOSED SESSION REPORT

ADJOURNMENT

NEXT REGULAR MEETING
Thursday, July 27, 2023, 3:30 p.m.
Jefferson Community Center Auditorium, 1000 B Street, Eureka, CA 95501.
Online and phone participation will also be possible via Zoom.



.
Iv.

V.

Vil.

VI,

IX.

X.
Xl
XIlI.

. SEGTION{| £L.1), PAGE ND.
Redwood Region FEconomic De'velopijth | ommElst?o

325 2nd Street, Suite 203, Eurcka, Califognia 95501
Phone 707.445.9651 Fax 707.445,9652 www.tredc.com

REDWOOD REGION ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
In person: Eureka City Hall, Conference Room 207, 531 K Street, Eureka CA’
of via Zoom
hitps://us02web zoom, us/i/81419652314?pwd=anRhZnJBRVpMZIdJSEHNTIA1TXIDZZ09
Meeting ID: 814 1965 2314
Passcode: 840140
One tap mobile
+16694449171,,814196523144#,,,,*840140# US
+16699006833,,81419652314#,,,,*840140# US (San Jose)

June 26, 2023 at 6:30 pm PT
AGENDA

Call to Order

Approval of Agenda
A. Approval of Agenda for June 26, 2023

Public Input for non-agenda items

Consent Calendar o
A. Approval of Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting: April 24, 2023
B. Acceptance of Agency-wide Financial Report: April 30, 2023

Program ~ Nick Bown-Crawford, Executive Director, Humboldt Made, and Chair, Humboldt
Eel River Valley Long Term Recovery Group hitps://humboldirecovery.org/ - Infersection
Between Disaster Preparedness and Economic Development

New Business
A. Approval of RREDC Expenditure Control Policy

Old Business

Reports — No Action Required
A. Executive Director's Report
B. Loan Portfolio Report

Closed Session

A. Public Employee Evaluation - pursuant to CA Government Code Section 54957:
Title: Executive Director

Member Reports

Agenda/Program Requests for future Board of Directors Meetings

Adjourn

The Redwood Region Economic Development Commission wilf, on request, make agendas available In appropriate alternative formats
to persons with a disabillty, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilittes Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12132), and the
federal rules and regulations adopted In mplementation thereof, Individuals who need this agenda iri an alterriative formaf or who need
a disabilty-related modification or accommodation in order to participate In the meeting shouid contact the Board Secretary at (707}
445-9651. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the Commission fo make reasonable arrangements for accommadation.

RREDC
Member
Agencies

Cities Arcata » Blue Lake - Bureka « Ferndale - Fortuna - Rio Dell - T'rinidad

Cormiindty Services Disiriels Hamboldt - Manila + MeKinleyville » Orick + Orleans + Redway - Willow Creek
Humboldt Bay Harhor, Recreation and Conservation District - Fumboldt Bay Municipal Water District
County of Humboldt * Hoopa Valley "Uribe - Redwoods Community College District






